Appendix A

'COMPLAINT ABOUT CLLR DES HUGHES

INVESTIGATION REPORT

[ntroduction

1. | have be_eh appointed by the' Deputy Monitoring Officer at Birmingham City Council {"the
Council®) to investigate a complaint: (dafed 11 Séptember 2023) about Clir Des Hughes.

2. | am a self-employed barrister with a Specialism in local govemrhent law. 1am fhe editor of the
forthcoming textbook, Cornerstone on Councillors’ Conduct and Standards in Public Life and |

am an experienced investigator of complaints about councillors.

The comglaint

5 The complan s been submived o (D
—ln the Council's — Directorate. A copy of the

complamt is enclosed as Appendix 1.
4. The complaint makes five allegations:

(a) thét Clir Hughes dontinuéd to access Council systems whilst no Iohger an employee and

did so as a councillor;

(b) that Clir Hughes accessed the Hays 3SS system o authorise extensmns of contract for
agency staff within the Council's SENDIASS service whilst no Ionger an employee and did

so as a councillor;

- (c) that Clir Hughes received an overpayment of salary of approximately £6,000 which he has

not repaid to the Coungil;

(d) that Cilr Hughes failed to disciose on his register of interests that he was a trustee of a
charity with which the- Council had an ongoing financial .relationship for the hire of office

accommodation; and

(e) that Clir Hughes failed to disclose his continuing interests in the Councus SENDIASS
Service. whilst attending Counc:|l meetings, spec:iflcally meetings of the Education and
" Children’s Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (“the Committee”).
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5. Clir Hughes was formally notified of thesé allegations by the Council on 22 August 2023 and'
informed that they would be the subject of a formal investigation. Clir Hughes d.id not provide
a responée to the complaint at this time although he has subsequently provided me with a
written response, which is enclosed as Appendix 2. |

The Code

6. The :'Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members ("the Code") which applies to
members: of the Council when acting in their official capacity.

7. The complaint does not identify any particular provisions of: the' Code which are said to have
been breached. Nonetheless, in my view, the following sections of the Code are relevant to
these allegations: -

(a) péragraph 5.1: */ do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute”;
(b} paragfaph 7.1: "1 do not misuse council resources”,

(c) paragraph 7.2(a): “/ will, when using the resources of the authority or authorising their use

by others: act in acdordance with the local authority’s requirements”, and

{d) baragraph 9.1: “I register and disclose my interests”. =

Investigation process

8. | have been provided with various documents to assist my investigation, including:

(@) “Bundle 1* comprising email correspondence from May to August 2022 involving ClIr
Hughes and various Council officers (enclosed as Appendix 3); '

(b) "Bundle 2" comprising documents relating to the charity Nechells POD and the company
SHINE@NechellsPOD Ltd (enclosed as Appendix 4);

{c} “Bundle 3" comprising documents relating' to the Sir Barry Jackson Trust and the
Kingstanding Regeneration Trust (enclosed as Appendix 5);

(d) "Bundle 4" comprising payslips for Cllr Hughes between April and July 2022 (enclosed as
Appendix 6); ' '
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(e) "Bundle 5" comprising extracts froma KPMG review of SENDIASS's governance {enclosed

as Appendix 7);

(f) a screenshot from the Hays 35S system .showing a “change order” created on 24 August
12022 by Clir Hughes {enclosed as Appendix 8}, -

(g) a table of meetings of the Committee attended by Clir Hughes between June 2022 and
September 2023 (enclosed as Appendix 9).
9. 1 met with Clir Hughes over Zoom 0 discuss the allegations. | also met with_ '
~p = @ o v volved in their review of SENDIASS. | interviewed the
following Council officers as wejl:-ﬂ)-

T A

10. | provided a draft copy of this report, setting out my pruvisioﬁal findings, to Ciir Hughes ano.
@ :rc invited their comments. | received a response rom (B +rich reised only
one substantive (albeit relatively minor) issue, which { have addressed In paragraph 62 below.

Shorﬂy before the deadline, | received a brief written response from Clir Hughes (enclosed as
Appendix 13). In that fesponse, Clir Hughes stated that he did not understand the al'.egation"
described in paragraph 4(a) above, that he had not been acting in an o{'ﬁpial capacity in respect
of the allegation in 'paragraph 4(b) and that, in relation to the allegation in paragraph 4(c), “if
there is a liability there, | will accept that’. Therefore, in his view, none of these allégations are
swithin the remit of the Standards Committee {0 investigate or adjudicate upon.j’ He accepted
the allegation in paragraph 4(d) but consideréd, in relation to the allégation in paragraph 4(e),
that “my declarations in meetings were within the spirit-of the Code of Conduct.” Having -
considered Clir Hughes' response, | have not been persuaded to alter any of my provisional

 findings.
Findings
Clir Hughes
11. Clir Hughes is the councillor f;:r Kingstanding ward and was elected on 5 May 2022. He had
' previously'represented Kingstanding ward for two se’paréte terms: from May 201010 May 2014; ._

and then again from May 2015 to May 2018. In addition to these earlier terms of office, he
stood unsuccessfully in the Counc.il elections in 2014 and 2018.
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12.

On 25 June 2022, Clir Hﬁghés completed a declaration bf interests form. The form has not
been updated since this date. The form declared his employment as “Support Officer” with ho
further details provided. In my interview with him, Cliy Hugheé' explained that this refers to paid
work he does providing one-to-one support for an adyjt with learning disabifities, In completing
his form, Clr Hughes also deciareq two Non-pecuniary interests: “Board of the Birmingham
Royal Ballet” and “‘Barry Jackson Trust", ‘

Cllir Hughes’ employment

14.

15.

Beginning on 1 April 2019, Clir Hughes was employed by the Councii as a Parent Partnership

Support Officer in its SENDIASS service. "SENDIASS’f stands for SEND (Special Educationaj

Néeds and Disabilities) Information, Advice and Suppoft Services. SENDIASS is a statutory

service provided by the Council. Its purpose is to provige information, advice and support to
children and parents of children with SEND. Aithough SENDIASS is supposed to Operate

impartially (i.e. at arms-length from the _Cduncil), it is staffed by employees of fhe Council or

agency workers working on the Councif's ‘behalf. '

Pandemic. [n response to the problems caused by the lockdowns for the families being
SUpported by SENDIASS, Cliir Hughes said that the service recruited g number of agency

workers to help'manage the caseload.

well as dealing with personnel matters for the agency staff (e.g. contract renewals and

extensions).

SENDIASS controversy

16. To put some of the findings below in context, it is nécessary to comment on the controversy

surrounding SENDIASS during and after C_:Hr'Hughes' employment in the sefvice.
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'17. In October 2021, John Coughlan CBE was appointed by the Secretary of State for Edicétion
to lead a statutory intervention into Birmingham's SEND services. In his first report to the
Secretary of State, Mr Coughlan had recommended that SENDIASS be the subject of an
mdependent review. That review was commissioned by the Council and carried out by the
National Children’s Bureau (“NCB’) between March and May 2022. The NCB review was

'h|ghly critical of SENDIASS and concluded (among other things) that it was "85% non-

comphant when assessed agamst its statutory minimum service standards.’

18. In Mr Coughlan's second report to the Secretary of State, he devoted a whole section to

SENDIASS. Mr Coughlan described how although the SEND Improvement Board, which he

chairs,

“accepled the ffindings and recommendations of the NCBJ review and then agreed a
necessary reform of [SENDIASS], there folfowed a significant resistance fo that
process'of reform including through some concerted political denial of the basis of the

review’s critique.

There remain some views, presumably sincerely held, that SENDIASS in Birmingham
has been the most effective part of the wider SEND system upon which some families
depend heavily. The counter to those views is thal SENDIASS has achieved its
posrtion with those families and with a network of supporters, including pohtrc:ans by
working unilaterally, beyond its brief and in a manner which has probably, at least
indirectly, coniributed to wider SEND failings. As an independent Commissioner | hold
the latter view based on weight of evidence | have encountered. -

The political dimensions to this should also be made clear. We can set aside here the
fact of the relationship between the Leader and the head of the service, though | remain
firmly of the view that the coﬂectfve failure over time to properly manage or mitigate the
operational implications .of that relationship has contributed to the current malaise.
Beyond that reiatfonshrp there is a number of Birmingham City counciliors who appear
to have or have had direct md:wdual connections to the service, which may not have
been effectlve!y declared yet may have influenced their disproportionate defence of a -

| poorly pe’rforming SEND service.”

19. KPMG were commissioned to review the governance of SENDIASS in response to the NCB
report. The KPMG feview took place between February and April 2023. The allegations which
are the subject of this complaint came to light as a result of KPMG's findings.

1 The report was published in January 2023 {see paragraph 35(d) below) and presented to Cablnet in
May 2023.
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Clr Hughes’ resignation and election — March-May 2022

20. On 18 March 2022, the Council issued a notice of election for the 2022 local government
elections. Shortly before this date, Clr Hughes was selected as the Labour candidate for
Kingstanding. Someone who is employed by the Council is disqualified from being elected to
‘or being a member of it.2

21. Clir Hughes told me he understood this rule and recognised that he would need to resign his -
~ employment with the Council in order fo stand in the elections. He told me that in 2022 the

selection process had taken place much later than usual, which meant that he was unable to, '
give the notice 6f his resignation required by his employment contract. “Accordingly, on 21

March 2022, in order to stand as a candidate in the forthcomin glections, Clir Hughes
- submitted notice of his resignationﬁ_

| have been provided with a copy of the email exchange between ClIr Hughes,—
and the Council's HR department confirming that Clir Hughes' resignation was accepted with
immediate effect (Appendix 10).

22. However, despite having ostensibly resigned from his employment, Clir Hughes told me that,
at the same time, he. also agreed with (Ml that he would continue to work with
SENDIASS "in a voluntary capacity for a few weeks” in order to ensure a smooth transition.

"~ He expiained that he had worked with his colleagues in SENDIASS for some time, that they
were a “good bunch of people” and therefore “just running ... and leaving them with, | don't
know how many cases, fo ... share ouf and hand over just seemed a bit inconsiderate in the
circumstances”. He confirmed that there was nothing in writing to evidence this agreement,
déscribing it as “an understanding, it was probably as informal as it could get”. —
confirmed that he had not seen any evidence of this agreement during the KPMG review.

23. The elections took place on 5 May 2022 and Clir Hughes was elected as the member for
Kingstanding ward for a third time.

Events subsequent to Clir Hughes’ election — May to Septembér 2022

24. Despite envisaging that this informal agreement — that he would continue to assist his former
- colleagues — would last for only a few weeks from mid-March 2022, ClIr Hughes confirmed to
me he was still working in a vdlu_ntary capacify for SENDIASS up to and after the date of his
election. He told me that the handover of cases had finished by the end of May 2022 (by which

- time he was an elected member of the Council) and that, subsequently, he had onhly done
‘purely administrative” tasks for fhe service. He specifically denied having done any support

2 saction 80(1){a) of the Local Government Act 1972
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or advisory work on behalf of families supported by SENDIASS once the handover had
finished.

95 The documentary evidence does indeed show that Cllr Hughes continued to perform work for
"SENDIASS up until at least the end of August 2022, almost six months after his purported '
resignation. | was provided with a sample of emails sent to or by Clif Hughes from his officer's
email account between May and August 2022° (Appendix 3). It is clear thet this is only a
sample because at least one of the emails refers to otHer email correspondence involving Ciir
Hughes (which | have not seen). | discussed each of these emails with Clir Hughes during

our interview:

(a) on 17 May 2022, he sentan email with the subject “Scheduled SENDIASS Board Meetings”
to various fecipients (including*.-
-. Clir Hughes described the SENDIASS Board as more of a steering group than .
a management board; it had no executive functions and its membership included local
headteachers, SEND co-ordihators, educational psychologists and academics. -
-00nﬂrmed this description. Clir Hughes said that he had acted as the Board's
secretary, with re_sponsibilit‘y,for organising and administering its meetings. He recalled
attending a Board meeting in April 2022 but none after that date. The email in guestion
listed “the dates for our meetings for the rest of this academic year’ and asked recipients -
fo note these dates in their diaries. Clir Hughes explained that-would have
identified the dates and instructed him to inform the Board members. ClIr Hughes initially
described this email as probably his last interaction with the Board although he Iater had
to correct this when we looked at a further emait he sent to Board members in July 2022

(see paragraph 25(e) below),

(b} on 7 June 2022,- forwarded a link to the documents for a meeting of Cabinet
later that day, with a request to print a copy of a report ("Children and Families Directorate:
. Improvement Programme ‘Update and Resources Requirement"). Clir Hughes explained
that, at that time, he was probabiy in the *POD” (where SENDIASS rented office
accommodation and kept a printer) in his capacity as a trus;tee of Shine@NechellsPOD.
Cllir Hughes did not recall this request precisely but stated that this was “just a casual print
request” and that he would probably have printed the document on the SENDIASS hrinter '
in the POD, leaving it in the SENDIASS pfﬁce to be collected later,

(c) on 14 June 2022, QP 202in forwarded a link to the Cabinet meeting documents
for 7 June 2022 and asked him to “save them as documents in the folder on shared drive”

3 His officer's email address was des.hughes@birmingham.gov. uk. His councillor email address is
des.s.hughes@birmingham.gov.uk. ‘

N

7
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(d)

Clir Hughes responded on 16 J uhe 2022 - “As requested” — which implies that he had
complied with that request. Again Cilr Hughes did rot recall the detail of this request but
explained tha “wasn’t inclined to ... this .s_orf of day-fo-day sfuff" and often had -
problems with printing documents. When | asked him why, even after he had completed
his handover of cases, he was still being asked to perform administrative tasks by a former
colleague, he explained: “There wasn't really an ongoing arrangement. | think it was just
a ... kind of a casual request fo help. Because [ could do it, 1 did it, basically. I didn’t see
... printing something off for somebody as being paﬁiculariy involvaed™,

on 20 June 2022, Ciir Hughes exchanged emails with- about apparent

d.ifﬂculties the latter was experiencing with printing. I asked Clir Hughes about how often
he was checking his officer's email account at this time. He said that he was not monitoring

* his emails in June because he had no reason to, now he was no longer supporting families

(e)

(f)

or involved in urgent matters such -as SEND Tribunai cases. - He said he probabiy only -
picked up these emails because he was promptéd to by phone calls from - |
However, | noted that Clir H'ughes had responded to-email'on 20-June 2022
just over an hour after it was received. Although Clir Hughes suggested he would have |
been phoned first by - that is not the impression conveyed by his response,
which engages directly with Qs auestion (and does not refer to a prior discussion -
on the phone); '

on 8 July 2022, ClIr Hughes sent én email to members of the SENDIASS Board apologising
that "due fo unforeseen circumstances the board meeting scheduled for Monday 18" of
July has had to be cancelled. | am sorry for ahy Inconvenience this may cause. We will
be in touch”. Clir Hughes could nbt recall why he would have been asked to send this
email. He said: "i’s g pretfy weak excuse, but I'm just guéssing it's because ... of the lack
of ac&ess to the list of members”, When | asked him what the arrangement was between
himself and-_ about his work for SENDIASS at this time, his explanation was
that “it was really casual ... because all the cases ... had been dealt with. So, | was Just
getting these — well, what seemed to me at the time to be Jjust sort of silly requests for a
little bit of assistance™ ‘ |

on 13 July 2022;-forvvarded an email to Clir Hughes from the SEND Tribunal,
which attached a directions order relating to an ongbing appeal. | was curious about this
correspondence because Clir Hughes had earlier explained that he was no Ionger involved
inactively supporting families, including through cases in the SEND Tribunal.. | pointed out
to him that this was a purely administrative order (vacating a planned hearing date and.
adjourning the hearing to later in the year) father than containing any .substantive
“outcome” to the litigation. Clir Hu'ghes said he héd probably been sent the order for
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26

27.

28

information, as he had been supporting the family for some time. When | asked him

whether he had planned to attend the hearing, his answer was: "God, nol”

{g) on 31 August 2622, Clir Hughes sent an email to-which stated: “Just for info,
but reéﬂy, the salt [speech and language therapy] assessment was dé!ayed because the
therapist was in schoof in the affernoon and he was in the morning. Clearly the parents
fault. We've just had [a named child] in the new conservatory. Some of the foys we have
didn’t last five minutes”. Clir Hughes explained that he had been in the POD on this date

. and had-happened to bump into a family whom he had supported for some time previously..
He described playing with the child while his mother had a meeting with her current Support
Officer. .He could not recall how he would have known details about the child's Speech
and Language Therapy (“SALT") assessment or why he would have notified-
about it. He suggested he might have spoken with-and "something came up '
about it’. He again denied that he was providing any advice or support to families.

. Meanwhile, on 24 Auguét 2022, Clir Hughes created a request to éxtend the contracts of 21
agency workers working for the SENDIASS service using the workfor¢e management software
provided by the recruitment agency, Hays (Appendix 84). The “change order" submitted by
CIIr,Hughes records that the extension was requested until 31 March 2023 and was due {0

“Continuing business pressure due to Covid”.

Clir Hughes accepted that he had submitted the change orders. He recalled having received
-a phone call from- who was “indisposed, off sick or something like that”, asking him
to peﬁofm this action. Clir Hughes said-was concerned about the agency workers
being unable to submit their fimesheets if the change ofder was not submitied. He said he
was surprised he was being asked to do this but was told that another member of the team
was having difficulty navigating the platform. Cilr Hughes told me he made it clear to‘
@D - would ot be doing anything further like this for SENDIASS. - |

. The KPMG report noted of this action that the

“recruitment of agency staff was not authorised by the Workforce Review Board, énd
any temporary Covid funding has since ceased to be a source of income for the service,

_ this further committed the Council to unauthorised expenditure”

29. In response to a question from me, Cllr Hughes confirmed that he had not ndtified or sought

advice from the Monitoring Officer abOut'his informal agreement to work for SENDIASS ina

, volunfary_capacity. He said that it had not occurred to him to do so.

4 Appendix 8 is screenshot showing one such extension. The KPMG report (Appendix X) found that a
total of 21 contract extensions were submitted by Clir Hughes on this date, of which 18 were until 2023.
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Salary overpéyments

30. Although ClIr Hughes described his ongoing work for SENDIASS as being done in a “voluntary -

31.

32.

33.

capacity”, as a matter of fact he continued to re_ceivé his salary. | have been provided with
copies of payslips recording that Cilr Hughes was paid a salary for 29.2 contracted hours per
week of work as a Parent Partnership Support Officer on 28 April 2022, 27 May 2022 and 28
June 2022 (Appendix 6). '

ClIr Hughes 'told me that he had been completely unaware that his salary had continued to be
paid. He said that payslips were not sent in the post and were only available online. He
explained that he does not routinely check his bank account: “... this might sound flippant, but
if tﬁere's money in the account when | gd fo the cash pdint, I tend not fo investigate further.”
During my interview with him, he also denied ‘havAing received any notification that he had been ‘ |
overpaid or having seen any evidence that he was overpaid. Nonetheless, he said that he was
prepared to reimburse the Council if and when he is provided with sufficient evidence: “if it
turns out I've been overpaid, then | owe the Council some money, I'lf give it back. That's not

an issue.”

After our interview, | was provided with a copy of two invoices dated 2 May 2023 issued by the
Council ‘addressed to Clir Hughes at his home address (Appendix 11). The total sum
demanded was £6,189.96 and the description on the invoices was * SALARY OVERPAYMENT
RECOVERY Late Leaver'. | shared the invoices with Clir Hughes and asked if he had received
them at the time. His response was: */ haven"t seen these before. It looks like there is a lability
here that | will have fo dsal with.”

The KPMG review found that despite Cllr Hughes having tendered his resignation in March

2022.—) did not update his employee record until 13 July 2022. -

described this as ; “very basic [HR] process” for the manager of anyone leaving

the Council's employment and is hecessary to terminate their salary payments and access to
IT and ofher Council resources. That delay would explain why Clir Hughes continued to receive
a salary until June 2022 and why he retained access to the IT resources he had used as an
officer of the Council, However, it is unclear to me why he continued to have access to those
IT resources until at least August 2022, KPMG did not look into this specificélly bul—
suggested that terminating these user privileges would probably have needed to be actioned
by someone within SENDIASS. Clir Hughes told me his understanding was that his officer T
access eventually lapsed only because of prolonged inactivity.

Charity appointments

10
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© 34. Charity Commission records available online show that Clir Hughes holds the foliowing .

appointments:

(a) Trustee of the Sir Barry Jackson Trust (charity number 211619), appointed on 15 June
2023, | |

(b) Trustee of the Birmingham Royal Ballet (charity number 1061012), ‘appointed on 6
Decem_ber 2022,

(c) Trustee of the Kingstanding Reqenera’iion Trust {charity number 1149785); appoioted on
3 September 2012. In the Trust's Mahagement Committee Report and Financial
Statements for the financial year 2021/22 (dated 24 August 2022) ClIr Hughes is described

as the Vice Chair and co-signed the report on the Management Committee's behalif

(Appendix 5). The notes to the financial statements show that the Council donated £55,600
" to the Trust in 2022, the second-highest donation that year. There is no |nd|cat|on in the

financial statements that Cilr Hughes received any remuneration for this role;

(d) Trustee of SHINE@NecheHsPOD (charity number 1162038) appomted on 17 July 2018.
There is no indication that Clir Hughes received any remuneration for this role either. ClIr

Hughes explained that the POD rents out office accommodation to local organisations and
that SENDIASS had rented several rooms at the POD for some time before he began his
employment However as KPMG found, rental payments to the charity only appear in its
~ financial statements from 2020/21 while Clir Hughes was employed with SENDIASS
' (Appendlces 4 and 7). The KPMG review found that SENDIASS spent £61,000 in 2020/21
and £67,000 in 2021/22 on office accommodation with this charity." It also found that no
proper_procurement process had been followed and there were no signed contracts in
existence. - told me that there was no business need for SENDIASS to rent
office accommodation with an external provider, given that the Council itself has a
significant number of office buildings which could have been used without any additional
cost to the service. However, apart from his role as a trusiee of the charity, there is nothing
"in the evidence | have seen that suggests any direct involvement by Clir Hughes in this
arrangement. He told me, and in the absence of any evidence to the contrary | accept,
" that he was not involved in the arrangement between SENDIASS and this chanty

35 As | noted above, Cllr Hughes’ reglster of ‘interest records only the first two of these
appointments. He candidly accepted that he had not registered his trusteeships of the
Kingstanding Regeneratlon Trust.or SHINE@NechellsPOD and that they should have been. .
He explained that he had only mentioned those interests where he thought he-would be likely

\x
11
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to receive some kind of benefit (such as tickets to the baHet) He descrrbed this as “a silly
overs:ght and "miidly embarrassing” and said that he would take steps to update his register -

of interests.
Attendance at meetings

36 At the Council's annual meeting on 24 May 2022, Clir Hughes was appornted to the (then)
Education and' Children's Social Care Overview and Scrutmy Committee (the Committee).
Insofar as material to this lnvest|gat|on he is recorded as having attended meetings of the
Committee as follows:

(a) 20 July 2022. Item 7 on the agendawas ar _epo_r’[ titled "Update on the SEND Improvement
Programme” which made one brief reference to SENDIASS The approved meeting action
notes record that Clir Hughes “declared that he had besn’ employed by [SENDIASS] until
April 2022". The webcast of the meeting records Clir Hughes as saying: "Just for the

record, I was employed by SENDIASS untif Aprif this year. I'm not employed by them any
more, but jUSf ra.rsmg this in the interests of transparency On 5 July 2022 (two days prior

to the meetlng) Clir Hughes had been one of the recipients of an email from-
with the subject "APP" asking to arange “a quick [chat] about this — just want to cfarify
some of my understandmg of some of the data (If we can give that this term} in here.” |
understand "APP" to have been a reference to the SEND "Accelerated Progress Plan”

- which was a standing item on the Commlttee s work programme and WhICh was the subject

~ of a presentation to the Committee at this meeting. The webcast (from 1:05:36) records
Clir Hughes challenging some of the data presented by officers on the Acceferated
Progress Plan, partly with reference to his time worklng for SENDIASS

(b) 7 September 2022. Item 5 on the agenda was a ,Qresentatlo tltled “SEND Improvement
update FINAL”. This presentation included specific comment on the NCB review of
SENDIASS. Again, the approved meeting action notes record 'thét Clir Hughes *“declared
that he had been employsd by [SENDIASS] untit April 2022". The webcast records Clir
Hughes as, again, having raised this “in the inferests of transparency” rather than a formal
declaration of interest. Prior to this meeting, on 2 September 2022, Clir Hughes sent.

-a copy of the presentatlon which was due fo be presented to the committee. ClIr
Hughes asked- to provide “an incisive appraisal of the substance of this update
—and then tell me how long it took you?” The email chain shows that- forwarded
to- an annotated version of the slides with comments criticising some of the
points made, describing the rest of the presentation as “nonsense On the morning of the

% These emails are included in Appendix 12.

12
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(d)

meeting @ Jerailed Ciir Hughes — the subject of the email was * Scrutiny” ~ asking
“Do you want to have a quick chat about the SENDIASS pages?”,

19 October 2022. SENDIASS was not a specific agenda item although there was some
brief discussion about the possible attendance of the SENDIASS Head of Service at'a
future committee meeting. The rheeting action notes, as originally drafted, record that Clir
Hughes "declared a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of previously being an employee of
[SENDIASS]. He stated that he wasn temployed by SENDIASS anymore and had not been
for the past six months.” However, at the next meeting of the committee (on 30 November
2022; see paragraph 36(d) below), this text was deleted from the approved meeting action
notes and replaced with: “Councillor Des Hughes informed the Committee that he was
previously an empleyee of [SENDIASS], but was not anymore, and had not been for the
past six months.” This correction is consistent with what Clir Hughes told the meeting on
19 October 2022. The webcast of the 19 October meeting shows that Clir Hughes actually
said: "Not an inferest, chair, but just so that eVerybody’s aware: | was previously an |
employee of SENDIASS but [ am not anymore and haven't been for six months”, '

30 November 2022. Items 11 and 13 on the agenda for this meeting were (respectively)
a public and an exemg't report to update the Committee on the NCB's independent review
of SENDIASS. The webcast of this meeting explains the reasons for the correction to the

previous meeting's action notes. It records Clir Hughes stating that he was not declaring
an interest and objecting to the previous meeting’s action notes as having recorded that
he did declare an interest. He stated “/ don’t have an inferest in SENDIASS” and asked
for the meeting actlon notes to be corrected, noting that his declaration was made "in the
interests of transparency as opposed to a formal declaration of interest. Some of the
meetlng attendees can be heard suggesting that ClIr Hughes did have a non-pecuniary
interest, to which he replied: "f am saying it is pot a non-pecuniary interest and what | object
to is having the minutes doctored, Chair [inaudible]. And if someone wants to chalfenge
my.assertion, I'must request they do it through whatever channels they do it through. |do
not have an interest in SENDIASS Chair.” Durlng the discussion of the public report (ttem

~ 1) and the discussion whether to move to private session (item 12), it is apparent from

(e)

the webcast that Cllr Hughes remained in the meeting. Ultimately, the approved meeting
action notes record that the committee resolved (unanimously) not to move to private

session and the meeting was adjourned to 25 January 2023 to allow the exempt report to

',be published;

4 January 2023. SENDIASS was not a specific egende itern for this meeting. The
approved meeting action notes record that ne declarations of interest were made. The
webcast records Glir Hughes raising the question of whether someone from SENDIASS
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should attend a meeting of the committee if SENDIASS was to be discussed {beginning at
1:46:20). This issue had been raised previously at meetings of the Committee by.‘

(f) 25 January 2023. This was the reconvened meeting from 30 November 2022. A redacted
version of the NCB report was published, in accordance with the committee’s earlier
resolution. The approved meeting action notes record: “Ciir Des Hughes declared a non-

pecuriiary interest as he was employed by SENDIASS when the report was undeﬁéken. "
The webcast records that Clir Hthes made this declaration on the basis that he had been
employed by SENDIASS during the period of the NCB review but he was no longer

- employed by them. The webcast also shows that Ciir Hughes remained in the meeting
throughout the discussion. This meeting considered the NCB report which, as | have noted
above, was heavily critical of SENDIASS. At 1:22:58 of the meeting, the webcast shows
Clir Hughes intervening to defend SENDIASS from “the insinuation fin the NCB report] that
SENDIASS wants fo rush to appeal. ... an appeal might invoive 500 pages of evidence.
- The Idea that a support officer wants an appeal is, frankly, the most ridiculous thing I think
fve heard. ..". Indeed, in this interveption, Clir Hughes went on to support his point by
referring directly to his experience when working for SENDIASS; '

(9) 22 February 2023. SENDIASS was not a specific agenda item for this meeting. The
approved meeting action notes record that no declarations of interest were made;

(h) 5 April 2023. SENDIASS was not a specific agenda item for this méetihg. The approved
meeting action notes record that no declarations of interest were made

() 17 May 2023. Although SENDIASS was not a specific agenda item for this meeting, item
8 concerned a report on the "SEND Accelerated Progress Plan”. The approved meeting
minutes record that Cllr Hughes “raised a number of queries and concerns” including:

* “Tribunals should be a last resort and were reducing. They were using mediation more
and will continue to do this. ) | '

s Whether the support service for families was reducing which impacted on the reducing
number of tribunals was QUeried. The Cabinet Member assured the Committee that the
[SENDIASS] was there for parents that needed support and they will continue to

provide this.”

At this meeting, the commitiee also resoived that SENDIASS be added to the committee’s

work programme for the following civic year.

14

Page 14 of 172



37. In between meetings of the Committee, as weli as those which | have mentioned above, Clr
Hughes rebeived several additional emails from- about matters related to the
committee’s business (Appendix 12). These include an email dated 12 July 2022, in which.

- forwarded an article to Clir Hughes (using his councillor email address) with the
comments: “ This reports [sic] is about children out Of" school — there are dozens in Bham. Asfk]
'DCS [Director of Children’s Services] about it.”

38. It is unusual for elected members to have this kind of regular, direct contact with relatively
junior officers of the Council, particularly for a member who sits on an overview and scrutiny
comm]_ftee ‘with oversight of the service which employs these officers. The Council's
Member/Officer Relations _Protocol advises that although an “informal and colfaborative

approach to working between Members and officers is encouraged”, some care is still required:

" hoth Members and officers should be guarded as personal familiarity can damage
the relationship, as might a family or business connection. nappropriate relationships
can be inferred from language/behaviour. Close personal familiarity between individual
Members and officers can damage the relationship of mutual respect. and prove

embarrassing to other Members and officers.”

| asked Clir Hughes to comment on this email correspondence._ He described it as “basicalfy

conversalion about various aspects of the special needs landscape”.

Assessment

39. In light of the findings made above, it is now necessary to determine whether the allegation’
in the complaint are proven. There are five elements to the complaint; | will address each in

turn.
Failure to register-interests

- 40. As noted above, this is an allegation that Clir Hughes failed to register his trusteeships of the
Kingstanding Regeneration Trust and SHINE@NechellsPOD. ClIr Hughes accepted that he

had not done so.

41. In my view, these positions were Other Registrable Interests which, by paragraph 9.1 of the
Code, Clir Hughes was required to enter into his regiéter of interests. His failure to do so is
clearly a breach of paragraph 2.1 of the Coge (registration and disclosure of interests).

Accessing Councif systems while no longer an employee, including the Hays 3SS system
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42.

43,

44,

There are two discrete allegations that Clir Hughes continued to accéss Council systems after
he had ceaaed to be an employée of the Council and while he was a councillor. Given their
overlap, | wili deal with them together, Clearly, up until the date of his election, Clir Hughes
was not a servmg counculor and therefore his conduct prior to that date was not regulated by

the Code.

However, after his election on 5 May 2022 and until at least 24 August 20225, Clir Hughes did
continue to perform work for SENDIASS after he had purported to resign from that employment
and he did so using Council resources and systems. This included his officer's email account
and the uaer privileges for systems including the SLAM facility'and the Hays 3SS platform
which he had been granted while he was an empioyee.

His access to these resources and systems ought to have been revoked as soon as he had
given his notice of resignation. However, for one reason or another, they were not. Indeed
even after his resignation was formally registered on the Council's HR systems — almost three
months after it had been accepted by his line manager — he continued to have access. The
informal arrangement he had reached with the SENDIASS Head of Service — that he would

- continue to work for the service in a voluntary capacity — is the most probable explanation for

45.

46.

his continued access to these systems, given he would not have been able to do any work for

SENDIASS had his access been terminated,

In his Writtén statement, Clir Hughes suggested that "accéssing BCC sysfem while nof being
an employee is not that unusual. It is not that unusual for peopfe o have‘access fo BCC
systems while beiag empioyed by someone else”. He gave, as an example, volunteers and
placament students assistiﬁg SENDIASS. - However, during our interview, Clir Hughes
accepted that, “with hindsight, 1 think it's perfectly clear that | should have Just quite simply ..
cut off any contact with SENDIASS. You know, within, | don’t know, within say erght weeks of
my resignation, | should have just safd ‘ask somebody else’”

That is plainly what Clir Hughes should have done and | am surprised that, as an experienced
councillor, who was aware of the strict prohibition agafnst holding paid employment with the
Council u;vhile standing for election or serving as a councillor, this did not occur to him at the
time. He ought to have knawn that he had no authority to access any of these systems or
perform any of the functions he had previously been employed to do — and he ought to have
known that continuing to access those systems without formal authority was inappropriate. As

8 Clir Hughes' email dated 31 August 2022 (paragraph 24(g) above) is ambiguous. Although he said
that he had happened to bump into the famlly mentioned in his email, the email appears to be providing’
a casework update. '
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47.

48,

49.

50.

51.

the KPMG review fo'und, in doing so, he committed the Council to unauthorised expenditure

and created legal and compliance risks for the Council.

In his written statement, Clir Hughes also argued that he had “explicit authorisation” from the
then Head of SENDIASS to submit the change order extending the contracts of the agency
workers. There is no written evidence to support that claim but, even if it were true, it is clearly
no excuse. ClIr Hughes was, at this time, an elected member of the Council; he should have

exercised his own judgment rather than accepting a management instruction from an officer.

Clir Hughes also took issue, in his written staterﬁent, with the notion that the Code applied to
this conduct. He argued that, although he was a serving councillor at the time, not everything
he did was in an official capacity and that, in this particular instance, “Inone] of these actions -
were executed in my capacily as a gouncﬂfor. During the course of these incidents | never at

any point represented myself as being a [councillor].”

Clir Hughes s, of course, correct that the Code does not apply to absolutely everything a
councillor does. The Code applies to members of the Counil only “when you are acting in

your capacity as a councillor”; it gives the following (non-exhaustive) list of examples:

s “you are acting in your capacily as a councillor and/or as a representative of your
. ‘council: ‘ o '
s you are claiming to act as a councillor and/or as a representative of your council;
e you are giving the impression, or the circumstanceé may give rise to the perception,
that you are acting as a councillor andfor as a representative of your - council:
. you refer publicly to your role as a councillor and/or as a representative of your

council.”

The fab_ts of this case — which ére, in my experience, highly unusual — do not obviously fit within
any of these categories. However, as | noted above, this list is not intended fo be exhaustive.

In my view, Clir Hughes was acting in his capacity as a councillor when accessing Council

Systems to carry out work for SENDIASS following his election:

(a) it has been established in the case law (albeit in relation .to an earlier version of the
standards rules) that * conduct which is improper and mentmg some poss.vbie sanction will
often be constituted by a misuse of a councillor's position. . .. Such misuse may not amount
to corruption; it may nonetheless be seen not only to be improper but to reflect badly on
the office itseff. *7  More recently, a similar view has been expressed in the Local

Government Association’s Mode! Code of Conduct. “This Code of Condtict applies to you

.7'Livingstone v Adjudication Panel for England [2006] EWHC 2533 (Admin), [27].
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when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor which may include when: you misuse

Your position as a councillor ...”;

{b) when determining what conduct the Code does and does not apply to, it is necessary to
read the Code as a whole, which (as well as the list mentioned in paragraph 48 above)

- includes:

* paragraph (i) of the introduction: “This Code has been designed to protect your
democratic role, encourage good conduct and safeguard the publfic's trust in local

government”, and

* paragraph (i) of "Purpose of the Code of Conduct™ “The fundamental aim of the Code
is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of counciflor and local

government.”

In my view these two underlying objectives of the Code seek to guard against misuse of
the role of councillor and therefore the Code applies to conduct which amounts to a misuse

of the role of councillor:

{c) carrying out work for the authority on which one serves as an elected membe.r undermines
the very important distinction between members and officers of the Council. Not only is
that distinction enforced by the legal sanction of disqualification, maintaining a clear -
separétion of reépohsibilities between members and officers is a vital element of good local
authority governance. It is recognised by the Council's Member/Officer Relations Protocof:

“‘Both Members and officers are servants of the public and they -are
indispensable fo one another. But their responsibilities are distinct. Members
are responsible to the electorate and officers are responsible to the Council as
a whole. The conduct of Members and officers should be such as fo instil
mutual confidence and trust. The key elements are recognition of and a respect
for each other's roles and responsibilities. These should be reffected in the
behaviour and attitude of each to the other, both publicly and privately.”

(d) carrying out work as an officer of the Council, and accepting management instructions from
officers of the Council — even for relatively trivial tasks ~ is a misuse of the role of councillor

because it amounts to an abdication of a councillor's important constitutional role both

8 Local Government Association, Mode! Councillor Code of Conduct
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52.

53.

within the authorrty and with respect to the electorate. As such, it clearly undermines the

two underlylng objectives of the Code described above.

Therefore, in my view, the Code did apply to the conduct described in this section of the report.
As a result, | find that these actions constitute a serious breach of paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2(a)

of the Code (misuse of Council resources).

| also consider that these actions would also be likely to diminish public confidence in Clir
Hughes' role as a councillor, glven the clear and unacceptable way in which he blurred his

responsibilities as a councillor and officer of the Council. Given the legal and compliance risks

to the Council which his actions caused, and the way they exposed deficiencies in the oversight

of Council systems and resources, | also corl'sider that they would be likely to diminish public
confidence in the Council as a whole, Therefore | find that Clir Hughes has aiso breached
paragraph 5 of the Code by bringing both his own role and his authority into disrepute.

Safaty overpayments

54,

L

56.

| was puzzled by Clir Hughes’ assertion that he had seen no evidence to support the allegation
that he had continued to receive his salary after the date of his purported re5|gnat|on Clir

Hughes had been provided with the same evidence as me and, in my view, the payslips clearly

show that he continued to be paid his full salary for the months of April, May and June 2022
despite having purported to resign with immediate effect on 21 March 2022. It appears that

these payments only stopped, and the overpayments came to light, when the (i R RRNND

@ </ t<dly urdated the Council's HR systems in mid-July 2022.

It is ciear from the evidence — indeed Clir Hughes’ admitted — that he did work for SENDIASS
during the months in which he continued to receive his salary. His explanation that he was

unaware that he continued to be paid ba_cause he did not check his bank account, or because

he did not receive any payslips in the pdst, is no excuse.

Receiving a salary from the Council, like continuing to work for the Council, is in my view a
misuse of the role of councillor. As well as uhacceptably blurring the roles of councilior and
officer, it also undermines the strict rules in place which regulate what financial payments
councillors are permitted to receive from the Council. Clir Hughes ought to have noticed that
he continued to be paid his salary and, in the face of clear evidence, ought to have accepted -
this fact and taken steps to repay this money to the Council. Therefore, for similar reasons as .
set out in paragraphs 50-51 above, the Code applied to his receip_t of a salary and failure to

" take steps to repay it. | also consider this to be a breach of paragraphs 7.1 and 5‘(in' the

sense of bringing h‘is role into disrepute) of the Code.
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Declarations of inferest_‘

57,

58,

When he attended the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 20 July 2022, Clir Hughes
was working for SENDIASS. Therefore his declaration to the meeting “in the interests of
fransparency” (rather than a formal declaration of interést) that “I'm not employed by
{SEND_IASS] anhy more” was misleading because, by his own admission, he was still working
for them. However, | dlq not consider fhis to be a breach of paragraph 9.1 of the Code because:

(a) although it was arguably an “Other Regiétrable Interest” (because he was effectively a staff
member of a statutory service exercising ftinctions of a public nature), the discussion did
“not directly relate to SENDIASS’ financial interests or wellbeing. The Local Gavernment
Association's guidance advises that simply discussing the affairs of a body without making

a formal decision which relates to its finances or wellbeing does not “directly refate” to that
organisation "as there is no direct impact on the organisation which would give rise fo a

conflict of interest”:

(b} as the discussion only touched briefly, and in a general sense, on SENDIASS | do\not
consider that it was a Nori-Registrable Interest because the financial interest or:wellbeing
of SENDIASS or aﬁyone working for it was not “affected” by the discussion. The LGA
guidance advises-that “affects” means that the matter-under discussion has “clear

implications for the interest”.

By the time he attended the Committee meeting on 7 September 2022, it appears that Clir
Hughes was no longer working for SENDIASS (the last item of documentary evidence showing

. work being carried out for SENDIASS which | have seen is dated from August 2022). Howevef,

for this reason, Clir Hughes' declaration to the meeting (again not a formal declaration of

“interest) was misleading because he omitted reference to the work he had. been carrying out

- for SENDIASS as recently as a few weeks before the meeting. In this case, SENDIASS was

. 69,

more of a focus of discussion, given that the presentation included comment on the NCB
review. However, the nature of that discussion was still at a fairly general level and did not, in
my opinion, have clear implications for, or a clear impact on, SENDIASS or anyone working
for it. Therefore | do not consider that Clir Hughes had a Non-Registrable Interest that needed

to be declared to this meeting.
' §

Essentially the same analysis applies _to' CIIE Hughes’ attendance at the Committee rhéeting on
19 October 2022. Again, his declaration was misleading because he omitted to mention his

20

Page 20 of 172



80.

recent work for SENDIASS. However, he did not have a Non-Registrable Interest in any item

under discussion at this meeting.

My analysis is different for the meetings oh 30 November 2022 and 25 January 2023 {the latter
was reconvened after the former was adjourned). Despite the NCB review of SENDIASS being
a discrete agenda item on 30 November, Clir Hughes expressly declined to declare an interest
and strongly objectéd to the suggestion that he did have an interest in SENDIASS. However,

in my view, he did have a Non-Registrable Interest in this item of business, for two reasons:

(a) his own wellbelng was affected The NCB report was, as | have noted above, highly critical
of SENDIASS ata tlme when Clir Hughes was working for it. As such, | consider that the
commlttees conS|derat|on of this report had clear implications for his wellbeing, in the
sense that it could have affected his professional reputation as a former member of the
SENDIASS team; and

(b) the wellbeing of close associates of his was affected. It is clear from the emails to and
from SENDIASS officers relating to Committee business (Appendix 12) that Clir Hughes
was being lobbied by his former co_Ileag\ues'. 1 consider that- and-_
were "close associates" of Cllr Hughes (for the purposes of paragraph 8(b) of the Appendix
to the Code). The LGA guidancé advises that a close associate is

“a person with whom you are in either regular or irregular contact over a period
of time who is more than an a'cquaintance. it is someone a member of the
public might think you would be prepared fo favour or disadvantage when

discussing a matter that affects them.”

The fact that Clir Hughes had continued to work for SENDIASS even after his résigna_tion and

election in order not to let down his former colleagues is an indication of a close association

~ between them. | find the email he sent to- on 2 September 2022 - asking,

61.

effectively, for points he could bring up in the impending committee meeting — particularly
striking evidence of a continuing close association. - continued to share Committee-
related information W|th Clir Hughes during the period of these meetings. Given that these
were the two most senlor officers in SENDIASS, their professional reputations — and therefore
their wellbeing — were clearly affected by the strong criticisms made in the NCB report of the

service which they led.

.Therefére, whether it was his own wellbeing or that of close associates of his, { consider that

Clir Hughes was obliged to declare a Non-Registrable Interest in these items of business. He

~ did declare a “non-pecuniary interest” (which't am prepared fo accept as a declaration of a
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Non-Registrable Interest} when the meeting reconvened on 25 January 2023 but failed to
deciare an interest when the meeting opened on 30 November 2022. His failure to declare an
interest on 30 November was a breach of paragraph 9.1 of the Code:

62. As noted above, Clir Hughes remained present throughout the meeting on both occasions,
despite having a Non-Registrable Interest. Insofar as material, paragraph 9 of the Appendix
to the Code provides that a councilior should withdréw from the meeting after disclosing their
Non—RegistrabIe Interest if an item of business affects their wellbeing or the wellbeing of a
close associate “fo a greater extent” than the majority of- inhabitants of the ward affected by
the decision (in this case, the City) and "a reasonable member of the public.knowing all the
facts would believe that it would affect your view of the wider public interest”. In my view, this
test was satisfied: the NCB report clearly affected Clir Hughes and the SENDIASS officers
more than ofher residents of the City; and it is reasonable to conclude that, given his previous

“working relétionship, and the continued close contact (amounting, in effect, to lobbying), Clir
Hughes’ view of the wider public interest would have been affected. Therefore his failure to
recuse himself from the discussion of the NCB report (as well as taking part in the vote) was
also a breach of paragraph 9.1 of the Code.

63. For completeness, | should add that | do not find that Clir Hughes had interests which needed
to be declared in respect of the meetings on 4 January 2023, 22 February 2023, 5 April 2023
or 17 May 2023. None of these meetings touched on SENDIASS in the same direct and
focussed way as the nﬁeetings described in paragraphs 60-62 above. Therefore his
attendance at these meetings did not involve a breach of the Code.

Conclusion

© 64. In summary, my recommendations are that Clir Hughes has breached the foilowing sections
~ ofthe Code: '

(a) by failing to register his trusteeshi'ps of two charities dn his register of interests, he has
breached paragraph 9.1 of the Code;

(b} by continuing to access Council systems (including the Hays 3SS platform to extend the
employment contracts of agency workers), he has breached paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2(a)
of the Code, as well as bringing his role and the Council into disrepute, in breach of
paragraph 5 of the Code; |
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(¢} by continuing to receive his salary after his purported resignation, and by failing to take
steps to repay that money, he has breached paragraph 7.1 of the Code, as well as
bringing his role into disrepute, in breach of paragraph 5 of the Code;,

(d} by failing to declare a Non-Registrable Interest, and by failing to recuse himself from the
discussion of the NCB review of SENDIASS at meetings of the Education and Children’s
Social Care Overview and Scruting Committee on 30 November 2022 and 25 January
2023, he has breached paragraph 9.1 of the Code. |

Matt Lewin

Cornerstone Barristers

31 October 2023
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Appéndices:

1
2
3
4.
5.
6
7
8
9

10.
11.
12.
13.

Complaint (11 September 2023)
Clir Hughes written response (3 October 2023)
“Bundle 1'— Use of officer email account whilst a councillor

“Bundle 2 — Failure to disciose interest as a trustee of the SHINE@Nechells POD” -

“Bundle 3 - Documentation re Sir Barry Jackson Trust & Kingstanding Regeneration Trust"
“Bundle 4 — Overpayment of salary”

‘Bundle 5 — KPMG report — Member involvement”

Hays 3SS Change order screenshot (24 August 2022)

Table of Committee meetings (15 June 2022-6 September 2023)

Email exchange cohfirming resignation (21-23 March 2022)

Salary overpayment invoices (2 May 2023)
Email correspondence between Clir Hughes and SENDIASS officers (July-December 2022)
Clir Hughes written response to draft report (15 November 2023)
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Appendix Al

Dear Janie
| am writing to you in your capacity as the Momtormg Officer.

Following the SENDIASS Review by KPMG, and-in particularly the conduct of ClIr Des Hughes I wish
to make a formal complamt/request that this matter be referred to the Standards Committee to
determine whether Cilr Hughes has breached the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.

Based on the review by KPMG | would ask that the Standards Committee, amongst other things,
consider the followmg the following potentlal breaches: :

i.  He continued to access BCC systems whilst no longer an employee and d|d 50
whilst he was a Councillor.

ii. © Accessed the Hays 35S system to authorise extensions of contracts for agency
_ staff within the Sendiass Service, whilst a Councillor and whilst no longer being

an employee.

iii.  Has failed to rebaiy an overpayment of salary in the sum of approximately £6000.

iv.  Failed to disclose on his declaration on Interests that he was a Trustee of the
Necheils Pod notwithstanding that the City Council (and in particular the
SENDIASS Service) paid for accommadation space to use their premises. -

V. Failed to disclose his continuing interests in the SENDIASS Service whilst

attending ,Council' meetings, specifically Overview and Scrutiny.

If you requife any further information from me then please let me know:

Regards,

Birmingham City Council

PadeF@id72
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Appendix A2

Initial Response

There are a couple of areas of a background that | think | should cover by way of
introduction. First of all | would like to point ouf that pre COVID SENDIASS was a
small department of the council with a core staff of 6. That core staff was responS|bIe
for providing independence advice and support to families, young people and
children across the city who had special educational needs. This was a service that
simply did not have the resources to meet the demands put upon it. The '
organisation did have some support maybe three times a year from students who
were on placements from local universities. Those students had little experience of
our field of work so although they did contribute to the work of the department they
first had to be provided with some degree of tralmng and required regular
superwsuon

With the onset of COVID and the subsequent lockdowns it quickly became apparent
that there were significant failings in the services provided by the council to the
families children.and young people affected by the lockdowns. For many children
with special needs they now found themselves confined to the house without the
benefits of any of the sometimes extensive support that they would have had in
school. Allied with this was what turned into constant pressure, twenty-four hours a
day every day on parents and families of having to COpe with these extra demands at
what was for many people a very difficulf time.

collaboration with arranged
for an expansion of the SENDIASS team with a view to helping families and children
cope with the pressures imposed by the regime of lockdowns. As a consequence the
SENDIASS team expanded considerably by approximately 30 members of staff.
- These staff were inevitably agency staff who again had little direct experience of the
field they were now working in. So, they too required training, induction ‘and regular
‘supervision by members of what was a small core feam. this expansion of the
SENDIASS team was adopted/maintained by the intervening directors of children
- .services up to and including the current director.

Part of my role with the students and subsequently with the agency ‘staff was to
ensure that they had the necessary access to council systems to fulfil their duties

and access relevant training etc. This meant using the council's SLAM form facility
(Starters Leavers and Movers) to facilitate their access to council computers and the
intranet. The-SLAM form facility also allowed me to ensure that staff had an e-mail
address, access to various databases and access to the department's shared drive. .
It is worth pointing out here that staff with access to the SLAM form facility cannot
change any of their own access or permissions. So for instance, if my line-manager
needed a password reset, she could not do that herself it would- have to be actioned
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through me. With regards to students or agency staff, their access te BCC systems
were always time limited as was access by anyone who was not a permanent
member of staff so that people didn’t continue to have access to systems that they
had no authority to access.

So, at some pointin 2022 | had formed the desire to stand for election as a councillor
in the ward of King‘standing One of the consequences of COVID with regards to
local elections was that the timetable for the selection of candidates was frustrated.

- On top of that the sad death of Erdington MP Jack Dromey let to a situation where
the Labour Party nationally was keen to select a parliamentary candidate and hold a
by-election sooner rather than later: So, these two circumstances impacted on the
timetable for the selection of candidates in the ward of Kingstanding. This meant that
the selection of council candidates in Kingstanding eventually took place one week'’
before the close of nominations. Now, as you cannot been nominated for the council
election if you work for the council | had to resign at short notice. Upon contacting
the councils HR department | was informed that | had to give a couple of months
notice and that not doing so would be a breach of contract unless | secured the
agreement of my line manager. My line manager.agreed to my immediate
resignation and put her agreement in writing to the HR department. But as |
explained above the SENDIASS team was a small core team that had now ,
significantly expanded but was largely made-up of staff with limited knowledge and
experience of the landscape they were working in. That is why | volunteered to work
with SENDIASS in a voluntary capacity for a few more weeks. This was primarily to
facilitate the smooth handover of my caseload two other members of the team and to
smooth that handover with the families and children involved.

He continued to access BCC systems whilst no longer an employee and did so
whilst he was a Councillor.

Continued to access..

My ability to log onto council systems should have ended with my resignation. My
presumption was, that as | had agreed to continue to work for a while in a voluntary
capacity that my access to council systems had been extended by the then Head of
- Service NH. This has subsequently proved not to be the case, but the fact remains
that my access to council systems was maintained for some quite considerable time
“after my resignation, and not because | had requested it. | didn’t hack into BCC
- systems or circumvent any security measures to gain access.
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... ho longer an employee

It is clear that | did access BCC systems while no longer an employee. | have _
explained above why | continued to work for a while with SENDIASS as a volunteer.
Accessing BCC systems while not being an employee is not that unusual. It is not
~unusual for p'eople to have access to BCC systems while being employed by
someone else. SENDIASS has in the past had the support of volunteers who were
not employees. None of the thirty odd students we had every year at SENDIASS
were employees. In fact, not only were placement students not paid, but they also
incurred expenses during their placement which were, irritatingly for them, not
recoverable. So not only were they not paid, it cost them money to be there. -

... whilst he was a Councillor

With regards to the assertion that the action | took was while | was a councillor.
clearly, | am a councillor. Consequently, absolutely everything | do is while [am a
counsellor. | had a little bit too much to drink last Friday, while | was a counsellor. A
few weeks ago, | took a minibus full of deprived children from Nechelis to the sea

_ Life Centre for half a day, while | was a counsellor. Neither of these actions were
executed in my capacity as a councillor. During the course of either of these .
incidents | never at any point represented myself as being a counsellor. Likewise, the
action | took with Hayes was clearly while | was a counsellor but was not executed in
my capacity as a counsellor. | did not represent myself as a councillor to Hays. | did
not say to Hays, | am conducting this action as a city of Birmingham councillor.

Accessed the Héys 3SS system to authorise extensions of coniracts for agency staff,
whilst a Councillor.” :

... to authorise extensions

The assertion that | authorised extensions for agency staff is incorrect. At some point
before the 24th of August | received a phone call from § '

She was for some reason indisposed or not able to work. She was though concerned
that for the current crop of agency workers access to the Hayes platform would be
frustrated if their contracts weren't extended. She was concerned that this would
'frustrate their ability to get paid for the work they were doing; As | have said above,
evenwhen | was employed by SENDIASS | did not have the authority to decide how
many people wér_e engaged by SENDIASS or how long they were there for. That
decision was always made by the head of service, who then delegated to me the
responsibility for giving effect to her wishes.

| must also point oth that | continued to have access to the systems necessary to
conduct this action. So, apart from the fact that | had explicit authorization from
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to do as | did, my continued ability to access the Hays platform was also implied
permission to do what | was asked to do.

On this particular occasion it appeared from my conversation wi'th-hat the
erson who had been given the responsibility that had previously fallen to me, -
: _either had problems accessing the Hayes platform or difficulty
- finding his way around it. The platform is not the least bit intuitive, it is difficult to
navigate if you are not familiar with it. So, | was persuaded on this occasion to assist,

although | did make it clear that this would be the last time | would undertake any
-action on behalf of the service.

... whilst he was a Councillor

| refer to the paragraph above, ... whilst he was a Councillor

Has failed to repay an overpayment of salary in the sum of approximately £6000..

With regards to the alleged overpayments the complaint stafes that | failed to contact

~ the council to notify them of the error. The complaint notes that | was contacted by
the council on the 5th of July 2022 and that the e-mail stated that there had been an
overpayment in respect of my salary as an employee. '

First of all, as the complaint notes | resigned on the 21st of March 2022. | did not ask
the council to continue paying me, so it is not my fault that they continued to do so.
Furthermore, the allegation that | received an e-mail informing me that there had

* been an overpayment is quite simply untrue. ! did get an e-mail saying that due to an
error on their part that there may have been an overpayment but not that there
actually was. Under the circumstances it did not seem unreasonable that [ should
merely wait for confirmation of whether there had been an overpayment or not and
the extent of that overpayment before taking any action to remedy the situation. That
notification never materialiséd. '

i.  Failed to disclose on his declaration on Interests that he was a Trustee of
the Nechells Pod notwithstanding that the City Council paid for
accommodation space to use their premises. -
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It is clearly evident that | am a trustee of the POD. My association with the POD
arose out of my presents at their sites and my occasional involvement in their events

and projects.

The council paying for accommodation space at the POD is a situation that has
existed since before | had anything to do with SENDIASS and continued after | had
~ resigned. :

It is worth noting that the building the POD occupy belongs to the council. The
council's maintenance of the building leaves a lot to be desired. The councif's
involvement in the building of a new library at the site has been irritatingly
incompetent. Yet at no point have | sought to lobby the council on beh_a[f of the POD.
This is of course primarily because | am not the counsellor for the area in which the
POD is situated. They have | perfectly capabie local councillor who is more than
happy to represent their interests with the council. '

i Failed to disclose his continuing interests in the Sendiass Service whilst
“attending Council meetings. '

With regards to the disclosure of interests at council meetings, | stated at all ‘
meetings of the Education and Children’s Social Care scrutiny committee except one
that although | was not declaring an interest, | pointed-out that | had until recently
been employed by SENDIASS. The one meeting at which | did declare a non-
pecunia'ry interest was a meeting that was ‘examining a so-called review of

' SENDIASS. If seemed to me under the circumstances that people might presume
that | had an interest here with regards to.this review as | was an employee of
'SENDIASS at the time. This is despite the fact that | had absolutely no interaction or
contact in any way with the person who conducted the review. | was not interviewed
or spoken to and consequently at no input whatsoever in the review. There were no
comments or assertions about my work with SENDIASS in the review..

in spite of tis (D SEED
-did suggest on more than one occasion that I' should consider meeting with the
‘city solicitor to discuss my declaration. Following an e-mail frorr. which

included contact details for the city solicitor | responded as per the attached e-mail. |

had no further response from.lith regards to this matter.

Furthermore, the city solicitor sat in on many of the meetings of the scrutiny
committee. She was therefore fully aware of the declaration that | made at all of the
meetings she was present at. At no point did she ever contact me to explain that she_é
had any concerns about my declaration, ' )

In |ight of the above, and bearing in mind that all members but my committee we're
- aware of my previous employment with SENDIASS as were the members of the
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senior management team within the education department nobody ean suggest that |
was trying to hide anything that might have been considered and influence on my
actions as a member of the scrutiny committee. It was open to.o question or.
challenge the assertions | made in by e-mail. It was also open to her to refer her
concerns to the city solicitor. She chose not to do so. Likewise, the city solicitor being
fully aware of the circumstances of my situation never chose to pursue or action any
concerns with regards to this. )

KRT

| appreciate that one failure to declare an interest in an external organisation might
be considered a misfortune, and that two such failures might be considered careless.
I can only presume that at the time | filled in the declarations of interest form, that |
was focused on organisations that | might be seen as likely to get some benefit from,
such as for instance the ballet. '

| am not pretending that | was unaware of my obligation to declare in interest in both
the POD and the KRT. | have in my previous period as a councillor declared my
interest in the KRT so there is no reason for me to try and hide my association. Both
of these failures to declare an interest are failures that | acknowledge and that | am
happy to remedy.
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Appendix A3

BUNDLE1

 USE OF OFFICER EMAIL ACCOUNT WHILST A COUNCILLOR
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From: IO .—

Sent: " 31Algust2022 1458 - . ST ".' o
To: o Des Hughes o : . : i
subject: - _'REwell . ’

ike the response form-responsel

' From Des Hughes <Des Hughes@blrmlngham gov. uk>
Sent: 31 August 2022 12:47 -

 Subject: welll

Just for info, but reallv, the salt assessment was delayed because the therap!st was iri school in the afternoon and he
was In the morning. Clearly the parents fault. : : : :

.We ve just had -n the new consenratory Some of the toys we have dacln t Jast ﬂve mlnutes '

* Regards

Des Hughes LT . S .
-Supportofﬁcer S S o L

SEND; [nformatlon, Adwce & Support Sennce (SENDIASS)

The Pod

28 Oliver Street

Birmingham : : : _ .
B7aNX .. - R -

T 0121 464 3390 :
E Des. Hughes@btrmmgham gov uk

N . - T
h . ) ' ‘
- . B . . L
N A . . . . R R :

D
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From: .

Sent: 13 July 2022 15:43 ‘

To: . Des Hughes _ ‘ o
Subject: '

- Attachments: Order 11-07-2022.pdi

From: SENDIST Queries <send@Justice.gov.uk>
Sent: 11 July 2022 15:16 '

{_Dear Parties, ~

o

Please see attached a Tribunal order.”

‘ Regards, 7

Clerk to the Tribunal ‘ : L

-Special Educational Needs & Disabilities Tribunal | Darlington Magistrates’ Court | Parkgate
| Darlington § DL1 1RU S ' o _ ‘ -
Phone: & 01325 289350

Web: www.gov.uldhmcts ,

| 4% HM Courts & Tribunais Service |

For information on how HMCTS uses personal data about you please see:

L/Noteﬁ We do not accept service of documents held on secure external wehsites such as
Egress and Google Docs : o

Here is how I:I_MCTS.uses personal data about you

. This e-mail-and any attachments is intended only for the attention of the addressee(s). Its unauthorised use,
" disclosure, storage.or copying is not periitted. If you are net the intended recipient, please destroy all copies and
 inform the sender by return e-mail. Internet e-mail is not a secure medium. Any reply to this message could be
intercepted and read by someone else. Please bear thatin mind when deciding whether to send material in
response to this message by e-mail: This e-mail (whether you are the sender or the recipient) may be monitored,
recorded and retained by the Ministry of Justice. Menitoring / blocking software may be used, and e-mail content
may be read at any time. You have a responsibility to énsuré laws are not broken when composing or forwarding e-

mails and their contents. - _

: : 1
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First-tier Tribunal Special Educational Needs and Disability

- , o ' Order
o S Appeal By: -
P Against Decision of: Birmingham Local Authori
' Concerning:-

. Hearing date: ' 04/10/2022.

On the 26!01!2022 the Tribunal issued directions to the partres settmg the final hearing
date as 15/07/2022.

The Tribunal has reviewed its listing process and has apphed a flexible timetable to the
appeals currently listed. - The tlmetable has therefore been rescheduled as set out

b helow.

If both parties consider that the appeal could be concluded without an oral hearing,
following consideration of the written evidence only, then they must send their written
. consent to the Tribunal as soon as possible.

Parties are urged to continue to work together to fry to reach agreement in the appeal.
* If the new final hearing date is not convenient to a party.or w1tness then the parties

must liaise together to agree a mutually convenient date and preferably two or three
_‘agreed dates to offer fo the Trlbunal as altematwes to the final hearing date

It is ordered that: |
1. The final hearing currently scheduled for 15/07/2022 is vacated.
2. . The ﬁnal heari'ng is- relisted as a priority hearing to be held on the 04/10/2022.

3. The parties shall send a completed Case Information Form to the Tnbuna! 0
that it is recewed by 12 noon on the 06/09/2022

4. . The LA shall produce a hearing bundle to include the further orders issued and.
- the Case Information Form so that it is received by 12 noon on the 06/09/2022

Judicial Lead FtT SEND.
Date Issued: 11/07/2022

WARNING
Both parties are reminded that failure to comply with any of these directions mayresuit in the

Tribunal using Its powers in Rule 8{4)(a) to strike out all or part of the party’s case or restrlctmg
the party's participation in the proceedlngs
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‘Sent: . - 11 July 2022 08:50 . - - oo
To: . T Des Hughes ’

_ Subject: " RE: SENDIASS Board Meetlng, Monday 18th Julyr 10¢ 00 am, - 11 30a. m.

| am sure we could have an informal chat via Teams of Zoom with some old friends? .

L e R — e i R e i e e e e R A e e

""From Des Hughes <Des. Hughes@blrmmgham gov uk>

" Sent: 08 July 2022 17:41 -
Su‘bject SENDIASS Board Meetmg, Monday 18th July, 10:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m.

: Dear AII

“lam really sorry j about this but dueto unforeseen cwcumstances the board meetmg scheduled for Monday 18“‘ of.

. July has had to be cancelled | am sorry for any mconvemence\thrs may cause. We will be in touch

. Regards -
. _Dés Hughes . -

701214543390 T e
EDesHuehes@bwml_thameovuk IR S o S

R -
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Sent: o, 200une20221017 - T
To: . - Des Hughes "~
Subject: .. - _ - . RE Emailing SEN data Jan 2022 set. pdf

A

cant get it to print ahy colours!!
_ will try again when rushing less

" From: Des Hughes <Des. Hughes@blrmmgham gov uk>
Sent: 20 June 2022 09:32

Subject RE: Emalllng SEN data Jan. 2022 sec. pdf

Whats makmg it lnellglble? Is it cuttlng off an edge or somethmg Ilke that? -
Sent: 20 June 2022 08:19
* " Sublect: FW: Emailing SEN déta Jan 2022 sec.pdf |
. I_caﬁtgettﬁié_j:o pfiﬁt legibly? : R _ ‘ o o
_ Sent:16June 2022 18:25 =
. Toz _ )
Subject: Emaillng SEN data Jan 2022 sec.pdf ~ . . - - -, L I
- Can you‘gofnparé this to the local data? - 1% -
: " Educatlon & Skllls
v Birmingham Clty Council . A
TeI 07468 904326
P
.\-
. 1
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From: i -
Sent: - C T ., .16 June 2022 12:20 -

fo:. .o DesHughes ,
- Subject: RE S Capautylncrease proposa[s

K IVIanv thanks )

| read the report of the Full Councrl meetmg hahaha

rim rmoitLC L S} e E TS AT

, -From. Des Hughes <Des. Hughes@blrmmgham gov uk>
" Sent: 16 June 2022 12: 15 L )

Su_l:iject:_RE:-SS Capacity Increase proposals .~ .. o

{ 'Ar;recruested. _

VRS O

: '-_-Iéro}m
- Sent:’14 June 2022 11:16 . '
- To: Des Hughes <Des. Hughes@birmin ham ov.uk>

Cc:
Subject. SS Capacity Increase proposais

5

- 'h’rtgs [[blrmmghem cmis.uk. com/brrm|ngham/Meetrngs/tabld/?O/ctl(;:\/iewmeetih’gPLib_litlmid/BQ?/Meet'ineklz_’;dM : '
-~ Committee/2 SelectedTab Dccuments'DefauIt aspx . - - oo o o

- Des_ '
‘ Further 10. my e mall thIS mornmg can you separate the two reports herem Baskerwlle (91—112')_,enc_1' Pines (233-
254) and- save them as documems in the folder on shared dnve? : _: IR T

( iENDlASS 7
dugation & Skills Dlrectorate )

Blrmmgham CItV Councul . Co ‘ -l
ThePOD - -
*280IwerStreé’_ﬁ ’ e . L L
* Nechells -~ - g ST o ' S
‘ Blrmlngham | S s e ; |
. Page390of172 .
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!
|

Crome 00 D

Sent: . R 07 June 2022 09:03 . -

Tor ;" .. * """ DesHughes. -
Subject: . - FW: Linlc |
Are yoti in POD at all this week? If so, can you.print'.thes_e pages from cabinet Agenda?
rrom: (D -
: 06 Jun 2 19 - L
subject: RE: Link
I need prmt out of pages 139-223. Can collect at the meetlng on 10“’? .
Shall | ask Des to do? : :
| qmm. _ - '
" Sent;
Ter . : — el
© Subject:FW;link . . . S
https J/blrmmgham cmis.uk. com/b|rm|ngham/Meetlngs/tabldﬁ()/ctl/vlewMeetlngPubl:c[m:d[397[Meetmg[12300[
LT CommltteeZZZSelectedTab[Documents[DefauIt aspx T o . T
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From: - o G ST

Sent: B " 23 May 2022:09:14
To: S ~ Des.Hughes -
Subject: o RE: Scheduled SENDIASS Board Meetings

This is not a bank holiday?‘ls it Th_ursday and Friday 'insteadﬁ’

From Des Hughes <Des Hughes@birmmgham gov, uk>
Sent' 17 May 2022 18:51 . - ) .
Subjeét: Scheduled SENDIASS Board Meetings : o o e . _
. Dear All,

. These are the .dates for our meetmgs for the rest of thrs academlc year lf you would note these dates in i/o‘ur diaries
-that would be appreuated e : S C
30" May, 10:00'a.m. till 11:30 a.m.
20 June, 10:00 a.m. till 11:30 a.m.

© 11 luly, 10:00 a.m. till 11:30 a.m.

]

. Regard:s
Des Hughes‘
_T:0121 464 3390 .
.E: Des. Hughes@blrmmgham gov.uk
L3
! i
.
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From: L , ' ' o »
Sent: - L 12 July 2022 09:28 - LT

To: ' - Councillor Des S Hughes _ o N

Subject: L. FW:LGO - o R

Attachments: : LGO July22 Out of School - def S .

Des ) _

This- reports is about ch:ldren out of school - there are dozens in Bham - _ . o

rror: (D

Sent: 07 July 2022 09:23

As DCS if she has read it? .“'mﬂggﬁjmy;;;_$;;Q“z;I o

. Subject: LGO .

SENDIASS - -

Education & Skills Dlrectorate
Birmingham City COUr'ICIl

The POD e
© 28 Oliver Street . =~ .- i
‘Nechells . . Lo o
E Birmingham . : . . _
B74ANX o : _ _ -
e mail: - ' : .
. www.birmingham.gav.uk/SENDIASS -

. v
- :
o
’ .
’
1
:
I
\
N
, ;
M -
‘.I -

1
" \Page 42 of 172



Appendix A4

" BUNDLE 2

- FAILURE TO DISCLOSE INTEREST AS A TRUSTEE OF THE
SHlNE@NECHELLSPOD
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e

Extract from Charities Commission ‘website showing that DH has been a Trustee for Nechells POD

since July 2018

' (Direct link: https://régister—of—chari’cies.char.itvcommjssion.éov.uk/_charity-seafch/—/chari_tx)_-

detaiIs/SO@BB?D/trusfeés).‘ .

Pt LY CHARITY COMMISSION
\RLLS FOREMGLAND ANDWALES

Ahout the reg'sier ot chari ﬁes

Charity number: 1162038

SHINE@NECHELLSPOD

Trustees are the people responslbie for controlling the ﬁnrk. nanagement and adminlstration of the

English  Cymin=g

___Logjntodiai

A Charity reporting is up Lo
date (on Hime)

Charity overview
P What who, how . charity on beh?[f ofits beneficiaries. Generally trustees ara treasurer. chalr, board member er.c.'l_'he
i ' 4 » | trustees are resgonslble for keeping this Ust up to date and can do ihls by updating theirdetallsas .
where they hapien thrdugh the online service T :
Governance | 6T[li_stge(s) . : ‘
- Trusteas S _ o R . : . .
. '.Fll;andal b st;)ry | Name A " Rale Date of Other ) Reporting status of athar
S : _appolntment frusteeshlps . gru'steeshlps .
. . Accounts and T T — ] -
annual returns . MNorah Ann Flynn - Trustee ;g iznuary Nong on ,-gl.:?r.r_[ o
Gioverning - ' — - -
" dacument Suzanne Cross Trustea 29 lanuary Norie on.recar(
. C 2020 T
_ Contact : e _ : -
_ - Information MICOLAPLUMMER  Trustee 18 September *Nana on recard
' ' C . 2m8 -
Counclllor Désmond  Trustee 17 July 2018 BIRMINGHAM  Received: Onfime
| Hughes -~ - o ROYAL BALLET - o
_PAULANDHEW Trustee 0SJune2015  THEKING'SWAY . Recelved: On time
*| FREEMAN - Lo CHURCHCENTRE .~ CEE
. _ - .| REVERENDFATHER - Trustee 05 June 2016 Mone onrecord’
( - : R ’ SOLOMON ) :
' ' . TESFAMICAEL
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]

0

t 3 @ 5 neetissdanibeapl
1 '

‘Chair of Trustees
PoLd Fraemin -

A

Trustee
Hieel3 Fluraier
- —

Trustee
Fathsr Sal0mon GRabrsy -
- ————

" Trastee -

Extract from Trustee's reports fory/e3

'

Nechells

: httgs:[[www.néchellsgod-.com[abodt{trusteesz' : '

- ’ . sea w0

Trusteés

e ¥ it | TR N

Trustee

Koraa Hyml T o radlan A

. t - -

Trustee Recenl Fosts
Swapnd 0w - st v
Trustee Categories
Dove pobartcon - . - =
- - rma
' - -
1Y
3
mty
s ‘

1 Augﬁst__2'02,1 WhiC‘h shows D Hﬁghes asa Truéte_e; o

.
Ezreran Tim Cometunty Togatha

TR Nechells POD

‘frustee’s Report -

' - - .
For tiie yaor ending 317 August 2021 ] . st .

Thetrustees present thelr repart and financtel statements for the yeor ended 31 August 2021:

The accounts have'been pmparéd {n accordance with the accounting pollclas set out in note
* . 1tothe accouns and comilly with the cliarity's governing document, the Companies Act 2006

and the Stptement of Recommended Practlcs, "Accounting and Reparting ty Charitlas”,

issué'_r[_llj' March 2005.

Stiucture, g ce and mansgement -
The organlsation is a Ct ity Interest Company {Ne

chells PODY fimited by puarantee

Incosporated o0 77 Mey 2012 and a Charftable Incorporated Qrganlsation”

. - {SHINE@¥lechellsPODj reglstored on the 5% of une 2015.
Tho wustees, who are also the directors for the purpose

durlngll.he yearand up wthe date of signature of the flnancial statements weres

Mr P Freeman {halr afTrosteas
Mi RWalkar - _
Father Solomon Ghebray
Mg Sophle Todd
M O Hughes
Ms N Plummer
Mrs Suzanne Cross
.+ - MrsNFflynn
. MrDTohertson

of company faw, and wha served
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SHINE@NechelsPOD

Company registration number: CE003479
" Charity registration mumber: 1162038

(A émﬁpqﬁy limited by guarantee)
Annual Report and Financial Sfatements

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 '

Bissell & Brown Midlands Limited
Chartered Certified Accountants
Charter House
56 High Street
Sutton Coldfield
West Midlands

"B721U01
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

Contents (continued)

Reference and Administuative Details ' : ‘ S 1
Project Manéger‘s‘Report ' ' S | o - - 2605
l_'Trﬁstees’ Repart : _ . © 7 6ton
Statcm‘cut of T.mstees' Responsibﬂiti'éss | . ~ 9
Independent ﬁyarniner's ﬁepon ) ‘ 10
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| . Balance Sheet . ‘ . o - . 12

Notes to the Pinancial Staternerits ' o S .  13t023
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Tru_stees
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‘Accounfanis

SHINE@NechellsPOD
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P Freeman

S Tesfamicael
D Hughes -
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N A Flynn

s Cross‘

D Ro_l)ertson

The POD

28 Oliver Street
Nechells
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West Midlands
B74NX
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. 1162038

Bissell & Brown Midlands Limited
Chartered Certified Accountanis
Charter House :
56 High Street

Sntton Coldfield

" West Midlands
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

Project Manager's Report

. Nechells POD got off 10 2 great start this year with Geoff, the Tegular volunteer gardener, starting a monthly volunteering
session to encourage other volunteers to support his work in the POD garden and upskill volunteers. Birmingham Open
. Spaces Forum began delivering Tai Chi in Bloomsbucy Park with Neiphbourhood Network Scheme funding, however,
oere was only one participant, It was decided that Steve, the facilitator, would use the community room from February,

Sleare Shack, an Active Wellbeing Society project, have increased their Tortnightly visits to weekly visits. Local citizens
continue to borrow items ranging from sports equipment, board Rames, gardening items and household equipment, The -
Aclive Wellbeing Saciety also started a new course, Women's Wellness, which comsisted of Zumba & Bollywood style
daneing, ending with some yoga style and meditation exercises. This ran for six weels, :

access malernity care, register online, and provide a tablet s0-ladies can access their Badger notes. Due to the lead

Community Midwife being reassigned to another role, she has had Limited time o al locaie to this role, therefore we have

not held the activities that were planned, We continue to. offer support for newly pregnant ladies in accessing matemity

services, and can still'provide access to digital equipment. In recent weeks, Beth Bailey has been representing voluntary

* sector services for the Kingstanding, Erdington and Nechells Primaty Care Network as part of the Birmingham and
Solihull Integrated Care System co-design for Neighbouthood Tntegration Organisational Development Programme.
Birmingham Centre for Aris Therapy started delivering 1:1 att therapy with a community member follotving safeguarding
and PREVENT concerngs being made by POD staff. The Pparticipant attended untj] Christmas, but this was only 4 out of 6
sessions. BCAT currently deliver weekly Arts in Health courses, in partnership with Bloomsbury Iibrary. Bloomsbury

_Library continues to run from Nechélls POD, and the Library Assistant delivers weekly Tots Time sessions with
pte-school aged childten and their parent/carer. . ‘

Energy has continued, and the POD Welfare Officer has sapported approximately 400 people from different ethnicities
and genders above the age of 18 years. The Welfare Officer has spent 249.27 hours with clients and given a total of 413.17 -
hours of advice, support and guidance. These advice sessions have equated to maximising the income for Nechells
citizens, totalling £1 2,064 via accessing the household support fund, fuel vouchers, local welfare provision and assisting®
with household bills and dcbis. ' : ' )

During the Chrisimas holidays, two days of children’s Christmas craft sessions were held and 60 children attended. The
children and their families also attended a trip each to either Cadbury World or the Santa Safari at West Midlands Safari
Park. The funding for the Christmas holiday activities was provided by Street Games Holiday Activity Fund. The children

February half tecm activities were provided by POD staff, Hatley completed four arts and cragis Sessions, and Cb.meron_
completed five physical activity sessions. We also visited Amerion Parm and Railway. In parmership with the Canal and’
. River Trust and The Active Wellbeing Society, we had a Tamily walle and litter pick along the canal. The Active

Wellbeing Society also delivered & Spouts event on the car park to finish the week of activities. . '

World Baok Day saw the launch of Storytime Club delivered for 6 weeks by myself, 15 children attended each week witir
activities based upon a different book which was read at the start of each session including Flat Stanley, Much Ado About
Nothing and The Story of Saint Patrick, : : :
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' The Baster holiday activities were funded by the Street Games Holiday Activity Fund programme. We delivered 3 days of
arts & crafts, physical activity and food education over the week and ended with a trip to Conkers. '

STEM Club started in May with iwo, one hour sessions. Monday for key stage 1 childres and Thursday for key stage 2
children. Between 10 & 12 children attended each session and have enjoyed activities such as a pollinator hurit, growing
flowers for the PoliNation project, fruit picking and bridge building. At the end of the course all the children who atterided
were awarded STAR CREST awards who also provided funding for the STEM club, The children then atlended the
PoliNation planting weekend and we gratefully received a £150 voucher to use at a garden ceatre to improve our own

garden.

- Ori the 24th May we wei¢ given ticketa to attend a chatity football game at Villa Park, where Gowling é;t;plqyccs played a
series of short games against Aston Villa employees, Perry the Bull made an-appegrince aad free food and drink was
supplied. 14 participants from the POD attended. ' R L ' g

" The 25th July saw the start of 1his year’s swmrmier holiday sctivity programme with funding provided by Street Games
Holiday Activity Funding. Three days of activities each week were delivered and continued for 5 weeks. Staff feedback

" has showa this worked well as it was less intense and provided more time for preparation and cleaning. There were more

non-attendances than previous years though and this is probably because we tried to have different families each week to
“have a wider impact haowevér many families forgot which week they were registered for or didn’t answer their phones
when we called to remind them, The activities delivered ingluded atts and crafts, physical activity, fuod education, aipaca
visit, dance, dinosaur visit ahd activities, skipping and Afiican drumming. ‘We also went on some day trips to-Stourport,

Blackwell Adventure, Alton Towets, Stratford upon Avon and Weston Super Mare.

Unfortunately, this year three regular members of the Friends in Nechells (FINS) group have passcd away and we are ’

" looking ‘at purchasing 4 bench for the garden to add plaques with Peggy’s, Danny’s and Sandra’s names on. The FilNS
decided that fhey would have their Christmas party at Nechells POD with 20 participants and everyone enjoying

themselyes with a buffet, quiz and bingo, In March, 10 of the regular FiNs went on a trip to Planters Garden Centre in

" Tamworth, whete they browsed the retail areas and had lunch. The following week the FiNs visited Oakdene Nurseries for
a workshop to make concrete mosaics for the Covid Peace Garden in Birmingham City Centre. {n Tune the FiN$ visited
the Designer Outlet Centre in Cannock and had an afternoon looking round the shops and having Yunch.

On the 6th Tuly, West Midlands Mayor Andy Street visifed the POD for a lunch with the f-'iNs. The FiNS asked fantastic '

questions and held conversations with Mr Street, and he praised the staff and trustees for daing a fantastic job. Mr Streel
explained that he had been in consultation with Michael Gove about public funding being made available for the voluntary
~ sector, to deliver the numerous public services which we cnrrently do without funding. At the time, the Government was
turbulent and resulted in another new Prime Minister. ' . i

Birmingham Museums have been involved with numerous things at The POD this year. Two members of the museum

archive staff attended Place of Welcome with artefacts, and later organised a trip for the FiNs to the Duddeston Archives .

Store Museum. An employment and volunteer coordinator from Think Tank also attended the POD job club to discuss
cutrent vacancles for paid staff, volunteers and work experience they have available throughout -all of the Birmingham

Museums.

We welcomed students back from UCB after placements had been suspended due to the Covid pandemic. Two air cabin

crew students joined us for a two-weck placement to improve bospitality and communication skitls which they did by
serving refreshments at Place of Welcome and eoffee morning. Beauty studens also came to do free facial, hand massages

and nail painting for 2 afternoons which was very well supported. We also welcomed a sociology student from

Birmingham City University for a 12-week social setting placement.

A diabetes awareness workshop was delivered by Parveen from Communities, Engage and Thrive during a Place of -

Welcome session in February this started a new partnership and resulted in. 2 Commonwealth Foad event being held-in

June which included cooking demonstrations, African drumming, healthy food snacks and an opportunity for peaple to .

come together. 300 people attended and we welcomed Midlands Today to.do a live news report from the event. From
September, Parveen delivered an 8~week Diabetes course specifically for people who were already diagnosed or in the
pre-diabetic category. Blood tests were completed at the end of the course to see whether changing lifestyles and ealing
healthier, lowered the blood sugars compared to the start of the course. * ' .
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We had over 400 books donated to ys by the 'Nz_ttional Literaéy Trust which we distibuted to families on World Book
Giving Day, 14th February. We received another donation of books and were able to do a second baok giveaway during _

the summer holidays.

benefit and cnergy advice, and a visit from White Dee (Benefits Street) to promote the new group, and attendance has
been at full capacity. However due lo YMSN not being able to source funding for the confinuation of the group, it folded

" In March the first Community- Policing Team meeting was held following the Covid pandem{c with a large ‘attendance -
from mermbers of the community and other organisations working within Nechells. We also had a visit from the Early
Years Support Officer from Birmingham City University at job ¢lub to deliver a workshop fo encourage people to start a

career in Barly Years Education. This included providing free training and education,

In April I was made a Community Research Fellow at Birmingham City University. The POD received a £2,500 grant
awarded to complete a research project titled “How ean barrjers preventing men from participafing in activities be
reduced?’. Two focus groups were held at Nechells POD to discuss the opinions of men and women as to why men do not

Pparticipate in’activities. On completing the research; a weeldy Men’s Only group has been formed and activities such as
~ gardening, table tennis, board games and a weeldy walk. The group have also made future plans to develop the group and
what activities fo include, . . . .

All of the POD staff and trustees were delighted to win the West Midlands Community Inspiration Award for Community
Reassurance, This was voted for by members of the community and was a privilege for us to know that all the hard work
we do to improve the lives for-Nechells residents is appreciated. The whole team are very proud and enjoyed eelebrating at
the awards ceremony. POD staff completed annual safeguarding braining including exira Designated Safeguarding Lead
training for myself and our Welfare Officer. First Aid and Fire Marshal training was also completed and was also attended
by two SENDIASS employees, S -

Two migration focus groups were held by research fellows from Birmjligham ‘City University. Migration: Policy &
Practice who are completing research in and around Nechells currently. Tn Juiie we welcomed Savannah, Wellbeing
Coordinator from Refuges' Action to a Place of Welcome session to meet POD atféndees who' énjoyed telling Savannah
about’all the different activities we offer, Our Welfave Officer has completed ‘specialist immigration training via the -
Refogee Action in September to enable further support and signposting being available to refiugees and asylum scekers in
" Nechells, A small grant has also been received to offer extra services and activities for'local refugees and asylum seekers.
Our Welfare Officer held g Housing Event on Friday 27th May. This was very well atiénded by local community members
and also Ttad ' ’

Both our community members and the professionals involved commented how useful it was:having everyone in oné Space
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The Great Get Together was another successful June cvent. We welcomed the famlly of Johtt Powell to finally show his
~ bench and plaque. John’s wife would like us to run some kind of award cach year in memory of John. Plans for this are
atill ongoing, Refieshments were purchased with funds from Near Neighbouts as we invited local refugee and asylum
_ seekers to attend. Vicky Gayle an investigative journalist, also attended to rescarch the impact of community centres and
spoke to membeys of our community who spoke very highly of the services we provide. :

" On the 29th June Mooville theatrc arrived to perform three shows for prc-schodl aged children. 6 children and
- parent/carers attended each session and interacted really well with the cast of the show, . C

Joseph Chamberlain College completed.a full year of ESOL classes covering pre-entry, Entry Level 1 and 2 and Level 1.
Numeracy, From Septeniber they returned with 10 sessions of ESOL classes per week based solely in the youth room,
now Covid restrictions have been reduced. All sessions are at full capacity. A pre, pre-eniry level course hag also started in
September at the Hape Centre delivered by Aura, Digital skills sessions also started in September. Tea and T'internet is
delivered by Digikick staff which encourages attendees to learn how to navigate computers and the internet in an informal
environment whilst enjoying a cup of tea and refreshments with likeminded individuats. The Workers Education
Association have also returned to the POD from September to deliver 2 weekly sewing for charity sessions. These
sessions are also at full capacity and participants are working towards making items to sell and donate to a charity of their

choice. .

On the 2nd August we helda joint event with Easiside Events. This was to showcase a small movie mads by af artist from
South Africa, Thenjiwe Miki Nkosi, about the Commoniwealth Games and discrimination in athletics. Refreshments were
provided, and children had arts & cralls activities and used the equipment purchased with the -Aston Villa Foundation
funding. We also used this opportunity to complete the community consultation element for our Games We Play in
Nechell$ project and our Garden Design project. Lots of ideas were shared ready to move forwaid with the projects in
September. We were also able to form two new parinerships for future collaboration, Bertz Associates who are currently
. ‘working .on film projects relating fo the Tower Ballropm, and Bitmingham Improv, who held a free improvisation
workshop at the POD to build self-confidence in September. We have received funding from National Grid to rejuvenate
the garden and playground, including Oliver Owl and we were also given claret and blue picces of the gas towers which
. have now been re_moved from Windsor Street. We look _forward to working with the Princes Trust to carry out the work i

. the garden in Oclober. -
Nechells POD remains at the heart of Nechells and'we are ever grateful for the support given from our funders including

The Henry Smith Foundation, the National Lottery Commbunity Fund, HS2, Armold Clark, Birmingham City Council, local
 citizens, POD trustees and all of our parinership prganisations, ‘and look forward to another year of helping Nechelis

SHINE, ,

o

- 08/02/2023 at 2:69:01 PMUTG.

B Bailey .
. Project Manager
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'SHINE@NechellsPOD
Trustees' Report

The trﬁstees, wlho'arc directors for the purposes of company law, present the annual report together with the financial .
statements of the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2022, :

Trustees - : ' : ' !
P Freeman ' ' '

S Tesfamicael .

R Walker (deceased 3 Junc 2022)

D Hughes ' _

S Todd (resigned 30 November 2021) S ,

i N Plun_lmer ' '

N A Flynn .

S Cross .

~ D Robertson (appointed September 2021)

Objectives and activities - = - . : I
Objects and aims . :
The objects of the Charity inctude:

To develop the capacity and skills of the members of the suciallyrand eéonoinjcally disadvantaged community of Nechells
in such a way that they are better able to-identify and help meet their needs and Participate more fully in society,

To promote so. _
teeds of those people who are socially excluded and assisting them to integrate into society. For the purposes of this . -
object ‘sacially excluded’ means being excluded from sociely, or patls of society, as 2 result of one or more of the
following — youth, age, disability, financial hardship, il health, unemployment, substance abuse; discrimination on the'
grounds of ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, religion ot poor educational or skills attainment. '

" To advance education, lraihing and development in such ways as the frustees thiink fit,

Public benefit

The activities undertaken to further public benefit stated in the objectivesof the charity, can be found in the Achicvements
and Performance section of this repott. : '

The trustees confirm that they have complied with the i'equirements of section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regerd to the public benefit guidance published by the' Charity Cornmission for England and Wales, :

Structore, governance and management

-

. Nature of governing document o T . L
The goveming document covering the chatity i CIO - Foundation Registered dated Sth June 2015.

Recruitment and appointment of rustees

Existing trustees and employees can propose the recruitment and appoiniment of new trustees which would be puttoa
meeting of the existing trustees and senior employees. . ' ‘

Organisatlonal structure
The charity is an incorporated charitable organisation.
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Achievements and performance : . .

The year 2021 to 2022 has been one in which the life of the POD commuuity has returned back to a more normal
situation, as all the restrictions of the previous Covid!9 years were lifted and we gained confidence to get together again
in ever greater numbers. The POD team, ably led by Beth Bailey, has gelled well aver this year and together they have
developed and challenged themselves to get cver better at what they do, so that the sexvice which the POD offers to the
Nechells community has not deteriorated as a'result of the depaiture of some key personnel last year. They have ensured
that the needs of the local neighbourhood have been met by identifying and then meeting those needs with all their
tesources. They have also taken full advantage of events like the Commonwealth Games in Birmingham to put on some

spectacularly large events which have brought together many from the surrounding arca,

Trustees, Rob Walker, who passed away very suddenly and who will be missed greatly. Rob had been a trustee sinoc we '
first became a charity in.2015. We will be marking his life and contribution, to the POD aver the next year. '

We have had some very sad events during the year including the loss of some of our FIN: and one of our long 'standing )

Looking forward: from this moment ‘in time, we have many challenges to face going forward. Some of our significant

" funding came to an end this year, and we are working hard to secure further funds in order for us to secure the future of

the POD, We also have the same challenge as the rest of the country with increased costs from energy and materials in
general, We dre going to have to work hard and imaginatively to adapt to these future issues.

We want to highlight again the clear S-yr VISION which we created in 2019 with the ultimate vision of creating the best

future for the POD. We will continue to focus on the actions we need to do to bring that Vision into reality. The VISION
isfor: - . ' - .
1. A strengthened team with full time management

2. Increased opening hours ’ :

3. New library with café

4, More volunieer' opportunitics:

5. New funding streams

6. Working with refugees

7. More elder activities

8. Operi access and training inIT

9. A wider range of unrestricled activitics '

10. Extended Job Club offering '

11. Activities for men h

12 Extended family activities

13. Some company sponsorship

14. A sustdinable future )

Trustees and staff are working hard to ensyre that the woik of the POD brings about life improvements for as many of the
residents of Nechells that we can and T want to thank our POD tearn, my fellow trustees and the many pariner
organisations with whom we work: for il their energy, skill and knowledge which enables us to achieve the successes
which have been pained aver this- Jast year and led to us winning the Community Reasgurance Award for. comtunity .
support during the Covidl9 pandemic, this was. awarded to the charity at a regional Comumunity Inspiration of 2022
awards event. ' oo o

Tinancial review

 The Charity continued on from the previeus year in generaling a substantial amount of funds to support the community of

Nechells, in Birmingham. Se¢ note 13 of the financial statetents for a breakdown of the funds teceived for the various |
projects during the past two years. : ) . e

Policy on reserves

. The Commuyity Fund thte_ry and Henry Smith funding grant hoth finished in 2022. De.s;lgn-ated reserve funds held in

SHINE@NechellsPOD's sustainability fond will enable the Charity to continue to function and pay staff salaries in the
sheri term. _ i .
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Financlal instrumeiits

Objectives and policies o .

. The charity's activities expose it to 2 number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. The
use of financial derivatives is governed by the charily’s policies approved by the board of trustees, which provide written
principles on the wse of finaacial derivatives fo manage these risks. The charity does not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes. ' ' ‘

Cash flow risk

"The chatity’s activitios expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Interest bearing assets and
liabilities are held at fixed rate to. ensure certainty of cash flows. : ’

Credit risk

The charity’s principal financia assels are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and investments,

. Thé charity’s credit risk s primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented jn the balance sheet are ‘
net of allowances for doubiful receivables, An allowance for impaitment is made where there is an identified loss event
which, based on previous expetience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows,

The credit risk on ﬁquid funds and derivative financial inaﬁ'umcnts is limited because the counterparties ere banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by intemational eredit-rating agencies.

The charity has no-significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
cuslomers. ’ .. ' -

‘Liquic_iiw risk 7 .
Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the Statement of accounting policies in the financial statements,
The annual report was approved by the trustees of the chatity on 8 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

= SIGNED SECLURELY
@1 neeanan
1310212023 at 2:28;53 PM UTS

P Freeman

Yehien SEGURELY
eran F
~—~ 100212023 al 8:45:13 PM TG
N A Fiynn
Trustee
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The trustees (who are also the directors of SHINE@NcchellsPOD for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the United Kingdom Accounting Standards
- (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. I

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial staternents for each financial year. Under company law the trustees
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, inchuding its income and

expenditure, for that period. In prepasing these financial statements, the ‘trustees are required to:

« gelect suitable accounting policies and apply them conmstcntly;'
+ obscrve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
» make judgements and estimates that aré reasonable and prudent;

- . state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subjec_:t"to any matériai depariures disclosed
and explained in the fm_ancial statements; and o . .
+ preparc the financial statements on the going concern basis unléss it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business. ' )
The {rustees are respongible-for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position af the charitdble company:
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
- for safeguarding the asscls of the charitable company and hence for taking Teasonable steps for the prevention and
- detection of fraud and other irregularities, C

Approved by the trustees of the charity on 8 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by
— §1GNE SECURELY : ! B
F aul. Lt

121021202 3t 2:28:53 PMAITG

P Frecrnan
Trustee
SIGNED SEGURELY
onan T
10/0212023 a1 8:45:13 PMUTC

N A Flyon
Trustée
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' SHINE@NechellsPOD
Independent Examiner's Report to the trustees of SHINE@NechellsPOD

I veport to the charity ﬁuahes on my examination of the accounts of the charity for thé year ended 31 August 2022 which
are set out on pages 11 to 23, - . .

Respective responsibilities of tfnstees and examinéy ‘ _

As the charity’s trusices of SIjIINE@NecthsPOD {and also its directors for the purposes of company law) you are
responsible for the preparation of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (‘the 2006
Act), ' ] _

Having satisfied myself that the accounis of SH[NE@Ne;:heIlsPOD are not required to be audited under Part 16 of the
2006 Act and are eligihle for independent cxamitation, I report in respect of my examination of your charity’s aceounts as
carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011 (“the 2011 Act’). In carrying out my cxamination I have followed
the Directions given by the Charity Cemmission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Aet.

Independent examiner’s statement . _

Since SHINE@NechellsPOD's gross income exceeded £250,000 your examiner must be a member of a body lisied in
scotion 145 of the 2011 Act. [ confirm that I am qualified io undertake the examination because I am a member of ACCA,
Which is one of the listed bodies, : ; ' ' ) .

I have compieted my examination. I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with fhe
- examination giving me cause to beljeve: : T

1. accounting records were ‘not kept in respect of SHINE@NechellsPOD as required by section 386 of the 2006 Act; or
2. the accounts do not accord with those records; or ’

Recommended Prachice for accounting and reparting by charities [applicable (o charitics preparing their accounts in

accardance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Républic of Ireland (FRS 102)).

I have no concems and have oome across no other matters in connection with the examination to which attention should
be drawn in this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts to be reached,

e Yoot 1l

ell & Brown Mldlands Limited
Chartered Certified Accountants
ACCA

Charter House

" 36 High Street
Suiton Coldficld
West Midlands
B72 111
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: - Statement of Fin
(Including Income and Expenditure Acco

- Income and Endowments from:

Tionations and légacies
Other trading activities

Total income

Expendifure on: -
- Charitablé activities
Other expenditure

Total expenditure

Net inqomel(expendipue)
. Net movement in funds -
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brougﬁt forward

. 'I_‘o;al funds carried forward -

Income and Endowments from:

Donations and legacies
Other trading activities
Total income

Expenditure on:
Charitable activilies

Total expenditure

Net income

Transfers between funds
Net movemendt in fonds
Reconcili'ation. of funds
Total funds .brought forward

“Total funds carried forward

All of the charity's activities derive from contimu

~ The notes on pages 13 to0 23 form

' SHINE@NechellsPOD

ancial Activitié_s for the Year Ended 31
unt and Statement of Tota

August 2022
1 Recognised Gains and

Losses)
. Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2022
Note £ g £
72,147 118,897 191,044
. 76,235 s 76,235
148382 118,897 267,279
(40,219) (136,133) (176,352)
5 . (305) - (305)
(40,524) (136)33) _ . (176,657)
107,858  (17236) 90,622
107,858 (17,236) 90,622
. 160,851 71,704 232,555
14 268,709 54,468 323,477
" Unrestricted Restricted Total
] funds funds 2021
Note - £ £ £
© 3 171,178 136,282 307,460
11,957 - 11,957
183,135 136,282 319,417
(D (107,146) (184,877)
(77,731) (107,146) (184,877)
105,404 29,136 134,540
(63) 63 -
105,341 29,199 134,540
55.510 42,505 98,015
4 160,851 71,704 232,555
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

(Registration number: CE003479)
Balance Sheet as at 31 Aupust 2022

© 2082 2021
Note £ ‘ : £
Fixed assets : ‘ ' " o
Tangible assets . . . 10 1,220 . 1,525
‘Current assets _ o ' ) | : :
Debtors _ ' : 11 20,046 66,845
Cash at bank and in hand D S, 12 396,300 256,638
' . ‘ 416,346 323,483
. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 13 94,389 92,453
Net current asseis . L o 7 _ 321,957 231,030
Net assets ‘ . 323,177 - 232,555
* Funds of the charity:
Restricted income funds . o
Restricted funds ‘ . - 14 54,468 - 71,704
Unrestricted income funds _ ' ' ' ' -
‘Unrestricted funds - . . 268,709 160,851
Total funds o ' 14 - . 33177 232,555

For the financial year ending 31 August 2022 the cﬁarity was entitled to exemption from aundit under section 477 of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies, : . :

Directors' responsibilities: : .

* The members have not requited the charity to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in accordance
with section 476; and - : T - : - oo

* The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to
accounting records and the preparation of accounts. oo . - -

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small

commpanies regime. _ :

The financial statements on pages 11 to 23 were appmveci by the trusteé‘s, and authorised for issue on 8 February 2023 and
signed on their behalf by ‘ . '

‘[ SIGNED BECURELY ; . : SIGNED SECURELY
E_ut- :imwu_n. ) ELM ftgfuu
12/02/2023 at 2:28:59 PN UTC , ‘ 10/02/2023 at 8:48:13 PM TG

. The notes on pages 13 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Endeﬁ 31 August 2022

1 Charity status .

The charity is fimited by guaranies, incorparated in England and Wales , and zonsequently does not.have share capital.
Each of the trustees is liable to contribute an amount not exceeding £1 towards the assets of the charity in the event of
liguidation. .. : ' -

The rddress of its registeted office is:

The POD ' '

28 Oliver Sirect

Nechells

Birmingham

‘West Midlands

B7 4NX

j‘h:se financial statements were authorised for issuc by the trustees on 8 Febfuaty 2023,

2 Accounting policies

Summary of ;ignlﬁcan-t accounting policies and key accounting estimates _
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out helow. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated: t - . .

Statement of compliance : S o ' C .
" The financial statements have been prepated .in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK .and Republic of Tréland (FRS 102) (effective. 1 January 2015) - {Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). They also comply with

_the Companies Act 2006 and Charities Act 2011.

Basls of pt"eparati-on . T .
SHINE@NechellsPOD meels the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. Assets and liabilities are initially
recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy notes.

I

“The ﬂnénqial gtatements are prepared in GBP Sietling, and rounded to the nearest pound.

Going concexn - : . , . ) )
The trystees consider that there are no material uncertainties about the charity's ability to continue as a going conceth nor

any significant areas of uncertainty that affect the carrying value of assetd held by the charity.

" Exemption from preparing a cash flow étatemept . ‘ .
The charity opted to early adopt Bulletin 1 published on-2 February 2016 and have therefore not ineluded a cash flow

gtatement in these financial statements.

Income and endowments . . . ‘ . )
All income is recognised once the charity has entitlemnent to the income, it is probable that the income will be received and

the amount of the income receivable can be measured relisbly.
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Donations and legacies

Donations are recognised when the charity 'has been notified in witing of both the amount and settlement dafe. Ini the -
event that a donation ig subject to conditians that require a level of performance by the charity before the charity is entjtled
to the funds, the incoms is deferred and not recognised until either (hose condifions are fully met, or the fulfilment of
those conditions is wholly within the control of the charity and it is probable that these conditions will be fulfilled in the
reporling period,

* Grants recefvgble

met. Whete performance conditions are attached to'the grant and are yet to be met, the income is recognised as a liability
- anddncluded on the balance sheet as deferred income to be released. : ;

Expenditure A . . _
All expenditure is recoghised once there is a legal or constryctive obligation to that expenditure, it is probable settlement
is required and the amount can be measured reliably. All costs ave allocated fo the applicable expenditure heading that

depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the assel’s use, Other supporf costs are allocated based on the spread of
staff costs, : ) : '

Charitable activities

Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and services for its
beneficiaries. It includes both costs that can be allocated_directly_to such activities- and those costs of an indjrec_t nafure
necessary to support them. ) ' ’ . - :

.

Support costs '

Support casts include centeal funetions and have been allocated to activity cost categaries on a basis consistent with the
use of resources, far example, allacaling property costs by floor areas, or per capita, staff costs by the time spent and ather
costs by their usage. ' . = :

* (zovernance costs _
* These inclade the costs attributable to the charily’s compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements, including
- andit, strategic management and trustees meetings and reimbursed expenses, '

Goverament grants : )
Government grants are recognised when they are received, with a proportion included in acorued incame if there is a
likelihood that all or part of the grant will need to be refunded, . '

Takation . . ; B
The charity is considered lo pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets

the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax burposes. Accordingly, the charity is pofentially exempt
fiom taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapler 3 Part 11 of the
" Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the éxtent that such income or

gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets . ' ) .
Individual fixed assels costing £250,00 or more, are initially recorded at cost.

Page 14

Page 64 of 172 A



SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting palicies (continued)

Deprectation and amortisation : . . . ' _
Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed asseis so as to write off the cost or valuation, less any estimated residual value,
over their expected useful cconomic life as follows: | P

. Asset class _ . . Depreciation method and rite ‘
Tixtures and fitlings . - ) 20% net book value '
_ Trade debtors o

Trade debtors are amounis due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business, - :

" Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subseqﬁently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for jmpairment. A provision for the impairment of trade debtors is established
when there is objective evidence that {he charity will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the ariginal terms

of the receivables.

. N .
Cash and cash equivalents '

Cash and cash equivalents corprise cash on hand and zall dct:osits, and other short-term highly liquid investment.s_- that are .

readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade creditors . . Lo

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary cowrse of business

" fiom suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current linbilities if the does not have an unconditional fight, at the end
of the reporting period, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months after the reporting date. If there is an

. unconditional right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, they are presented as non-current

liabilitics.

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction j:ricc and subsequently measured at a@01'tised cost using the
effective interest method. - oo )

" Fund sfructure

Uneesiricted income fimds are general funds that are available for usc at the trustces discretion in furtherance of the

objectives of the charity. - .

Restricted income funds are those donated for usc in a particolat’ area or for specific. purposes, the use of which is -

restricted to that area or purpose. .

Financial instruments

Classification
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogrised when the charity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument, . o o -
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to. the substance of the contractual arcangements

- entered into, An equily instrument is aoy contract that evidences 2 residual interest in the assets of the charity after
deducting ail of its Tiabilities. x I ) ' : :

o A o Page 15
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

- Notes io the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 A'ugu:strZﬂZZ (conéinued)

2 Accomting policies (continued)

Recognitlon and medasurement:

All financial asscts and Habilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction cqs;ts), except for those
financial assets classified zs at fair vatue tlrough profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value (which is

Financial assets and liahilitics are only offset in the statement of financial position when, and only when there exists a
legally enforceabie right to-set off the recoghised amounts and the charity intends either fo' settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and seitle the liability simuitaneously, ' ' '

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or are settled, b) the charity lransfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, ot c) the charity, despite having retained some, but not all, significant risks and tewards of ownership, has
transterred control of the asset to another party. .

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation-specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Debt instruments !

Debt instruments which meet the fdlloix.-ing-conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost usiﬁg the effective
interest method: '

" (a) The contractual return to the holder is (j) a-fixed amount; (ii) a positive fixed rate or a pasitive variable rate; or (jii) a
combination of a positive or a negative fixed ratc and a positive variable rate. :

{(b) The contract may provide for repayments of the principal or the return to the holder (but not both) to be linked to a
single relevant observable index of general price inflation of the currency in which the debt instrument is denominated,
provided such links are not leveraged. : -

change of a contractual variable rate; (2) to protect the holder against credit deterioration of the issuer; (3) changes in
levies applied by a central bank or arising from changes in relevant taxation or Iaw; or (if) the new rate is a- market rate of
interest and satisfies condition (a). '

"(d) There is ho contractual provision tﬁat could, by its terms, result ih the holder losilfg the principal amount or any

interest attributabie to the current period or prior periods.
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"' Notes to the Financial Statements for the Yeaf Fnded 31 August 2022 (continuec_l)

.
“r

2 Accounting policies {contlnued) o

(f) Coniractual provisions may perniit the extension of the term of the debt instrument, provided that the return to the

*  holder and any other contractual provisions applicable during the extended term satisfy the conditions of paragraphs (a) to
(@ ‘ ‘ ' : : : :

Debt instruments that are classified as ‘payable or receivable within oné year on initial recogpition 'and which meet the

above conditions’ are measured at the udiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or

received, net of impairment. : o -

With the excepﬁon of some hedging instrutnents, other debt instruments not mesting these conditions are measured at fair
valie through profit ot loss.. T . :

Commitments to make and receive loans which meet the conditions mentioned above are measured at cost {which may be
nil) less impairment. '

Investments - . :
Investments in non-convertible preference shares and non—puttable' ordinary or preference shares. {where shares are .
publicly traded or their fair value is reliably measurable) are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Where fair valug
cannot be measured reliably, investments ave measured at cost less impairment. C

Tnvestments in subsidiaries and assoeciates are meaﬁue;i at cost less impairment. For investments in subsidiaries acquired -
for consideration including the issue of shares qualifying for meyger velief, cost is measured by reference to the nominal
value of the shares issued plus fair value of other consideration. Any premium is igriored. _ o :

Derivative financial insfrunrents

The charity uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risic and interest rate movements.
. The charity does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date & derivalive contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each reporiing date. The resulting gain” or loss is fecognised in statement of financial
aclivities immediately unless the derivative s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the fiming
of the recoguition in statement of financial activitics depends on the nature of the hedge refationship. '

Fair value measurement )
The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in ah active market, When quoted prices are
-unavailable, the price of a recent tiansaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not
been a significant change in cconomic cireumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place. If the
market is not active and recent transactions of art identical asset on their own are not a good estimate of fair value, the fair
vahe is eslimated by using a valuation technique. . T ' .

'

3 Income from donations and legacies

Unrestri(ite&. : .
funds " Restricted Total
General . funds funds
. o _ Cg : £ . £
‘Donations and legacies; _ : .
Donations - . . 72,147 118,897 191;044
Total for 2022 72,147 118,897 . 191,044
Total for 2021 4T 136282 307,460

Page 17- '
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' SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

i

4 Expenditui-e on charitable actlvities
Unresirieted

‘funds Restricted © Total
) Other . funds fonds
‘ ) . Note : £ £ . £

Charitable donations ‘ _ o . 260 42,988 42,648
Conimunity activities - - 1,076 - 1,076
. Gavernance costs _ - : 38883 - 93745 132,628
Totalfor2022 © ' 40,219 . 136,133 176,352
Total for 2021 _ e 77,731 107,146 184,877

.- In addition to the expenditure analysed ﬂbove, there are also governdance costs of £132,628 (2021 - £152,007) which relate -
‘ditectly to charitable activities. See note 14 for further details, -

o

5 "Other expenditure

Unrestricted C
funds Total
: Other funds
. Note o T4
Depreciation, amottisation and other similar costs _ ' 305 305
Total for 2022 : : 305 305

6 Trastees remuneration and expenses

During the vear the charity made the following transactions with trustees:

N A Flynn . '

N A Flynn received remuneration of £Nil (2021: £7,500) during the year,

During the year to 31st August 2021, the trustces agreed to pay one of the trustees for the use of her services to cover the
_work of a project managet after one left the employment of the charity, unfil a new appointment was made,

No trustees have received any reimbursed expenses or any other b‘eneﬁts-from the charity during the yeat.

7 Taxation .
The charity is a registered charity and is therefore exempt from {axation,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

8 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs were as follows: ,
' 2022

2021
£ £

Staff costs during the year were: 7
" Wages and salaries 89,745 103,595
Social security costs 4,611 4,090
Pension costs ' 512 1,264
Other staff costs 3,881 - 565
98,749 109,514

The monthly average number of persons .('mcludi-ng senior fmanagement team) employed by the charity during the year

expressed as full time equivalents was as follows:

Page 19
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L2022 2021
. No No
Management and administration 6 6
5 (2021 - 5) of the above empléyees participated in the Defined Coﬁtributipn Pension Schemes.
Contributions to the employee pension schemes for the je.ar totalled £714 (2021 - £1,695). :
- No i_ndividual employee received crholuments of more that £60,000 during thé year,
9 Ind-ependent' examiner's remuneration .
' | 2022 2021
‘ £ £
Other fees to examiners _ ! o
The examining of accounts of any associate of the charity - ' 2,346 2,766




 SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (cointfnued)

10 Tangibl¢ fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2021

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation
At 1 September 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2022

Net boik value

At 31 August 2022
" At 3] Auvgust 2021

il Debtors

Trade dehtors
Prepayments

12 Cash and cash equivalents ‘

Cash at bénk"

-

13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Due to group undertakings

Other creditors
Accruals
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Fornpiture and )
equipment : Total
£ £
1,525 1,525
1,525 1,525
305 305
305 - 305
1,220 1,220
1,525 1,525
2022 2021
£ £
" 20,046 65,160
- ' 1,685
20,046 66,845
- 2022 2021
£ £ o
396,300 256,638
.2022 2021
£ £ -
29,770 10,276
- 76
62,272 80,901
2,347 900
94,389 92,453



' SHINE@NechellsPOD

'Nptes to the Financial Staterﬁents for the Year Ended 31 Aqgust 2022 (¢ontinued)

14 Funds

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds

General
POD Sustainability g
Henry Smith Charity
Celebrating Communities Fund
Denations and grants
Gowling
General Fund

Designated
Mini Bus Faind

“Total unrestricted funds

"Resiricted fumfs

All Of Us T -

Aston Villa Foundation Fund
Community Research Fund -
Doing Things Differently

GOCF - Great Outdoors Community Fund

Happy Healthy Holidays -
‘Heart Of England
Groundworks

NNS .

Talking Tables

Total restricted funds

Total funds -

. Balance at 1

Balanece at 31

September Incoming - Resources
2021 resources expended August 2022
£ - £ £ £
136,768 103,302 (1,276) 233,204
13,206 17,500 (23,629) 7,077
- 5,000 ! - 5’000
10,877 - - 10,877
- 5,000 (1,450) 3,550
- 16,250 (1.774) 8,476
160,851 - 147,552 . (40,129) 268,274
- 830 _(395) 435
160,851 148,382 (40,524) 268,709
48933 47325 © (94,081) 2
- 500 (478) 22
- 2,500 Ce 2,500
2,120 - . 2,120
- , 10,000 - 10,000
- 16,849 -(8,918) 7,931
- 10,000 (10,000) -
1,155 " 12,608 (10,860) 2,903
19,496 14,115 (8,589) 25,022
' ; 5,000 (3,207) 1,793
71,704 118,897 (136,133) " 54,468
232,555 267,279 (176,657) 323,177
i
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes to the Finahcial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

14 Funds (continued)

Unlrestricted funds
General
POD Sustainability
Henry Smith Charity .
_Donations and granis

Restricted
All Of Us
Doing Things Differently
Happy Healthy Holidays
Groﬁndworks '
NNS
Talking Tots

Total restricted funds

Totzal funds:

Balance at 1 'Balance at
September Incoming . Resources 31 Angust ~
2020 resources expended Transfers - 2021
£ £ £ £ - £

39,467 97,301 - - 136,768
16,043 34,750 (37,587)- - 13,206

- 51,084 {40,144) {63) 10,877
55,510 183,135 (77,731} (63) 160,851
22,09 93075 (66,235) ; 48,933
15,260 . (13,140) - 2,120
63) - S 63 -
o= 10,267 (9,112) - L,155
3,397 32,940 C(leg4y 19,496
LBIZ . .- (1,818) : - -
42,505 136,282 (107,146 . 63 71,704
98,015 . 319417 (184,877) - 232,555
1
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7 SHINE@NechellsPOD

Notes-to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

14 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: '
_ Resticted oo ) _ ,

1) All Of Us - In addition to the community activities, the Community Lottery Funds the salary for the Project Manager
and the management of this post, there is also funding included for wtilities and running costs, We were awarded
additional funding, under the New Prospects Project' for a new post as Employment and Welfare Office, to run alongside
the main funding; this covers the salary for 2.5 days pet week for the Welfare and Community Support Role.

;

)] NNS - In addition to the salary for the Project Manager for three days pet week, this funding also includes an amount
for the nse of desk space and support at the POD and payment for meetings, mobile telephones and travel costs.

3)'Ta1king Tots  this was funding which enabled the POD to set up a toy library. The funding for this project has now
ceased. : : : : . '

4) Doing Things Differently - this fundéd an Out of Hours Activity Coordinator {this role ceased on 12th Septémber 2021)
and outdoor equipment (tables and chairs).’ ) ) ' . .

'5) Groundworks/ HS2 - Project Title~ Give and Gain - this fands the salary for the Valunteer Coordinator Post. Thisis a-°

three year post nntil August 2023
‘6) Heart of England - Provided to support the- Queen's 70th jubilee event.

0] Tglkin_g Tabi;as - funds p;ovided to sulpport the local com-munity with the provision of ﬁood.

8) Great Outdoor Community f‘und - Garden Refurbishment Project commencing September 2022.
9) Happy Hé:ilthy‘.Holidays - funds pm\;ided for échoc;l holidayé events,

l1 0) Aston Villa Foundation Fund - to provide sports_équipment. 7

11) The Communify Research funding was provided By Birmi}lgham City University, to research how to iaprove men's
engagement with community. activities and to provide activities aimed at men. We started at the weekiy Men's group in
September 2022 and we will us¢ the £2,500 to fund this group during the 2022-23 year. : '

Designated

Mini Bus Fund - to kecp the Charity's mini bus on the road to enable itto support fhe community when needed.
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SHINE@NechellsPOD
Statement of Financial Activities by fund for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Unrestricted Funds

Total Total
Unrestricted Tnrestricted
Funds Funds
2022 2021
£ £
Income and Endowments from' ] ‘ ) : .
Donations and legacies ’ . 72,147 171,178
* . Other trading activities _ 76,235 11,957 -
Total income : L ' 148382 183,135
Expenditure on: :
Charitable activities ' : . (40219 - (71,7131
Other expenditure ' . (305} i
Total expenditure . 7 . - (40,524) - - (717,731)
Net income — _ o ‘107,858 105,404
Transfers between funds o ' - (63)
Net movement in fonds o ' _ " 107,858 105,341
. Recouciliation of funds ) . . '
‘Total funds brought forward _ ’ . ' 160,851 55,510
Total funds catried forward ' IR " 268,709  i60,851

- This page does hot form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Statement of Finaneial Activities by fund for the Year Ended 31 August 20

Income and Endowments from:

Donations and legacies
Tolal income

Expendilure on:
‘Charitable activities

Total expenditure
Net (expenditure)lihcome
Transfers between funds
Net movement in funds

- Reconcilietion of funds

‘Total funds brought forward - 7

Tote'_il funds carried forward

SHINE@NechellsPOD .

Restricted Funds

" Total

iZ (continued) '

" This page does 1ot form part of the statutory financial statements.
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"Total
Restricted  Restricted
Funds Fuands
2022 2021
£ £
118,897 136,282
118,897 136,282,
(136,133)  (107,146)
(136,133) _ (107,146)
(17,236) 29,136
- 63
L (17,236) 29,199
11704 42,505
54,468 71,704




Detailed Statement of Financial A¢tivitiés for the Year Ended 31 Angust 2022

Income and Endowments from:
Donations and legacies (analysed below)

Other trading aciivities (analysed below)

- Total incame -

Expénditure an:
Charitable activities (analysed below)
Other expenditure (analysed below)

Total expenditure

Net income

Net movement in funds
| Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

SHINE@NechellsPOD

Total Total
2022 2021
£ £
191,044 307,460
76,235 11,957
267,279 319,417
(176352) " (184,877)
(305) | -
(176,657) (184,877)
90,622 134,540
 op622 134,540
232,555 98,015
323,177 232,555

-

This page does not form bart of the statutory financial statements.
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SHINE@NechellsPOD

Detailed Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

" Doitions and legacies
Donations ' .
Revenue from Nechells POD ‘
Community consuliation and sacial media
Unrestricted donations -

- Other trading activities
Fees and supplics
Rental income

Charitablé aciivities

Community activities (Restricted)

~ Community activities (Unrestricted)

Charitable donations (U‘nrestricted)‘

Wages and salaries (Restticted)

“Wages and salaries (Unrestricted)
St\aff NIC (Employers) (Restricted)

~ Staff NIC (Employers) (Unrestricted)

Staff pensions (Defined contribution) - pension scheme (Restricted) :
Staff pensions (Defined contribution) - pension scheme (Unrestricled)

Staff training (Restricted) -
Staff training (Um’éstricted)
Travelling (Restricted) -
" Travelling (Unsestricted)
Rates (Restricted)
Heat, light and water (Restricted)
Heat, light and water _'(Unreshicted)-
 Tnsutance (Restricted) '
Insurance (Unrestricted) -
Repairs and maintenance. (Restricted)
Repairs and _maititenance {Unrestricted)
Security (Restricted)
Seeurity (Unrestricted)
“Office expenses (Restricted)
General expenses (Unestricted) _ .
Computer sofiware and majntenance costa (Restricied)
Computer software and maintenance cosis (Unrestricted)
Agcountancy fees (Unrestricted)
BRookkeeping services (Unrestricted) . o
" Professional fees (Restticted) ’
Professional fees (Unrestricted)
Bank charges (Unreslricted)

1162

This page does not form i)art of the statutory financial statements.
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Total Total
2022 2021
£ £
118,897 93,075
. 97,301
Co- 43,207
72,147 73,877
191,044 307,460
345
75,890 10,795
76,235 11,957
| (42,388) {24,906)
_(1,076) (7,674
(260) (290)
(64,672 (55,644)
- (25,073) @7.951)
4,611) (4,090)
(1,602) (3,450)
(512) (1.264)
- 02) (430)
(3,881). (565)
~(80) -
(3.393) -
C.(395) (1,320)
- (464)
(5.959) (7,116)
(2,829) -
(3,075) -
(605) © (3,175
{2,886) - (425)
©(246) . (3,447)
(1,125) -
(886) (618)
(2,560) (2,391)
(1,620) 2411
) . (4.982)
S -(1,394)-
(2,346) (2,766) -
72
(994 - (5,299)
(1,956) (2,568)
L (172) 237




SHINE@NechellsPOD

Detailed Stﬁtement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Total Taotal
2022 - 2021
£ -4
(176,352) (184,877)
- Other expenditure '
Depreciation charge (305) - . -
- (305) ' :

.

This page does not forim part of the statutory financial statements,
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‘Nechells

—— - PLD

mnahgmcawfum Togithor

SENDIASS
THEPOD = ..
28 Oliver Street
"’Nechells
~ Birmingham .
" BT 4NX

Tel: 0121 303 5004
INVOICE No: Popoos . 0 Date: 15Apl 2022

PR

~ POD Booklng 1t September 2022 - 31° August 2023
_ Purchase Order Number CCZQZ1000§71§E -

— [ UnitPrice | _ TOTAL.

Qty o Descriptlon

1 :Additlonel room reqwred for soc!al dustancing '£2'2,9_§6.00' '.£22,926.00"'
- 1S‘September2022 31‘“Auguet2023 ‘ 7 - S

N Thank you for your custom o

TOTAL | £22,926.00_

BCC. Vendor Number 1000145093
..Please make your cheque payable to’ SHINE@Neche_IIs_POD |

;BACS-Detalls._ , . : _' R L
SHIN-E@Ne_cheHsPOD‘ ' : = o

G

_Payment is requnred W|th1n 14 Days |

. Please send iou payment to. - R e
- ‘SHINE@NechelIsP g S - o .

28 Oliver Street . . =~ e " . - :
" Nechells : S o I

28 Oilver Street T "Tol: 0421. 676 4280
. Nechells -  Fax: 0121.675 4276.

* BTANX
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: SHlNE@Ne_che"s!!!! o

~ Birmingham

Nechells

- PD

snngia; mo Goarrunity Toaﬁha' o

1

SENDIASS -

. THEPOD

28 Oliver Street. .~ o T
" ‘Nechells _ R A

. Birmlngham . SN

B7 4NX

INVOICE No: SHINE099 L Dale 1='Apn|2022
o POD Booking IVIaln Oi‘ﬂce1sr Aprli 2022 30“‘ September 2022
< PO Number: ecgzoz1oogazj4 T

qt'y._ T Description o Unit Price ~ TOTAL

L2 ‘Main Oﬁice Rental Charges R £477625 ".£_9',‘552.50_
' E‘Aprll 2022-731“‘August 2022 L N T

o Mam Office Rental Charges S - AN N _
2 - 1st September 2022 — 31st August 2022 £11,463.00 |- £22,926.00. .
o ‘ Thankyou foryourcustom R R I

~TOTAL | - E32,A78.50
_Bcc Venclor Number. 1000145093 T T S

" Please. make your cheque payable to SHIN E@Ne’ch_elléPQD

‘BACS Detalls: - L

. SHINE@NecheIIsPOD
TSB Bank -

Paymenf_ls required within_' 14 t_)eye-

Please send you paymenttor = “~

1

The POD . . .~ .
28 Olwer Street "

Nechells .-~ T
Yok 0121 675 42680

28 Cliver Strest. . - | e _
- T : Fax: 0121 675 4278

“Neéchells - . ) T . -
B7 4NX . e o Director: Noran Flynn
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Nechells "

. o e-nanamwwmmﬂw
—-
SENDIASS ' -
THE POD . -
28 Oliver Street .. - C
- Nechells ‘ :
Birmingham
B7 4NX

Tel: 01213035004 . - | o
INVOICE No: SHINE 097 " pate: 07" June 2021
o PQD Bookmg Duty Ofﬁce Room Rental 2022 -2023_ S
( (. PO Numiber: BCC20210003717P ‘ |
T ey |- | Hescriptlon . Unit:Price:; | - TOTAL

L5 Touyoticerenatchargss - i | paeas o |
~ | L | 1stMarch 2022~ 3TsfAugust 2022 o} Ese4s [ £3.648
| Duty: Office Rental Charges - B AR PO _ : _
-155SeptembarZ@ZZr-JS‘IF‘August2023 © | E745300 -1 £7,453.00. .

e
Az

foar |7 '? ,.', Thank you for you‘r custom T TR e

T — K TOTAL "£11.1o1do-""

BCG Vendor Mumber .:10(39145093 - S Payment is reqmred WIthm 14 Days .

*[ ELEa Please\make your c.heque payable to SHINE@NechellsPOB 3y

BAGS Detallst -
SHINE@Neche[lsPOD

- TSB Bank : )
Soft code:r 309095 _
Account nuimber: 15910860 .

: Please_ send _-_‘you p_ayment« to.

SHINE@NecheIIsPOD
The POD ’
28 Oliver Street -

: - Nechells L _
7 Birmingham » A T U
CUBTANX . e

' ' Tenui21 6764280

28 OliverSfrast .~ T - : - , N ,
T - S y Fax01216754276. A

MNechells . : -
B7 4NX = - - - -
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Sent: S _09Decemnber 2022 13:34" N
Jo: . R Councillor Des S I;Irtjghes'_ e .
Subject: " ‘Statistics S T T T

rteﬁlv~luiv-tb—sept_gm ber—ZOZZ/tﬁlbunal~s'tatisti

ern}neht/sfatistitqlirfbunai-'étatisfics;qu'é

hitps:/fwww.gov.uk/gov at
.qua.rterlwiuIv-to-sept_er’nbe'r'—'2022#sDgc’ial—_educat'itz'r_isil-n_eeds;and_—‘disabiiity—send_- ST
TSENDIASS . e e LT ST e
Education & Skills Directorate. ~ .- . ' . ' SR s T

Birmingharn City Council
‘ThePOD - . - -
28 0liver Street™ - o0 L .
w@lechells - " - ST R T S

L Lt
. - . N

oL, ! v ’ . - : B v 1‘ ' 7 : - !
T T S - . = - . b
A T .Page 85 of 172 ’
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From: e _
Sent: = .. - _07September 2022 08:54,
To: - .. "Councillor Des S Hughes'

‘Subject: - - o Scrutiny -

" Do _\}('Ju want to havea quick chat-about the SENDIASS pages?

Ve

SENDIASS ‘
Education & Skills Directorate
* Birmingham City Council -~
The POD - - :
28 Oliver Street "
. Nechells * -
Birmingham
7 4NX
e mail:

¥ www.birminghatn.gov.uk/SENDIASS

.

Page 87 of 172" - -




Page 88 of 172



Loginte digfjil;sgr_iige_(mmﬂpgrtat.update-_char'ty; .
. details.service.gov.uk/ k). 7

Aboutthg egistel af ante > earch asults . . Search Q

|1<‘_’"Q tl\’l l [] L S_:-IJ

' O - Charity

reporting is
. ~up to date
Charity number: 211619 {on thme)

JJ LF I_Jz[—‘:{\{ -

* Charity overview
What, who, how, where *
- Governance |
Trustees :
Financial history
Accounts and annual returns

", Governing document.” .

Contact information

Trustees aré the people responsible for controlling ’th'e'work
_ ‘management and admlmstratlon of the charity on behalf of its
- . beneficiaries. Generally trustees are treasurer. chalr, board member
etc, The trustees are responsibie for keeping this listup to dateand
cando this by updatmg thelr details as they happen through the -
online s vice. . v ) o . .

10Trustee(s)
Name ° Role - Dateof’ Other .~  Reporting
: - appointment trusteeships statusof
: ' - o ST L *  other.
). L T I L S trusteéships
‘ ROGER _Chair  10October ~ THESIR- . Recelved:On
STEPHEN - - 2000 . BARRY - time
BURMAN o © . JACKSON .-
" CBE - . - . COUNTY
S - . FUND -
Councilior ©  Trustee 15 June 2023 Noneon -
Desmond A _ record
Stephen ' T
Hughes . :
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- N_dme l Role

Date of _
-appointment

Other :
‘trusteeships

_ Reporting o S

statusof -
other,

trusteeships .-

-

MICHAEL  Trustee-
JOHN |
HIBBS . * .

27Janua§y' :
2022 -

 THE SIRBARRY
" COUNTY FUND,

* DANCEXCHANGE Onfime - *-

BIRMINGHAM

_ RERERTORY -
THEATRE

LIM[TED '

Received:
‘On tlme

JACKSON

Réceived:
On time

THE - -

LIMITED:

- Received:

~ Amelia Rose
. Ladbrook

“Trastee 10 June 2019

THE SIR
BARRY-

" JACKSON

COUNTY -

" Received: On

time

. GRAHAM
IAMES .
SAUNDERS - -

Trustée

' 20 October
. 2016~

Receivéd : Orn '
“time . '

. _LNPA - . Trustee
. MORGAN- .~ .

12 Ja!lnua-ry'
.2015

. flme

Recelved: On

" “PROFESSOR

'CLAIRE

- ELIZABETH ..~
. COCHRANE

Trusiee.

05

November -

© 2013

T

DEBORAH
.. MARY.
:-,SHAW

. rTrus"gée .

27 October

2009

1

" THESIR -

BA

Y

- JACKSON .
COUNTY =~
FU -

D

1

* Received:On * -
“time

IAN AYLIFFE - Trustee

" KING -

2004

o4 (jc'tober_ .

. JHESIR .

BARRY

- JACKSON
" COUNTY

" Rebelved: On - -

time

DAVID-
. BURMAN
. EDGAR ™ .

R

Trustee - '

" THESIR -
- BARRY. -

T JACKSON

COUNTY.

- FUND .

Recelved: Qn

time -
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Birming ham
" I City CounCII

REGISTER OF COUNCILLORS INTERESTS

an Elected / Co-opted Member of Blrmlngham City Council do hereby give notice that | have
set out below my interests which | am reqmred to declare under Birmingham City Council's

Code of Conduct for Members

~ Within 28 days of eléction to offlce an Elected or Co- opted Member must register hlslherl .
_pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in a publlc reglster by providing written notification

to the City Council’s Monltormg Offlcer (City Sohmtor)

You ‘must declare your own interests on the form below and also those of your
husband/wife/civil pariner, which includes any person with whom you are I|v1ng as
husband/wife/civil partper. You do not need to name your husband/wife/civil partner.

Pecunlary Interests

1. Empleyment office, trade, profession
| or vocation: ' o

Your employment, office, trade, profession

| or vocation carried on for profit or gain, and

‘that of your husband/wife/civil partner.

Note: "Office” includes position held" as
representative of the Council on 'the
management 'of an external organisation if

-~ lan Allowance is paid whtch exceeds
. reasonable expenses ‘

:Pecunia'ry Interests

Support Officer

2. SpOI‘ISOI'Sh]p

Any payment or provision of any other |

| financial benefit in respect of any expenses

incurred in carrying out duties, or towards
election expenses; this includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade
union. -

| The Labour Party

Page 1‘of 4
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Pecuniarj Interests

Pe'cuniary Interests

3. Contracts

Any contract which is made between you
or your husband/wife/civil partner (ora
body in which.you or your husband/wife/
civil partner has a beneficial interest) and
the City Council under which goods or
services are fo be provided or works are to
be executed and which has not been fully

.| discharged.

None

4. Land

Any beneficial'interest in land held by yt)'(_l :
or your husband/wife/civil partner which is
| within the area of the City Council

5. Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to

1 you or your husband/wife/civil partner fo -
occupy land in Blrmlngham for a monthor
langer. '

None

6. Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where the landlord'is the City
Council and the tenant is a body in which
you or your husband/wife/civil partner has a
beneﬁclal interest,

Nonhe

7. Sec_urities;

Any beneficial interest in which you or your
husband/wife/civil partner has in securities
of a body where:

(a) that body has a place of business or
land in the area of the City Councul
and

(b) either: :

(i) the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or

None

_ one hundredth of the total

Page 2 of 4
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o=

Pecuniary Interests Pecuniary Interests -
issued share capital of that '
~ body; or : o
(i) i the share capital of that
: hody is of more than one
class, the total nominal value
of the shares of any one class
in which you or a relevant
person has ‘a beneficial
_interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

You will only know this when you attend a-
meeting of the Council and an item.on the
agenda affects your wellbeing or that of
your husband/wife/partner, to the extent
described. Fo

8. Personal Wellbeing -

you also have a, pecuniary interest where
you a attend a meeting of the Council
where the business concerns your
 personal wellbeing or financial position or
that of your husband/wife/partner — toa
greater extent than the majority of
residents in your Ward affected by the
decision. = - E

You must then declare a pecuniary interest
at the beginning of the meeting or before -
the relevant item is discussed and not take
part in.the meeting when that agenda item
is discussed. : : ;

| Non-Pecuniary ‘_Int'ei'eISts L "Non-Pecur:liary Interests

1. any organisation of which you are a’
member or in a position of .general
control or management, or to which you :

“are appointed or nominated” by | Barry Jackson Trust
Birmingham City Council. '

Board of the Birmingham Royal Ballet

Note: If you recelve an Allowance from the | .
organisation  which exceeds  your |
| reasonable expenses then you should
declare your interest under -Pecuniary
fnterest Number 1 above.

T there Is insufficient spéce in any of the béxes provided, please use a,suppleménta'ry sheet.

This Is a public document to which members of the public will have free accésé to during

" normal office hours and coples will aiso be published on the City Council’s Website.

Decla ration

- 1 recognise thatI will be in bre'ach of'Birmingham Citv Council’s Code of Conduct

for Members if I:

(a) omit'informa‘tion that ought to be given In this notice; or

Page 3 of 4
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(b) provide informatioh that is materially false or misleading; or

"(c) fail to give further 'noti.ces within 28 days of any change to the information set out
above in order to bring Up to date the information given in this notice, '

- Signed _
Dated  ...25/06/2022.............

Please return’the signed Declaratic:_n to the Monitoring Officer [City} Solicitor].

Page 4 of 4
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“Appendix A5 | ]

BUNDLE3

 DOCUMENTATION RE SIR BARRY JACKSON TRUST -

&
" KINGSTANDING REGENERATION TRUST
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Log n to digital service (m;;:g;ﬂggrtal,upga’_ce-gha[i,i.y;

About the register of charities > Searghresults ' SearchQ,

5IR BARRY JACKSON TRUST
o Charity

reporting is
up to date -
Charity number: 211619 (on time)
Charity overview
What, who, how; where
Governance -

u e

Financial hlstor'y ' 8
~ Accountsand annualreturns
Governing docurment

Contact infdrmatioh

"Trustees are the peoplé responéible for controlling the wark,
management and administration of the charity on behalf of its’
beneficiaries. Generally trustees are treasurer, chair, board member -

etc, The trustees are respansible for keeping this list up to date ;nd
can do this by updating their detalls as they happen through the

online service

10 Trustee(s)
Name . Role  Dateof - Other Reporting
‘ appointment'  trusteeships status of
o . other

_ trusteeships
;_I_;r;,fﬁ__. —
ROGER Chair 10 October THESIR Received:On
STEPHEN 2000 BARRY ~  time :
BURMANM . JACKSON
CBE o COUNTY
Councillor  Trustee 15Junef023 Noneon
Desmond ' T record
Stephen . :
Hughes
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Name

~ Other
trusteeships

Reporting
status of
other

. trusteeships

'Ret:eived: '
Ontime

e = —

BIRMINGHARM
REPERTQRY
THEATRE
LIMITED, -

e ——————

THE SIR BARRY Received:
IACKSON ~ Ontime
COUNTY FUND -

e

. Received:

THE

* DANCEXCHANGE Onfime

i

LIMITED

—_—————

Receivedf on
time .

THE SIR
BARRY
JACKSON

" COUNTY

e ————

. BARRY
_ JACKSON

—— —————

Recelved: On
tfime

THE SIR

COUNTY

. FUND

Role  Dateof
appointment
- 'MIGHAEL Trustee 27 Jjanuary
JOHN 2022 '
HIBBS o
 AmeliaRose  Trustee 10 June 2019,
Lad'brook
'GRAHAM  Trustee 20 October
JAMES 2016 .
SAUNDERS S
e
LINDA Trustee 12Janyary
MORGAN . - 2015
e
PROFESSOR Trustee 05 -
CLAIRE . November
ELIZABETH 2013
COCHRANE . '
DEBORAH  Trustee 27 October
MARY 2009.
_SHAW '

____—______._______—-—__.

IAN AVLIFFE  Trustee 2] October
KING 2004
e
pAVID  Tustee

'BURMAN -

EDGAR -

________——m-____-———____r(

‘Page 101 of 172
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Recei\red': On
time

THESIR |
BARRY -
JACKSON'

~ COUNTY

FUND

None on
record

" Received: on’
time

THE SIR
BARRY
JACKSON -
COUNTY
FUND

Rece_ived: Oh
time

THESIR |

e —————

THE SIR
BARRY
JACKSON
COUNTY
FUND

-

Receivéd: On
tlme
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Loginto digitals_grvige ( https:fportal update-charity- '

Abaut the register of charitles > Search resylts - _ Search Q,

KINGSTANDING REGENERATION |
TRUST | o
 Chari
o 're::)ac:;t?rngis

' _ _ .. uptodate
Charity number: 1149785 , - (ontime)

Charity overview
What, who, haw, wﬁere
dee.rn'an'ce

7 Trystees -

- Financiathistory
Accounts and annual returns

- Governing docurnent

Contact information

Trustées are the people respansible for controlling the work,
management and administration of the charity on behalf of its
beneficlaries. Generally trustees are treasurer, chair, board member
etc. The trustees are responsible for keeping this list up to date and
can do this by updating their details as they happen through the
online service’ " ~ ‘ R

6 Trustee(s)
Name " Role Dateof ~ Other - _ Reporting
‘ _ appointment trusteeships status of
' other’
trusteeships
Denise Pe.a_ch Chair 28 October LICHFIELD  Recelved: On
: 2019 ) GARRICK time '
THEATRE -

RyanSingh . Trustee 14 December ~ None on record
- 2022 -

e

Alastair Cook ~ Trustee 14 December Noneon
2022 record

Isaac Conrad Trusteé 14 December Noneon
~McNamara . 2022 record
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Name Role Dateof - . Other

_ Reporting
appointment tru_stees'hips status of
' - other ,
‘ ' trusteeships
SUSAN - Trustee 10 November None on -
BYRNE FICM 5 2017 " record
AABRP ' .
- COUNCILLOR Trustee 03 Noneon
DES ‘ September record

HUGHES - 2012

124 Print charity details
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Registered Charity Number: 1149785
Registered Company Number: 06527314

Kingstanding
‘Regeneration -
Trust

Management Committee Report and Financial Statements .
For the year ended 31%*March 2022
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) Kings'tanding Regeneration Trust

Contents
Legal and administrative infarmation............... feeeteneteas et e srace s s et eeseseeeee s S R 3
Management Committee's report.................... et tveesteeoran e tereetr e tenteenranene e A7
- Independent examiner’s report...... 8—9
Statement of Financial Activities OOV T

Balance Sheet 11

'Notes forming pa& of fhe financial statements ................. S eeeresesiasae testneenngee 12-19

Report and financial statements for the year to 31° March 2022
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Kingstandi.ng Regeneration Trust

Reference and Administrative Information

Directors and Trust_ee's: - ) A -
' Afric Crossan {resigned August 2021)

Des Hughes (Vice Chair)

Peter Kane {resigned October 2021)
‘Sue Byrne ' '
‘AnitaWard : _
Gary Sambrook {resigned August 2021)
Amy Bird (resigned April 2021}

- Denise Peach (Chair)

®NA MR WN

“Compa ny Registered Number: 06527314
Charity Registered Number: 1149785

Registered Office
- 1 Cottage
‘Brookvale Park
Erdington
Birmingham
BZ§ JAG

‘Bankers - 7
The Cooperétivé Bank
_Colmore Row |

* Birringhdm

B33BA

For fﬂrther information please contact the re'gistei‘ed_ office as'_detailed abﬁve or:
Telephone: 01214396780

2 Email: helId@krtbirmingham.cq.uk
‘Website: www.krtbirmingham.co.uk -

Report and financial statements for the year to 31" March 2022
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Kingstanding Regeneration Trust
Trustees’ Report

The Trustees preserit their report and accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 The Trustees

- confirm that the annual report and financial statements of the trust comply. with current statutory
requirements, the requirement of the trust's governing document and the provisions of the
Statement of Recommended Practice {SORP}) "Accountmg and Reporting: by Charitles Jssued In
March 2005, -

1) Structure, Governance and Management .

Method of appointment or election of Management Committee

- The Management of the trust s the responsibility of the Management Committee who are elected
and co-opted under the terms of the Artlcles of ASSDC!atIOH :

Constitution policies and ObjECtIVES
The trust Is registered as a Private Limited Company by guarantee without share capital use of

'Limited' exemption and was sét upbya Memorandum of Association. The comrmunity based trust
aims to regenerate areas in North Birmingham and provide training and support for NEET (not in
educatlon employment or training) young people to find employment. The trust engages in
fundraising and capacity building identified In our Business Plan. There have been no changes in the
objectives since the last annual report. ‘

Organisational structure and decision making ) .
The organisation of the trust is controlled by the members of the Management Committee.

~2) Objectives, Actlwtles and Achlevements :
Kingstanding Regeneration Trust is a registered charity working for the beneflt of resldents across

North Birmingham, particularly but not limited to Kingstanding, Erdington and Brookvale. KRT is
governed by local activists who want to empOWer local residents to find solutions to local problems
together. A contlnumg focus for the organisation is the training of NEET young peopie to deveIOp
_emptovabﬂity sknlfs acquire quallﬂcatlons and find sustamable employment.

During this year there have been significant staff changes including the appointment of Anya
Sanchez as Director, following the retirement of Karen Spence as CEO. Karen had heen passionate
about the growth of KRT and was its driving force from the beginning. We were delighted to
promote Bradley Turner to the role of Training Manager followmg the retlrement of the previous
Incumbent, Qur Wellbeing Officer and Marketing Assistant moved to other orgamsatlons whilst our
Commumty Engagement Officer’s funded post came to an end, We thank these members of staff
for all their endeavours at KRT and wish them the best for the future.

Report and financial statements for the year to 31% March 2022
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Kihgstanding Regeneration Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued) ,

2) Objectives, Activities.and Achievements {continued). o ,
An organisational restructure was lundertaken to ensue KRT could continue to achieve its goals

efficiently and provide the best possrble service for local residents. We are delighted that all
remaining team members have been moved onto updated contracts, with new job destriptions. .
Staff have undertaken additional training including 1AG Level 2, Supervisory Role qualrfrcatrons
" Health and Safety certification and job specific training. Following an unsettled period whilst
organisational changes were taking place, we are pleased that all staff are now feeling settled, well- -
‘motivated and are workrng eﬁlcrently and enthUSlasttcally to move the orgamsatmn forward

A new Business Plan was written wrth a renewed focus on the training of young people and an
_ asplratlon to expand our reach outside Klngstanding to use our skills and expenence to support
young people from across Brrmmgham An audit of all our policies and procedures was undertaken
_ and Croner HR and BrightSafe Health and Safety are supportmg KRT to introduce its new system of
HR Management and Health and Safety management We are pleased to ensure the highest
-standards are maintained in Health and Safety and HR in every area of our organrsatlon

After much hard work to transform the derelrct Vlctor:an burldrng fri Brookvale Park by our Training
" Team, we were all excited to fully move into our new offices-at Brookvale Park. This space ptovides
KRT with better office-space, training facilities and much needed safe storage space. It also enables
us to expand our. services beyond Kingstanding and we have qulckly seén the benefit of our more
. accessible location. A long term lease agreement rs in the process of berng wrrtten bv the Cnty

‘Council.

our Wm-Wm Project that pravides work expenence for disadvantaged young people' by - ° -
transforming the gardens of local elderly and vulnerable residents, free of charge, has successfully
attracted funding. We are working in partnershlp with Witton Lodge and Age UKon this prOJect
which will see young people gain tool skills, work expenence jna team on their Journev towards .

em ployment

The numher of young people tramed by KRT durlng thrs year was srgmf cantlv lower than hoped ' 7
mainly due to Covid restrictions cantnuing throughout this year and organisational changes Once
KRT re-opened, we expenenced further setbacks when staff had to take weeks off work to isolate
as they in turn succumbed to the Covid-19 virus. We were delighted to be able to welcome voung
people batk irito our program in December. Since then, 100% of trainees have gone into-
employment or further training following the completron of our course. It proves that the stream

‘ lrnmg work we've undertaken to our training program has been. successful and is ensuring tramees .

. can gain the skills and experlence they need and achieve emplovment faster than before. Desplte a

‘ tough year the Trustees are proud of the work achieved by KRT's staff and delighted to see

provements to the programs for voung people are achie\nng success. L '

Repart and financial statements for the year to 31% March 2022 A
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Klngstanding Régeneration Trust
frustees’ Report (continued)

3} Financial Review _
Fundraising has been challenging this year as funders focussed their attentions on responses to
- Covid-19 but'we continued to be well supported by a variety of lgcal and national Trusts and _
* Foundations, several of whom have agreed to multiyear funding agreements. We have maintained _
good communicatioh with fundeys throughout the vear, ' L '

_Reservés policy o '

itis the policy of the.management‘ committee to work towards holding the minimuym unrestricted
reserves necessary to enable the Charity to meet its commitments for a minimum period of three
months, ' -

4} Statement of Manaéement Committee's. respoﬁsibilities .

Company and Charity faw applicable to ‘charities in England/Walés re'quires. the M_anagemént
Committee to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fajr view of

». Selected suitable accounting polricies and applied them consistently,
*  Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 'prudent,‘

'™ Stated whether applicable accountfng standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and B

" Prepared the ﬂnahcial'statem_ents on a. going 'concenj‘n basis (unless it is inappropfiafe to
- presume that the Trust will continue in operation). -

The Management Committee have overall responsibility for ensuriné that the charity has an
appropriate system of controls, financial and otherwise. They are also responsible for keeping
- Proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

These accounts have been delivered in accordance with the. brovis‘ions applicable to cornpanies
subject to the small company’s regime; :

Report énd financial stateménts for the year to 31 March 2022
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Kingstanding Regeneratioh Trust

‘The report was approved by the Management Committee on 24; August 2022 and signed on its

behaif by -

Dénis_é Peach
Chalr of KRT

Repoit and financlal staternents for theyear 10 31% March 2022
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Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

. Independent Examiner's Report to the Trustees of the Kihgstandi_ng Regeneration
Trust ' ' | o ' '

| report on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31 March 2022 which are set out on _
pages10to19. - _ ‘ | '

Respective i'esponsibilities of trustees and éxaminer

. The trustees ('who are also the dirécto_rs of the company for the purposes of company law) are
. responsible for the preparation of the accounts. The trustees consider that an audit is not required
- for this year under section 144(2) of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act) and that an independent

examination is needed, o ' ' : '

'Having satisfied myself that the charity is not subject, to audit under company law and Is .eligfble for -
independent examination, it is my responsibility to: ' - '

*  &xamine the accounts under section 145 of the 2011 Act; . ,

e  follow the procedures laid down in the general Directions given by the Charity Commission
under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act; and S ‘ ‘

*  state whether particular matters have come to my atiention, .

Basis of independent examiner's report

My éxamination was carried out in accordance with the general Directions given by the Charity
Commission. An examination includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a
comparison of the accounts presented with those records. |t also includes consideration of any
unusual items or disclosures in the accounts, and seeking explanations from you as trustees
concerning any such matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that
would be required-In an addi; and consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts
present a “true and fair view” and the report is limited to those matters set out in the statement
below. . . : '

Report and financial statements for the year to 31 March 2022
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Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

Independent Examtner's Report te the Trustees of the Kingstanding Rege'neration
Trust (continued) " | | |
Independent exammer s statement

In connection with my examlnatlon no matter has come to my attention:

1 which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect, the requrrements

. to keep accounting records in accordance with séction 386 of the Companles Act 2006;"

~ .and
+ to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records, comply with the_

accounting requirernents of section 396 of the-Companies Act 2006 and with the
methods and principles of the: Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and
Reportmg by Charltles have not been met; or :

2 to which, in my oplmon attentmn should be drawn m order to enable a proper understandtng
.of the accounts to be feached. :

David Webb FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Edwards -

Chartered Accountants” " 34 High Street
Statutory Auditor _ Aldridge
~ . Walsall _
West Midlands
wsoslz
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1

Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

Statement Of Financial Activities

Note

INCOMING RESOURCES ’
Income resources from generated
funds: .
Donations - ' 3
Bank and other interest

~ RESQURCES EXPENDED
Charjtable Activities: ‘
Projécts & Activities = . 3
Fundraising : ' ' 3a
Governance
Cost ‘ 4
TOTAL RESOU RCES

EXPENDED - .5

MOVEMENT IN TOTAL FUNDS FOR
THE

VEAR - NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
FORTHE YEAR

TOTAL FUNDS BROUGHT FORWARD
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

. Total

Restricted Unrestricted Total
Funds " Funds Funds  Funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
103,400 85,935 189,335 486,892
103,400 85,935 189,335 486,892
107,654 164,085 266,739 407,984
- - 8,927
- 1,160 1,160 465
. 102,654 165,245 267,809 217,376
746 (79,310) (78,564) . 69,516
118,412 52,119 170,531 101,015
, 119,158 {27,191) 91,967 170,531

The Statement of Financial Actlwtles includes all gains and losses recognised ih the year

The notes'on page 12 to 19 form part of these financial statements.

P
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: Kin_‘g_sta'nding Regeneration Tru_ét :

Balance Sheet

Note S 2022 - 2021
£ £
FIXED ASSETS _
Motor Vehicles - S . 17,000 -
; ' 8 K 17,000’ Lo
CURRENT ASSETS , |
Cash at Bank and in Hand : ' - 76,127 L 171,851
K 76,127 : 171,851 -
CREDITORS Amountfalllngduewlthm L . . _ A
one year S . ... 1o (1,160) -- S {1,320)
' - : (1,160) _ (1,320)
NET CURRENT ASSETS | ' : : © 74967 - 170,531
NET ASSETS s .. 91967 170,531
TRUST FUNDS
Restricted Funds - | 2 © 119,158 118412
Unrestrlcted Funds ~ ~ .~ "~ 12 : - {27,191) . T 52,119
91967 - - - 170,531

- The Trustees have:- s :
a) “For the year ending 3lst March 2022 the company was entltled | s exemptlon fr0m audlt

under section 477 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

b) Directors’ responsibilities:
The members have not required | the company to obtain an audit of its accounts fnr the year .

in question in accordance with section 476; the directors acknowledge their fesponsibilities
for complying with the reqmrements of the Act with respect to accountmg records and the

preparation of accounts;
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to

T},
compames subject to the small companies’ regnrrie

The financlal statements were appruved by the Trustees on the 24 August 2022 and are sugned on,
hew behalf by '

Denise Peach
Director

_The notes on page 12 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

Notes To The Financial Statemen_ts

L

Accounting Policies

Charity Information

. Kingstanding Regeneration Trust is a private company limited by guarantee Incorporated

in England and Wales. The registered office is Room 1 Kingstanding Wellbeing Centre,
Dulwich, Klngstandmg, Birmingham, B44 OEW,

1.1 Accounting convention

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the charity’s governmg document, . -
the Companles Act 2006 and “Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Pracfice applicable to charlties preparing their accounts in accordafice

- with. the Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland

(FRS102)" (as amended for accounting periods comrnencing from 1 lanuary 2016). The
charltv is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS102,

The charity has taken advantage of the provisions in the SORP. for charltres applvlng
FR5102 Update Bulletin 1 not to prepare a Statement of Cash Flows,

The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is- the functional currency of the charity.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £,

The accounts have been prepared . under the historlcal cost conventlon The prmclpal
accountmg pohcles adopted are set out below. :

1, 2 Companv status

The Charity Is a company limited by guarantee The members of the companv are the
trustees named on page 3 in the event of the Charity being wound up the habllity In
respect of the guarantee is limited to £1 per member of the Chanty

1.3 Funding accountlng

General funds are unrestricted funds whrch are available for use at the discretion of the
trustees in furtherance of the general objectlves of the Chanty and which have not been
deSIgnated for other purpose. :

i

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specnflc restrictions
imposed by- donors which have been raised. by the Charity for particular purposes, The -
cost of raising and adminlstering such funds are charged agalnst the specific fund. The
aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to'the financial statemients,

12
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Kingstanding R_egenerati'on Trust

' Notes To The Financial Statements

1.4 Incoming resources - ‘ . _ _ - :
All incoming resources are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the
Charity is legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with

reasonable accuracy.

Gifts in kind donated for distribution are included at valuation and recognized as income
when they are distributed to the projects. - Gifts donated for resale are included as
" income when they are sold. Donated facilitiés are included at the value to the Charity
where this can be quantified and a third party is hearing the cost. No amounts are’
included in these financial statements for services donated by volunteers. o

‘Intangible income, which comprises donhated services, is included in income at a
valuation which is an estimate of the financial tost borne by the donor where such a cost
is quantifiable and measurable. No income is tecognised where there is no financial cost
borne by a third party. Income tax recoverable in relation to donations received under
Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognized at the time of donation. o

" 1.5 Resources expended | E : o S
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been included under
expense categories that aggregate all costs for allocation to activities. Where costs

cannot be directly attributed to particular activities they have been alld_cated °'," a basis
tonsistent with the use of the resources. | ‘

" Fund-raising costs are those .incurred in seeking voluntary -contributions and' do not

. Intlude the costs of disseniinating information in_support of the charitable activities:
Support costs are those costs incurred directly in support of expenditure on the objects
of the Charity and include project management “carried out at Headquarters.
Management and gdministration costs. are those incurred .in connection - with
administration of the Chaiity and compliance with canstitutional and statutory
requirements. o :

13
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Kingstanding-Regeneraticm Trust

Notes To The Financiai Statements

2. Donations

Charles Haywood Foundation
Birmingham City Councll
Witton Lodge Grant

Tudor Trust

John Lew PLC DSF

Rank Foundation

The Henry Smith Foundation

Mind Space Project
The Cole Trust
_ Spitfire Advice

Heart of England Community *

Foundation

Garfleld Weston Foundstion -

Other under 5k
The Screwfix Foundation
HMRC IRS Grant
Brookvale

Board Walk

KRT Enterprises
Thiomas Wall Trust
. Everson Grant
Awards for All

EH Smith Grant
Total

", Report.and financlal statements for the year to 31“ March 2022

Restricted 'Unmstricte.l':l " Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
E £ £ £
7,000 - 7,000 -
g 55600 55,600 89,055

- 8,190 8,190 -

- 99 99 27,000

: - - 71,79

- - . - 37,047
60,000 - 60,000 60,000
- - ©. 93,727
1,000 . 1,000 -
. . - 7,500

- - - 21,500
6,500 - 6,500. 20,000
1,500 1,521 . -3,021. 14398
i - - 5,009

- 1,814 1,814 17,960

- . - 711,500

. s - 10,000

- 18,711 18,711 -
5,000 - 5,000 -
5,000 - 5,000 -
9,900 o 9,900 -
7,500 - 7,500 -
103,400 85,935 189,335 486,892
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Notes To The Financial Statements

3. Charitable Activities — Projects & Activities

Androit] Tablets
Beneficlary Expenses
RAIK & Tudor Trust
" Fundraising
Connecting' Communities
. Enterprise Expense
HMRC & NEST
Anya Sanchez Fundraiser
_ Brookvate Refurb
.. Grant -
Health and Safety Advice
Birmingham City Counch
Time 2 Shine o
Rent - BCC
Henry S;mi'qh
Mindspace
Salaries -
“ John Lewis
Rank Salaries
Wesleyan Foundation
Van Insurance
PCC Funding
Satnsburys
Insurance
- Cleaning
WMTP :
Grimmitt Trust
. Advent Donation
Expenditure unider £500
Staff Recruitment
Marketing
Office Costs

Staff Trainingj Young Person Training

Tools and Equipment
utlitles

Varns:

Total

- Report and financial statements for the year to 31% March 2022

Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
2022 2022 - 2022 2021

£ £ B £

484 203 687 -

- 2,156 2,156 -

- - .- 119,745

- 15,432 15,432 -

1,500 - 1,500 -
. " 2,664 2,664 -

- 27,495 27,495 23,900

- : - - 20,666

' 1,134 14,341 15,475 23,923
6,500 oo. 6,500 -

. 6,912 - 6,912 -
- - - 41,966

- - S 20,684

- - - 11,033

x - - 26,141

- - - . 40,088

84,643 57,895 142,538 -

- - I 28,023

- .. : - 8,058

- (17,000) ~ {17,000) 17,705

- - - 5,918

- - - 7,030

- - - 2,539

- . 2,429 2,429 1,952

- 3,216 - 3,216 1,755

- - S - 1,500

- - - 1,190

- - - 649

- 382 382 3,519

- - 651 651 -
- 2,803 2,808 -

- 26,080 26,080 -

1,481 - 8,765 10,246 - -
- T 64l 641 -

- 2,193 2,193 -

: - 13,739 - 13,739 -
' 102,654 164,085 266,739 407,984

-
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: Kingstahding Regeneration Trust
 Nates To The Finaltcial‘Statements

3a. Charitable Activities - Fundraising

Restricted - Unrestricted " Total Total .
. Funds " Funds Funds  Funds
2022 2022 2022 . - 2021
Fundraising . - - : . - - 8927
Total . . - 8,927
4. Governance Costs ,
‘Restricted Unréstricted Total Total
' Funds Funds  Funds Funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ f £ £
Accountancy Fees’ : R 1,160 1,160 465
Total o o - 1,160 1,160 - 465
. 5. Analysis Of Resources Expended By Expenditure Type
- Staff . Other ' : _
Costs Costs Total Total
2022 . 2022 2022 2021
, £ £ - £
Fundraising _ - - - - 8,927
Projects & ' o
Activities - 266,739 266,739 407,984
Governance Cost - . . - 1,160 . 1,160 465
"I_‘_otal Resources Expended ’ - 267,899 267,899 417,376

Report and financial statements for the year to 31* March 2022
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Kingstanding Regenleration Trust' '

Notes To The Financial Statements

6. _Net Incoming Resources/(Resources Expended)

Total Total

. _ 2022 2021

This is stated after charging ' £ £
Accountancy fees _ o . 1,160 465
Total =~ ) , - 1,60 ° 465

During the year no Management Committee received any remuneration.
During the year no Management Committee received any benefit in'kind. .
- During the year no Management Committee recejved any reimbursement of expenses.

2. Staff COSts A_nd- Numbets

Staff costs were as follows - : : - 2022 2021
W;age.r'. and salaries o C o | 170,480 1.69,843” '
,Social Security . ¢ 10,386 - 8,940
Total T .. 180,866 178,783

The avefagq manthly number of em;_-)Io'vées during the yéér was as follows
: T TN o 2022 . 2021

Employees 8. . 9

No employee recaivéd remuneration amounting to more than £60,000 in either yéar{

8. Fixed Assets

“Motor. -
* vehicles _
-£
'_Cdst : .. '
Balance brought forward L
Additions - 17,000 -
Balance carried forward - 17,000
Depreciation = . .
Balance brought forward -
Charge for the year ) -
Balance cartied forward -
NBV at 31 March 2022 17,000

. NBV at 31 March 2021

Report aﬁd financial statements for the year to 31 March 2022
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' Kingstandiﬁg Regeneration Trust

- Notes To The Financial Statements

9. Debtors

Due within one year
~_ Cash in hand and at bank -
Total ' :

10. Creditors -

!

Amount falling due within one year |

. Accruals
Total

11. Statement of Funds '

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
General Funds

Total -

RESTRICTED FUNDS .
Restricted Funds

_ Total

- SUMMARY OF FUNDS

General Funds
Restricted Funds -
Total of Funds

.Report and finahclal statements for the year to 31 March 2022 °

L

2021

' Page 122 of 172

2022
£ £

76,127 171,851
76,127 171,851 .

‘2022 2021

, £ £

1,160 1,320

1,160 1,320

Brought . Incomlné Resources Carried
' Forward  Resources . Expended Forwa_:rd
£ . E £ £

52,119 85,935 165,245  (27,191)
52,119 85,935 - 165245  {27,191)
118,417 103,400 102,654 . 119,158
118,412 103,400 102,654 . 119,158
£ £ £ £

52,119 . 85,935 165245  (27,191)
118,412 103,400 102,654 119,158
170,531 - 189,335 - 267,899 91,967
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Kingstanding Regeneration Trust

Notes To The Financial Statements

12, Analysis Of Net Assets Batween Funds

Restricted . Unréstricted_ Total . Totall

Funds Funds Funds Funds

20722 2022 - 2022 2021

£ - £ £ £

Current assets . - . 118,627 - 118,627 171,851
Creditors due within one year - T {L160) - - . (1,160)  {1,320)
Total o L 117,467 - 117,467 170,531

13. Re.I'atéd Party Trapsactions

During the year, there were no related party transactions.

14, Ultimate Cantrolling Party

The charitable companyis controlted by its Trustees/Directors.

" Report and financlal statements for the year to 31% March 2022
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BUNDLE4

OVERPAYMENT OF SALARY
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N
|

L
00370727 .
_MR. Desmond Hughes -
&
Employer: - - - Birmingham City Council
Date Paid: - 28-Apr-2022
Pay-l'.'l_aihod: . BCC BACS

' Posrtlon Parent Partnarshb Support Oﬂ’icer

Pay Advice

Ninumber: (D

Tax Perlod: |

S TaxCode: " NN

Assng_nment No: 500370?2?

Nl Category

SEND Information, Adwﬁu & SI.Ippod

Department _
Lagation
Grﬂds.“s Inal Fulnt

_Basla Salary - Ty 2 w7 -

Total

|’ coniracted Hours® 29.2 , Woodcock StraetCAB .

. - | OR4/25 . : £ 5

J Payments & Allowances Pm—Tax I:Iaductlnns ) :
Descripilons [ Hours Rate Amount_ Dasuipl}ans Amount -

| _Outstanding Loan Balanges

- p ) : . Deduc‘linns i ks I
= = “
Tota _'T i

.I - : T‘ N :: \ "
Total Paymenis nﬁimﬁs i

-Year-To-Dats T

staff Messag&s i
Check your pay advice and report any. dlsqepancies fo Fayrul

* | Vax Office: HM REVENUE AND CUSTOMS, Bxa 1A87

Tax Office Tel No; 0300 200 3300

'| Tax Office Referang:e (68/SAR7976
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00370727 ;

hir Deamonid Hiighes

"

-y S ' )  Advl :
- Emplayer: - Birmingham.City Councll NI Number:
Date Paid: 27-May-2022 Tax Perlod; = 2 _ ] Hia
Pay Method: BCC BACS - Tax Code: _
Position: Parent Partnarship Suppoﬂ Ofﬂcer ' ASBI nment HO.E00370727 £
NI Category ) A Depariment _SEND Information, Advice & Supporl
* Gonfracted Hnurs - 292 Logatlon . ° . Woodnuck Strost CAH .
o E o Bradejs'pinai Pomt : GR4J25 Sl :
[ N4
ey B g Paymams & Al[owancns o N Pre 'I’ax Daduchom )
|- Descriptions J-Hours - | Rata [ _Amount . Descxlpﬂons - Nﬂwﬂt
s == _ - -
TTotal Total 1 ‘
: : ! Ueductl\om
i DBﬂGﬂp“DI.‘IE “
Tulal : ey T
[ Total baymenlgﬁ ;:;[:i:ctiuns - F{BtPayd' :
_Outslanding Loan Balancés ‘rear-"l‘q':-gite Totals :
srafflu'_le:aages i ; I .t
Check your pay adulce and report any di serepancies kg Payrol
ax Office: HM REVENUE AND CUS TOMB, BX3 1AS )
Tax Office Tel Na; 0300 200 3300
Tax Office Referenca: 0B8I5A27976
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00370727

Mr Desmor

: 2 v
(.
: T - Pay Advige - - =2 .
_Employer: Birmingham City Councll . . NI Number: _
"-Date Paid: 28-Jun-2022 Tax Period: T : ;
" Pay Method: BCC BACS : Tax Code;
’ Pasltlon.Parent Partnership Support Oﬁiuer Ass]ggment No:E0g370727 - B
NI Category - - . \ | . Department SEND Information, Advice & Squort
Contracted Hours 29 2 & *, Location . Woddcock Street CAB
: . ! : ' GradeiSpinal Point GR4.|'25 .
- e ) Pymnnh&AllMMas : Hre-Tax Deduatioﬁs ) i [
"Descriplions - ; ; T Amount “Desériplions. g T -Amatnt -
Bastc Salary. N | -m - | -
e —— o _ T
‘Dlrect Payments . = - _Deductions - P :
Descriplions : : Amount | Descriptions _ -
L Total
e - ) Total
[ et P‘fym?m - Deductions -
“Qutstanding Loan Balances. 1 Year-To-Date Totals
. [Staft Massagqs ;
. Gh eiok your pay advice and refer any queﬂes lo HRor Payroli : :
v .
Tax Ofiice: HM REVENUE AND CUSTONS, B)(Q AS = 3
_| Tax Office 'fal No: D300 206 3300, !
Tax Oflice Referdnce: 088/SA27978 £

— T
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00370727

r

Employer:
Date Paid:
- Pay Methed!

]

" Birmingham City Council |

S

Tax Perlod:
Tax Code; -

-NI Number: * .

1257L Cumulative

Page 129'of 172 -

.. Position:Parent Parinership Support Officer . Assignment No:E00370727
Nl Category " . A i 1 Depardment - T s
- Contacted Hours . 20.2 Logatlon R .
i ! .Grade/Spinal Polnt ___~ "/ - - -
= - “Paymenis & Allowances I P " Pre-Tax Daductions — ]
Dascrplloris E .. | _Amount |D tions 5 . 1 - Amount, .
R | ea——" e -
Towl . P — R Tot T . |
- - - Direct Payments ' ] e Py Deductloris : 5
Descriplions i Amount | Descriptions S . Amount
| | _ _ -
_ I - Tg_talf- R - 1
- : | Totat - ; -
.| TRy ments Daducions : - MatPay, d
Quistanding Loan Balancas * - Yoar-To-PateTotals ' - - ° Y
A i 2 -
N El’f Messages y
Tox Office; Fiti REVENUE AND CUSTOMS, BX8 1A5 = B
Tax Office Tel No: 0300 200.3300 -
Tax Office Raferance: =
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ibinG) 150 i

UDjective Four
Member involvement




Draft for discussion purposes

" 4.1 Ex-employse {now Membei) conducting SENDIASS business after election 7 R
— An ex-emplayee of SENDIASS (DH) resigned in March 2022 torun  In comrespondence with Members Support  Atsk: Individuals who are no longar

for electlon as Councillor: THey were subsequently elested asa ~ ‘on 22 June 2022, DH aiso.confirmed that employed by the Councll continue to
Member. However, they.continued 1o perform duties for SENDIASS their employment cantract had been receive access to sensitive information,
betweeon March-August 2022, -terminated, use their employee accounts

Inapprapriately. and undertake aclions on
behait of a service for which theyno
langer have any rule with or respensibility
for,

Aa part of our testing, we identified one instanco wherea, - DH, now analectad Member, had been
SENDIASS Officer (DK} tesigned as an employes of the Councll in _provided with a separate Member account
_ order ta stand for electlon as a Councillor. DH was su‘nsequenﬂy for conducting their business as Counclllor,
' slected and currently sits as a Member. ) -

The individuz! tendered their resignation on 21 March 2022 with Propased mansgemant ‘“mm:

immedlate effect. In the reslpnation email thls was nntedas bemg . C Thg Council should undertake @ deep
approved hylhe SENDIASS Head of Service. i - diva reviaw of the leavers process
On-recelpt of raskgnations it Is the duty of the Head of Service ta across the urg;anlsatlon. inciuding
rotify HR of this end complete the necassary papemorklleaver’s assuc{ftad actlons required by IT and
form. This then facilltates an updating of smployes data within the . payro
necassary systams, including system access, Tha Head of Sarvice Statf lIstings should ba revlswed ona
submitted the resignation form on 13 July 2022, Bs a result the - - . regular basls by managars. to ensure’

. system was not updated until 14 July 2022. - : . : R that they reflect the numbers and

- We nota that during this period, and after this date, DH cantinued to . C details of staff who are amployed. This

- . should be subject fo indepandent
2ccess BCC emplayes systems and used thelr employea email L review by payroll
address, This appears to have besn with the purpose of conducting * : : ¥ payrof.
SENDIASS business despite no fonger being emplayed by tha . . Line managers should be reminded of
Coutiil and having such role or responsiblias, The Head of - Servtca ) - " their responsibifity to éomplate and
" was ooplad into much of this comespendence. [ . submit leavers lorms in a timely

manner. It repeated lnstan:es of
delayed notification are identlfied, then
i disciplinary action should be consider
E% CIIEPMILLS, -uxwmmhaamuwd.mu rmumvmgmlﬂ%dumumm for a breach of policy.

i at roserved, Documant dlﬁ‘ﬁﬁtm{ KFHG - . .
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4.2 Ek-emp

kEiE

] ng agency worker contract sxtansions

An ex-employes of SENDIASS IDHI galriad access to the Hays
recruitment system after reslgning and extended the t:umracts of 21
employses aftar being elected as a Member.

Linked to finding 4.1, tha same individual (DH) contlhue to use their
accass to the Heys egency 355 systam, the functlonality of which -
allows individuala to ratse vacancies, hire amployses, apprnva
timeshests and extond existing contracts. -

Wa obtained data directly from the Hays system which shuwed :hat DH
legoed on and requested the extension of 21 employees on 24 August |
2022. Of these 21 indfviduals, 16 gxisnsions were requestad Into 2023,

As the original recruliment of agency staff was not authorised by the
Workforca Raview Board, and any temporary Covid funding has since
ceased to be & source of Income for the servica, this further committed
the Coundil 1o upauthorised expenditura.

{now Member] r

As DY wes3.not an employae aof the Cauncll and hed ne role or
responslbllity with SENDIASS, this appeers to be a braach of ths Cods
of Conduct and authorised accass into not only the BCC syslams but

- alsp the Hays agency system.

©2023 KPMGLLP, 1 UK Fermet

Confidendal_

Urnitsd, & prhvam
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"Findings and management actions (cont)

Draft for discussion purposes -

Risk: Jndmduals without approprieta
approval are able to galn access lo BCC or
third party systems which may contaln
sensitive parsonal information.

Individusls are abls to commit the Gouncit
to inappropriate or unauthorlsed financlal
expenditure.

Proposed management action:
As notad In 4.1, the Coundil should

undertaks a deap dive ravlew of the

leavers process across the organlsation,
including associated actlons raquired by

. 1T and-payroll.

This should Include a apaciflc raview of
individuals’ sccess to third party
systems, anhd in parilcular the pracess
for creating, amending, and removing
access to the Hays 35S system.

The Aulﬁurlty should lialse with Hays to
obtatn regular reports of user access

Mstings, and trlangulate this agalnst

otiar data including employee recerds,



4.3 Salary overpayment to ex-amplnyae fnowr Mamber)

" The ex-SENDIASS emplwse {DH), now Membsr, recéivad
— overpayments of salary for Lhres months whu:h are yel 1o be pald
back.

As notedi in 4.1, notice of DH's reslgnatmn and form were submttted
on 13 July 2022, over threa montha after It should hwe coma Into.
affect.

Adfurther consaquance of this is thal OH cnnt'lnusd ta be pald as an
" employee of tha Council up until this date. This was nat picked up in

8Ny routing user accass feviews, which should be psrformed

perlodicalty as part of the process for identilying lsavers. '

\ikewlse, despite conlinuing to recaive thess payments after
rasignation, DH did not eontact the Council to notll‘y tharn of tha arror
-and prevent further payments.

We nats that DH was also contacted on B July 2022 as part of tha
procasa to sat them up on tha system for Member allowances. This
emalt noted thers had been an everpayment in respect of pravious
employmsnt but nio furthar action was taken by DH to contact the
Cauncil to correct this and pey back the monles owed.

The Coungil has ntw wiittan to DH noﬂfymg them that an invoice for
repayment has been issued in.line with tha dlauses conitained within
. the employmant cantract to which they were bound,

m 2027 RPRIGLLP, -unmumpwmm:w&md|n-wumm|mmo|mmnmc
. e s M st it ey mshmmmwgammum Docurrumt Cassiiators K8
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Hnaings andmanagementacﬁons (cont)

Draft for discussion purposes

Risk: Individuals are ovarpaid, resulting in a
potential financlal loss to-the Council if the
overpayment cannot be recuperated:
Propased management action:

The Gounail shauld review its leavers process,
including perlodic neminal rofe and user access

" reviews, Lo ensure measures are in place to

Identify any missed leavers.

" The Couneil should snsure that this

ovarpayment is recovered in full, as soon as
pogsible, with appropnate esca1atlun undertaken
as required.

The Counctt should take appraprlate ection
againet the line manager for failing to Fulfll their
respansibllities in submitling the resignation n a
timaly manhner, and tharelore causing the
overpaymenis to be mede.

The Council should lnvestigats whether failure
to notify them of the continued paymanis was a
breach of thelr rules and regulations {elther as
an employes and / or onge electad as a

. Member).

Linked to 4.1, the Counclt should éonduct a full

_raview Inio the gverpayments process 1o ensure

that such transactions are baiag identified as
quickly as posalble so that recavery of the debt

" can be actionad and escalated as required.

=5




FIdings and management actons (cont)

Draft for discussion purposes

4.4 Potential confllct of interest when employee .(rmw Member}

Qrders and SFls. other imcene noted Is from donations and

SENIMASS spent £199k for accommodalion with an organisation of  The financlal statsments for this [atest year Rlisk: The Council Is.commiited to
which one of thair employees was a Trustee, No declaratians uf ste “,..the SENDIASS Tearn continued to Inappmpnate and unsuthorised

interest ware made. operare frarn the POD durlng the pandemic  expenditure due te non-compliance with
As part of our expanditure testing dotailed In irf 1.5, we nated that - :’Ydﬂigmsﬁ.;s:f;;mﬁ: g’: n;nomong Standing Oidars and SFls.
* E129,085 has been spent in relation to Shine@Nechalspod. resulted in adn‘lmmlran‘mc E.!mlmﬁ e which Proposed managemsnt actlon:

Our review contirmed-that the Head of Service informed finance that we have been ablo to aliocata. to the reserve The Councll should undertake a fuII
_thesa payments wers In relatlon to use of space at Nechells POD to  funding™ . review of its deciarations of interest
‘a:?;dn_:godata the new agency warkers recruited at the start of Expanditurs with Nechelis POD by :::I;y‘; ;:;I :rrngc:‘fil:r(:)se rfsor bath

) . SENDIASS was £61k on 20721, £71kin N o :
No evidence was provided in ralatlon o e signed cantract with 21/22 and £67k in'22/23. Where daclarations are desmed not to

Nechells POD, or that a proper procurement procesa had bean
tofowad Lo select this argenisation to provide the servica In the first
place, As such, this is potentlally a breach of the Cauncil's Standing

We note that rental income Hrst eppears in  1'2¥ Paen made ih fine with
ths 2021 zecounts, cotalling £10.6k, The only raquiremants, appiopriate disciplinary
" action should be undértaken by the
"Couneil in relation to relevant
lagacles, and payroll rechages from employass / Members.
Further Investigation found that DH, than an smgloyss of SENDIASS Nechalis POD CiC. .
- was also a Trustee of SHINE@NECHELLSPOD, having been first As noted in.2.8, this should Include

sppalnied on 17 July 2018. {DH was not an employes nor Membafé The Trustos position was not declared sither further invaatigative work to IdentHy

Pl through employee declarations of Intarest -
at the time of this Trustes appointrrient.) B nor Mamber daciaratlons of interest, despite r;;eg;l;l];rn declared Interests across
Howaver, at the 1lme thess payments commenced, DH was an there beling & clear duty to do so according -

employes within SENDIASS, having beenin permanent employment te the Councll's Code of Conduct
since 1 April 2018, :

We nole that the tolal incomae of the urganlsatlnn In the year ending
31 August 2019 wes £128k. Subsaquently this has grown lo £233k
in the year end 31 August 2020, and £319k by 31 August 2021,

© 2070 KPRHG LLP, m LK i
-ﬂmmmmmﬂw-mmmmwwunmmmumnnm KPMG
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Appendix A7

*Fingings and menagement actions (cont)

4.5 Potenitial confllct of interest as Mamber

The ex-amployee (DH). now Member, did not provide detai of their
previous SENDIASS employment.

DH did not, declare their previous emplaymant with SENDIASS aé ’

" part of their inlerests.

The current daclaration form, signad on 26 May 2022, siates @
pecuniary Interest as a “Support Officer' and does not provide eny
furthar dotall as to what service or organisation this relates to.

Given this was work diréctly for the Councll, DH cantinued ta eccess

. systams and ba invalved in the servica after their resignation and .

subsequent slaction, thera is 8 clear expectation that a mare datailed
explanatory declaration should have been made. '

Likewlss, at Council mestings where SENDIASS (or the wider SEND
sarvica) was subject to discussion, verbal declarations shauld have

_ beenmade. .

Wa note that DH also has two active Diractarships as par Curﬁpanies
House, one of which is currentty declared within non-pecuniary
Intaresls on vhelr form,.

Draft for dls.cussioﬁ purposes

Risk: Members have undeclared conflicts

of Interest when conducting Councll
business.

Proposed manage'mant actian:

The Councit should relterate to Members

the requirements of the Daclaration of
Intarest process, nat only with requirad
forms to be submitted but an an 0n-
golng basls any tkna they are Involvad in
the canduct of Council business (e.Q.
sttendance at and involvemant with
Committess], ' .

. VWhere Mambers ara deemed in breach

of the Cade of Conduct a full
invastigation should take place in line
with Council procedures and appropriaie
action taken. .

The Council should specifically review
itg policies ant procedures in relation to
ex-amployee becoming Mambers, and
vlco-varsa.

M 02023 XPAQ LLP, 2 UK Rritard ol paneiati a4 marmizos 10 of the KPMQ ghoogt argacisation of Indegandaat membar (i .
dwith KPMT nsme oral Limitd, 2 pr b campery Lifed by ‘Al ighia razenrac Docyrrete: Coamticaor: KEME C

Lamldamis,
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Appendix A9

Education and Chlldren’s Social Care O&S Committee and Educafion, Chifdren and Young People O8S Committee Meetings

June 2022 and Septernber 2023

Clir Des Hughes attended every Education and Children’s Social Care 0&S Committee meeting in 2022/23, and attended three out of the four
Education, Children and Young People 0&S Committee meetings in 2023/24. . '

Committee
Meeting Date

Minutes/Action Notes

15 June 2022

This was an informal meeting.

20 July 2022

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 7 September 2022 committee meeting.

Councillor Des Hughes declared that he had been employed by Special Educational Needs and Disability Information,
Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS) until April 2022.

The webcast is available here.

7 September 2022

The acﬁon notes / minutes are avallable here and were agreed at the 19 October 2022 committee meéting.

| Councillor Des Hughes declared that he had been employed by Special Educational Needs and Disability Information,

Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS} until April 2022. :

The webcast is available here.

19 October 2022

*The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 30 November 2023 cammittee meeting
subject to the following paragraph being removed: '

‘

OFFICIAL
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Committee
Meeting Date

Minutes/Action Notes

Counclilor Des Hughes declared a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of previously being an employee of Special
Educational Needs and Disability Information, Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS). He stated that he wasn’t
employed by SENDIASS anymore and had not been for the past six months.

To be replaced with:
Cduncillbr Des Hughes informed the Committee that he was previously an employee of Special Educational Needs
and Disabllity Informatlon, Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS), but was not anymore, and had not been for the

past six months.

The webcast is availabie here,

30 November
2022

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 22 February 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was made.

Webcast available here. -

4 January 2023

The action notes / minutes are available here and no declarations of interest was made. However, the action notes /
minutes were agreed subject to amendment, at the 22 February 2023 committee meeting.

-| The action notes of the committee meeting held on the 4th January 2023 were agreed subject ta the following being

added under the Children and Families Directorate Improvement Plan — Progress Update item:

Clir. Des Hughes raised concerns that there was [ittle substance in the update and there was no information for which
progress could be measured over time. ClIr. Karen McCarthy, Cabinet Member, Children, Young People and Families
agreed to provide the details of the improvement plan.

OFFICIAL
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Committee
Meeting Date

Minutes/Action Notes

The webcast is available here.

25 January 2023

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 22 February 2023 committee meeting.

Clir. Des Hughes declared a non-pecuniary interest as he was employed by SENDIASS when the report was
undertaken.

v

The webcast is available here.

| 22 February 2023

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed-at the 5 April 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was made.

The webcast is available here.

-| 8 April 2023 |

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 17 May 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was made.

The webcast is available here.

17 May 2023

The action notes / minutes are avaitable here and were agreed at 14 June 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was made.

The webcast is available here.

OFFICIAL

Page 143 of 172



Appendix A9

Committee
Meeting Date

Minutes/Action Notes

14 June 2023

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 19 July 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was made.

The webcast is available here,

1910ty 2023

The action notes / minutes are available here and were agreed at the 6 September 2023 committee meeting.
No declaration of interest was madae.
fhe webcast is available here,
6 S_eptémber 2023 | ClIr Des Hughes submitted his apologies for this committee meeting and the action notes / minutes are due to be

agreed at the 18 October 2023 committee meeting.

The webcast is available here.

Hughes,

*After the committee meeting on 30 November 2023 Christian Scade, Head of Scrutiny and Committee Services discussed this with Clir Des

OFFICIAL
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Appendix 10

Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 12:03:46 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: Re: Resignation |
Date: Wednesday, 23 March 2022 at 11:58:33 Greenwich Mean Time
From: J
To: I D<s Hughes

c:  CEED N

Attachments: image005.jpg, image002.png, image001.png

To confirm- given the circumstances I have agreed in respect of Des to accept his resignation
* with imimediate effect - Monday 21st March. '

He has not taken any Annual Leave this year and will require payment for this too.

Blrmlng!am ! !1ty !!ouncnl '

Tel: [

From:

Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2022 11:32:08 AM _ :

To: Des Hughes <Des.Hughes @birmingham.gov.uk> -

Cet ; )
I :

Subject: Resignation - ‘

‘Good morning Des

Thank you for your email and congratulations on your selection as a party candidate in the
May elections. ‘ _

First of all, can you please confirm your employee/payroll number. -

Your contract sets out how much notice you must give. Your notice period is based on your

-grade as follows: : : :

Grade1-3 ‘ 1 montﬁ
" Grade4 -5 - . 2months
Grade 6 -7 3 months

You must formally email your manager to resign from your role and request it is ‘with
immediate effect’ but please include a date that you wish for it to be effective. BCC policy is.
you must work your full notice period, however in some circumstances you may be able to
negotiate an earlier leaving date with your line manager. In this case you are formally asking

" to waive your right to work your notice period. Please include this in your resignation email.
Your manager should complete an offline resignation form (attached) and submit it to HR
Services via an Ask HR for processing. -

If you have not taken any leave this leave year — and | am unable to check your leave your
but have copied in one of the team to assist — you will be entitled to be paid for untaken
leave in your final salary, which will'be paid at the end of April. :

If you would like for an exit interview form to be sent to you, please advise.
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—I Education and Skills | HR Consultancy

Mobile:
I work flexibly and may send emails out of normal working hours. This does not mean
I expect you to answer them out of working hours.

.BCC provides employees with a free, 24/7, 365 days a year confidential support service
called the Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) to help improve and maintain your
health & wellbeing, work & career, family & relafionships, money management & debt. Call
0800 1116 387 .and visit https://my-eap.com/ using the following codes: '

« BCC Core Staff: Bhamwelf
Schools/Education Staff: BHAMZ
 Birmingham Children’s Trust: BHAM3
« Acivico: BHAM4
Dedicated Managers felephone number 0800 1116 385 (Mon-Fri 8am-6pm)

Improving HR, finance
.~ and procurement services
) L P

Pragramme 7% Click to find out more

Our Values and Behaviours
Putting citizens first Being true to my word
Acting couragecusly Achieving Excellence

Birmingham Employees sign up to save money at http.//iwww. mybirminghamrewards.co. uk

Any mformatlon about service users or Birmingham City Council Employees contained within
this e-mail or attachment is confidential. Please use such data only for the purpose-detailed
and ensure that if you store this data it is encrypted to prevent unauthorised access. The
email is intended only for the named recipient(s) to whom it is addressed. If you have
received this email in error please return it to the address it came from informing me of the
error and then delete.

From: Des Hughes <Des Hughes@blrmlngham gov.uk uk>
* Sent: 21 March 2022 17:52 '

To: , :

Cc: @l

o ] |

Subject: Resignation
Dear . ‘
| have recently been selected as a Labour Party candidate in the local electlons in May. _
Unfortunately the selectior process for Labour candidates has not been timely.and has also
been frustrated by the recent by-election in Erdington..

| apologise for the lack of notice, but my Head. of Service has agreed that under the
circumstances | may tender my resignation with immediate effect. )

- | am unable to access the People Solutions people solution website but have not taken any
leave this year. Can you tell me when | will get my last pay and will it include holiday pay?
Thanks in advance.

Regards
Des Hughes

20f3
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Support Officer

- SEND Information, Advice & Support Service (SENDIASS)
The Pod :

28 Oliver Street

Birmingham

B7 4NX

T. 0121 464 3390

E: Des.Hughes@birmingham.gov.uk

~ Page 147 of 172
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Appendix 11

' ’ Birmingham
City Council

Birmingham City Counctl Shared Services Cenfre, PO Box
4092, Blrmlngham B4 TAD

VAT Registration Number GB112082130

Invoice Address

Document Number 910333152
Gustomer Ref "EE———
Service Area Ref IRF27384
Your Reference

Invoice Date _- 02-May-2023
Amount Due £ IMEEEE

Payment should be made by thé 16- May-2023 to. avoid
further.action being taken WhICh gould result in additional
costs-belng incurred

Service Eriquiries Phone ~ 0121 303-5530°

' Payment Enquiries Phone 01213035530

" Service Add ress

| Mr. Desmond Hughes

_INVOICE

‘Page 1of2

.Des'cription

GTY [ Priss [ VATE | Vaiuef

SALARY OVERPAYMENT REGOVERY
L Late Leaver )

o B

' _Blrmlngham Clty Council

Please enclose this sllp with any chequa!postal order._payments sent through the post Postal

Net Value
VAT
Amount Due
[ VAT Summary - Bl -
.- Deseription . Net Amount £ “Rate% | VAT Amountf |-
G__B-QUTOFSCOPE o o | ' 0.0

address and a]ternatlve payment methods can he found inthe: "How to Pay“ details.

7 Document Number

Customer Ref
Amount Due
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HOW TO PAY

Direct Dehit .

Set up a Direct Dsblt lo pay your Involces dlrecl from your bank account by

conlacting 0121 303 5530

By Telephorie Banklng PC Bankmg or

Inciude the followlng: Bank Acc -

Sort Code

‘Customer Reference Number'-

| BACs
For Payment by BACS please forward-Remittance. to. Corporate Finance;
PO Box 16378, Birmingham B2 2AJ ,
Fax: Email to; remittances@blirmingham.gov,ulc
By Internet For the details of hiow to make paymsnt on tha Intemet please vislt-www,
. blmmlngham.gov.ulfinvoicepayment
By Paost to ‘Blrminghar Glty Coungll, Shared Sarvices Cenfre, PO Box 4002;

Birmingham B4 7AD )
Please do not send cash through the past.

Chequas or Postal orders should be mads payab]e to Brnnlngham City
Council

Please enclose the slip, with your payment and wrlte Ihe Involce number on
the back of the cheque or Postal Order

If a recalpt Is raquired, the ifivolce should be returned Infact endorsed
"Recelpt Required" and accompanied by atamped addressad envelope

HELP AND INFORMATION

Writfen Enqulres: .

About {labillty or paymonts, may be sent to :
Birmingham City Council,

_.Bharad Serviges Cenire,

P.0. Box 4092,

Birmingham,

B47AD

Please ensure you wrile the lnvolce Number on_your Ietter.

Internet Enquires:

For Service This faclilty Is not currently available
For. Paymenl'Revenuas.cIS@bIrmIngham.go_v-.uk

INVOICE NO:
DEBTOR REF:
PRINTED ON:
AMOUNT DUE:
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Birmingham
City Councrl

g

' Birmingham City Gouncil, iShar'e_d' Services Centre, PO Box
4092, Birmingham B4 7AD .

VAT Registration Nimber GB112082130

Document Number
Customer Ref
Service Area Ref
Your Reference

Invoice Date

02-May-2023

" Amount Due £ -

Payment. should be made by the 16- May-2023 to avoid -
. further acfion being taken whlch could resultin additional
costs belng incurred .

Service Enquiries Phune
Payment Enqumes Phone

" 0121 303 5530
0121303 5530

Invaice Address Service Add're'ss ;

dr. Desmond Hughes - ; — T
| INVOICE s
D‘“-S""‘lJtion QTY | Price | VATE Value £_

: SALARY OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY .
Late Leaver ) .

il |

Net Value
VAT
Amount Due
-VATSummary _ _ PR L .
.~ Description __ Net Amount £ | Rate% VAT Amount £ B
GB OUT OF SCOPE : T matimtes O T 000]

-'Blrmingham Glty Councll

_Please enclose:this slip with any chequa/postal order payments sent through the post. Postal”
address and alternatrve payment’ methods can be found in the "How to Pay". detarls. _

Document Number

Customer Ref

Amount Due ,
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HOW TO PAY

Direct D'ebitj

Set up a Direct Dshit to-pay. your Invoices direct from your bank accaunt by

By Telephone Bankmg PC Banking or
BACs

Sart Coded
Ciistomer

.Ggntaeling @ 121303 5530

Include lha followlng: Bﬁnk A
elerence Number

Far Payment by BACS plaasa forward Reminance to Garporate I'Inarlce.
PO Box 16379, Birmingfiam B2 2A)°

. E'ak': Email to: remlliancas@blrmlngham gov uk

By Internet

..For lhB details of how lo make paymient ori the Intemetplaase \nslt W,

B Birmingham.gov.ukfnvoleapayment s
By Post fo “Hirmingham. Clty Councll, Shared Seryices: Cen(ra PO Box 4092
) ‘Blrmingham B4 7AD . o .

Please do:not sénd cashi through the post.

Gheques of.Pastal orders should be made payable to Birmlngham City
Gaundil

Pledse englose the sllp, with.your payment and wnla the’ Invalce nymber on
the back of-the cheque or Pogtal Order - -,

iF: a ranaipt E] requrred tha involce should be refurned infact sndorsed
--"Recalpt Reguired" 'and accumpanled by stamped addressed anvelope

HELP AND INFORMATION

‘Written Enguires:

. .

About ability or payments,ymay ba sentto
Bimingham Clty Councll;,
Shared Services Centre,
P.0. Box 4092, N
Bifmingham,-

B4 7AD .

Pigdse ensura you write:

e Invoice Number ori your letier. - _

V'Int'e'fn‘ai E_hqulres:; -

" Far Service This faciilly. |sTiot currenlly avallable -

For F'aymenl Revenuss. CIS@bin-nIngharn gov uk

- INVOICE NO:

DEBTOR REF:

PRINTED ON:

. AMOUNT DUE:
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Appendix Al2

Tuesday, October 31,2023 at 12:08:40 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: RE: APP i

Date: Tuesday, 5 July 2022 at 10:41:50 British Summer Time
From: QD

To: G Counci'or Des S Hughes, GEEEEGD

Fine for me

09:34

Subject: RE: APP o 4 ; :
Yes, can we say 1.30 p.m.? o _ Lo

From:
Sent: 05 July 2022 09:31
To:
<Des.S.Hughes@birmingham.gov.uk>;

Subject: APP _ . -
Do people have an hour or so tomorrow to have a quick char about this — just want to clarify

m! understanding of someof the data (if we can give this that term) in here.

Education & Skills Directorate
Birmingham City Council.
The POD '
28 Oliver Street

Nechells

Birmingham

B7 4NX -

e maﬂ:W
www.birmingham.gov.u

illor Des S Hughes

1ofl
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Tuesday, October 31, 2023 et_12:11:46 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: FW: LGO

Date: - Tuesday, 12 July 2022 at 09:28:13 British Summer Time
From: G |

To: Councillor Des S Hughes

Attachments: LGO July22 Out of School F. pdf :

Des

This reports is about children out of school - there are dozens in Bham .
As DCS if she has read it? '

From (D

Sent: 07 July 2022 09:2

!u!!ecl: !!ll _ .

hitps:/fww g.uk/decisions/education/special-educational-needs/21-002-722,

SENDIASS
- Education & Skills Directorate
Birmingham City Council
The POD
28 Oliver Street
" Nechells
Birmingham
B7 4NX

B o—
WWw.birmingnam.gov.u
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Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 12:09:04 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: FW:?
Date: Tuesday, 6 September 2022 at 06:15:33 British Summer Time

From: —
To: )

Attachments' SEND Improvement update to Scrutiny Aug 22 and notes.pptx

From
Sent: 02 September 2022 17:11 :
To: Councillor Des S Hughes <Des.S.Hughes @birmingham.gov.uk> b

Subject: RE: ?
From: Councﬂlor Des S Hughes <Des S Hughes@blrmlngham gov.uk; uk> :

Sent: 02 September 2022 14:40 -
To: _

Subject: ?
Would you mind having a look and this and providing an incisive appraisal of the substance

of this update — and then tell me how Iong it took you?

Regards
Councillor Des Hughes
Kingstanding Ward

| 1of1
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Accelerated Progress Plan - Update /
Highlight Report since July 2022

Overview and Serutiny Committes b Seritember 2022

T wry

8E BOLD BE BIRMWNEMAM

The i!irmlngham C&F Directorate vision

El?:'mingham Children Thrive

Birmingham Children Thrive

All children and young people are Sale, - A\ HH
Prrmw)

Healthy, Included, Gonfident and st [V et
Achiaving
Dellvered through our princlples:
- ‘ﬂmﬂ-mwwumbgdum

= Slrengihs hased and relationship based practlca
With cu thieken, fmlics, each olher and cur pariners

BE BOLD B BXRMINGHAM
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‘The national consultation on SEND and inclusion

» The green paper, "Right support, righl place, right lime", commits to
identifying children’s needs more quickly.

= Education secretary Nadhim Zahawi says il will also restore families’
trust in an “inclusive educalion system with excellent mainsiream
provision that puls children and young people first”.

= The praposed policies look Lo establish a "single nalional SEND and
alternative pravision system that sets clear standards for the
provision that children and young people should expect lo receive”.

BE ROLD BE BIRMINGHAM

Pagea

The Green Paper s many months zwsy and will be significanlly changed before coming inta force
as legislation; 1cannol imagine [ Wil have much priarity far the new PM, S0 quoting fromitls
polnlless WE need ta addrass the law and policy as it [s NOW

Page 159 of 172

What does the commissioner say?
«._John Caughilan, DIE SEND Commissionar references in his repart lhat:

~There is a Grisis of appropriate provision for SEND children in Birmingham which

will need callechve will lo address, Ons element of that Is thet thera ara

nat enovgh children with EHCFS that are being supportad by mainstream schools

in a system which simpily isn't conslstently inclusive encugh. On the other hand, ha

has sean al first hand soma excallant inclusive schoals and school leaders whosa
* work can be replicated.”

BE BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM

PaGEd

There is no measure of whal propartion of children wilh EHCPs ‘should” be In mainstrear. If they
are reslly seriqus ahout his (hen there shoutd be some discussion with 55 HTs about how many
childen Lhey can Identify in Lheir sthools who could have needs mel In malnstream. At the
same bime it woukd be necessary o survey MS schools and RBs L see how many pupils the
SENDCOs feel wouki e batter placed in special. This paragraph is just an assertion based on
an cbsenvalion. 1L has no weight, statistically of legaly




Evolution of Local Strategies

+ The developments for the key locat strategles ‘within the APP are
going wall,

Objaclive 1 Is developing stralegias for

i) SEND; )

i) Leaming and Development, and; *

iif) Workforce Development =~~~

= Objective 4 is developing
i} the Inclusion Strategy

* Co-Produglion principles are being followed to develop the above

BE BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM

A f
] e L T ngmm
. m [a ]l R

BE BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM

ragcy

Things we learned from the co-praduction workshops for
SEND & Inclusion strategies

1) Poaled resource and collaborative deployment;
. 2) District wolrklng, “team around the school';

3) Stronger data recording Lo Inferm decision making and analysls of trends and for
forecasting {or \he future;

4] Skkutory functions, clearly defined responsibilities and resourced appropriately;

5) Oelivering a graduated response so that needs are met earlier and trust is bullt;

.. 8] Capadty and sufﬂdenw required with peer to peer suppont and outreach;

7'l Learning from existing good practice in Blrmingham;
8} Communicalion and sharing far every stakehalder about who does what In The
Systern’;
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Key data

+  SEMAR currently maintains 11,421 EHCPs

Tn August 2021 SENAR malniainad 10,914 EHCPs

2,048 new assesament +8q0ests wara raceived In the last 12 months

1,221 pew EHCPs were issued In the laal 12 months

In July 2021 51% of plans were: lssuad within the 20 week statriory Emeframe

In July 2022 66% of plans were ssuad within the 20 week statrlary limeframa (MWatlonal Indicator I 65%)

Tha numbsr af annual reviews needing to ba compisted hea reduced from 4.500 Lo 720 o5 at and of July 2022
The number of annuel reviews undzclaken by the taam & increasing manth on month to coninua to cleer lhe
backiog whilsl mainteining new reviews a3 they fall due. ey ™ ™,

1085

+  As canfirmed at the bst mesting of this commillos, 58% of al ‘Phasa Transfers’ were completed for the
2022423 acadamic year compared 1o 1% Lhe previols year.
+  Tha pha3e transfer pracass for Sept 2023 has bogun.

PAET

—

I Judy 2021 51% of plans were issuad within the 20 week stalulory limeframe

-July 2022 66% of plans wers issUad within the 20 week stalutory limeframe

National ndicatar means NOTHING. The law rexquires 100% Lo be done on time

And the AR dala are, confusing; f we have 11000 EHCPs then raughly 200 a month would nead
1o be reviewed. Its not 5 slalic picture !

Objective 1- System Leadershlp

Locel Offer website has been reflrashad with reafly good input [rom users
(parents/carers and young people) to support changes.

These include Lhe navigation dround the sile, the prasentation and look and feel of the
sile and the background finctionality, ing i ia asier lo accass and
more awiftly.

Furlher refreshing 1o (he Local Offer waballe will he taking place in he coming mantha
An apprenlice post Is helng recruiled to which will have a responsibility for mainlaining
up-to-date informalion and working with stakehplders to improve the sacial media and
digital centant of tha and from Lhe Lacal Offer websile.

= Dala Sharing A 1t refrash and p ready lor slgning
BF BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM L g
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Objectlve 2 — Getting the Basics Right

* Standard Operaling Procedures have been written and are belng
refined for the “core’ processes

* Qualily Assurance Framework has been developed and finalised

* Recruitment Drive underway for maintaining appropriate staffing
levels in SENAR

= Review and adjustmenls to Lherapy offer has been completed and
implementatian of the changes will cammence at the start of the
Autumn term.
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Appropriale staffing fevels In SENAR?  Need comparisons frem pre 2018 Ofsted, and each year
since {and casts)

Objective 3 - Working Together Well

+ Worked so well together, objective now ‘signed off" {al last SIB) and
activilles to ba embedded as Business As Usual across local area
Co-Production Framework and Charter, Cormms and Engagement
Stralegy and Independent Review of SENDIASS complete
Participalion and Co-Production Officer functions and JD completed
and ready to recruit to

Youth Engagement events took place In July and survey Issued to
gather intelligence from young pecple

Over 100 responses to Lhe survey recelved and it will clase in
September.

BE BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM ﬁ NS BT .’;... ¥ o
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Objective 4 - Pathways

* Working group well eslablished and starting to build on and develop
tha lacal palhways for past-16 options and improve lracking
processes

- Working group for “Qut of Schoot Process' is reviewing current

systams, assessing impact of the new allendance guldance and

identifying where improvements can be made

DLP delivering some really good autcomes and review to ba

published in September Lo share the learning

+ Speclal Schools Oulreach Support to be delivered in Auturan term

o g
ANHS B YA
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Golden threads within abjectives to déliver greatest impact

Graduated Response to supporting children and young people
Child centred {not process/service) appreach

+ Co-Production and hearing the voice of the child

+ Support for setlingsiservices to deliver early intervention

« District worling with potential for local decisfon making
Multi-agency trainlng and inleractions across the local area
Improved data rocording and reporting

Greater number of children and young pecple educated in
mainstream settings in ine with thelr needs and a graduated
raspanse

BF, BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM .
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Social media final slide
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Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 12:11:04 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: Scrutiny
Date: Wednesday, 7 September 2022 at 08:54:20 British Summer Time

From: QD

To: Councillor Des S Hughes
nt to have a quick chat about the SENDIASSs pages?

SENDIASS

- Education & Skills Directorate

Birmingham City Council
The POD

28 Oliver Street”
Nechells

Birmingham

B7 4NX

e mail:
www.birmingham.gov.uk/SENDIASS
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'Ihesdéy, October 31, 2023 at 12:12:24 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: SENAR

Date: Thursday, 3 November 2022 at 13:12:07 Greenwich Mean Time
From: '
To: Councillor Des S Hughes

Attachments: SENAR-structure.pdf ] - -
Of these — how many are permanent salaried staff and how may are interims employed as
self employed? '

many in mediation team? and complaints?

SENDIASS ‘ _
Education & Skills Directorate
Birmingham City Council

The POD

28 Oliver Street

Nechells

Birmingham

B7 4NX

e mail:
www.birmingham,.gov.uk/SENDIASS

lof1
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Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 12:12:48 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: FW: I am sharing 'amira artcile' with you

Date: Tuesday, 29 November 2022 at 08:48:30 Greenwich Mean Time |
From: GD

To: Councillor Des S Hughes

Attachments: amira artcile.pdf

Remember Amira? :
may be useful for Wednesday Scrutiny?

vember 2022 09:14

Subject: RE: [ am sharing 'amira artcile' with you

students at SENDIASS 2 years ago.
| could share it with the team?
Many Thanks,

Page 167 of 172
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Tuesday, October 31, 2023 at 12:13:57 Greenwich Mean Time

Subject: Statistics

Date: Friday, 9 December 2022 at 13:34:15 Greenwich Mean Time

From: QD

To: Councillor Des S Hughes . o
httDs;//www.qov.uk/go'vemment/statistics/tribunal-statistics—quarterly-juIy-toa-september-
2022/tribunal-statistics-quarterly_-jgiv-to-seotember-2022#special-educational-needs—and-

disability-

SENDIASS :
Education & Skills Directorate
Birmingham City Council

The POD. - ‘

28 Oliver Street

Nechells

Birmingham

B7 4NX

e mail;
www.birmingham.gov.uk/SENDIASS
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Appendix 12

TueSd’ay, October 31, 2023 at 12:13:02 Greenwich Mean Time

Subjeci:: more stats 7
Date: Friday, 9 December 2022 at 13:37:07 Greenwich Mean Time

rrom: (D

To: Councillor Des S Hughes
https:#www.specialneedsjungle.com/send-tribunal-2022-3-7-la-success-rate-government-
- - ; : :

SENDIASS

. Education & Skills Directorate

Birmingham City Council

The POD '

28 Oliver Street

Nechells

Birmingham

B7 4N

e mail:
www.birmingham.gov.uk/SENDIASS

l1of1l
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Appendix 13

Subject:  RE: Draft report

Date: Wednesday, 15 November 2023 at 22:20:01 Greenwich Mean
- , Time ‘ ‘
From: * Councillor Des S Hughes

To: G

Attachments: image001.png, image002.png, image003.png

i

With regards to allegation 1, I don’t understand the allegation. With regards to allegation 2,1
reject entirely the suggestion that this was done as a councillor. Any assertion that this is the
case is simply incorrect. With regards to the third allegation, this is what I would refer to as a
breakdown in communication. I have already agreed that if there is a liability there, I will
accept that. So, this means that allegations 1,2 and 3 are not within the remit of the Standards
Committee to investigate or adjudicate upon. As such they cannot rightly be referred to the
Standards Committee for any further considerations. That leaves only allegations 4 and 5
upon which the Standards Committee has any remit. I have conceded that I failed to register
my interests in two organisations and that in that respect I am in breach of the code. I am
satisfied that my declarations in meetings were within the spirit of the Code of Conduct.

Also, did you record the interview with me? If so, can it be made available to me please?

Regards

* Councillor Des Hughes |
-Kingstanding Ward

OFFICIAL

From: (.

Sent: 01 November 2023 15:14

To: Councillor Des S Hughes I
c Q.
Subject: Draft report

Dear Clir Hughes,
Please see attached my draft report and appendices.

The findings are provisional at this stage - if you have comments, please can you provide
them to me by the end of the day on 15 November. - '

I will take all comments received by this date into account before finalising my report and
submitting it t ' o

10f2
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Please also note that the report is confidential and should not be shared with anyone eise,
except for the purpose of taking advice on preparing a response. ‘

Kind regards,

Cornerstone Barristers

1.F PR,
‘ rianten | A

* Ukpar 2
- dU'Zi -

tabasaxdmislar

| am not available on Fridays due to childcare responsibilities.
A copy of my privacy policy can be foundrh'ere.
Eornerstone Barristers and its members are regulated i::y the Bar Standards Board.

Cornerstone Terms of Business

This e-mail and any atlachments are confidential and may also be privileged. If you are not the named recipienl, please nolify the sender
immediately and do not disclose the conlents to any other person usa it for any purpose or slore or copy the information,

We make every effort lo keep our network free from viruses, However, you do need to verify that this e-mail and any atlachmenls are free of
viruses as we can take no responsibility for any computer virus which might be transferred by way of this e-mail.

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by
the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information Is strickly
prohibited and may be unlawful. .

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast,
a leader in email security and cyber resilience. Mimecast integrates email defenses with brand protection,
security awareness training, web security, compliance and other essential capabilities. Mimecast helps protect
large and small organizations from malicious activity, human error and technology failure; and to lead the
movement toward building a more resilient world. To find out more, visit our website.

Birmingham City Council The information contained within this e-mail (and any attachment)
sent by Birmingham City Council is confidential and may be legally privile ged. It is intended
only for the named recipient or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended
recipient please accept our apologies and notify the sender immediately. Unauthorised access,
‘use, disclosure, storage or copying is not permitted and may be unlawful. Any e-mail
including its content may be monitored and used by Birmingham City Council for reasons of
security and for monitoring internal compliance with the office policy on staff use. E-mail
blocking software may also be used. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the
originator and do not necessarily répresent those of Birmingham City Council. We cannot
guarantee that this message or any attachment is virus free or has not been intercepted and
amended. '
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